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1 MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

Just as in 2023, the 2024 financial year was characterised by a favourable business climate, which was reflected in 

the Company’s strong performance. Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. further increased the volume of assets under 

management and the number of active members, and recorded a high profit. 

The Company’s performance in 2024 was once again primarily influenced by developments in the capital markets. 

Inflation eased and required yields remained at previously achieved levels. Share prices on most major markets also 

trended positively. As early as 2023, the majority of provisions formed in 2022 for guaranteed return funds— due to 

underperformance against the guaranteed return—had been reversed, and this trend continued in 2024. The reversal 

of provisions had a notable positive effect on the Company’s financial results. 

Premiums paid by members increased by 5.7% in 2024, totalling EUR 40.4 million (2023: EUR 38.3 million). The 

balance sheet total rose by 10.9% to EUR 535.4 million, exceeding the 2024 target by more than five percentage 

points. Assets and liabilities under financial contracts increased by 12.0% to EUR 464.2 million (end of 2023: EUR 

414.5 million). In February 2024 we successfully completed the merger of the Triglav pokojnine+ lifecycle guarantee 

fund group with the collective pension fund guarantee fund group, thereby allowing more effective management of 

members’ assets at lower operational costs. 

Growth in assets continued in funds with higher-risk investment strategies. The share of these funds increased from 

20.8% to 27.5% in 2024. A growing number of members, aligned with their age group, opted for higher-risk policies 

with higher expected returns. In 2024, the equity collective pension fund achieved a return of 25.42% (2023: 14.59%), 

the mixed collective pension fund delivered 18.69% (2023: 11.37%) and the bond collective pension fund with a 

guaranteed return recorded 2.51% (2023: 2.47%). The guaranteed return for the latter stood at 1.31% in 2024. 

Throughout 2024, we actively fostered comprehensive client relationships and managed assets efficiently, taking 

sustainability into account in both asset management and corporate governance. We also focused on strengthening 

corporate culture, increasing employee engagement and enhancing our role within the Triglav Group. We continued 

digitalisation processes, particularly in the area of client support. Business decisions increasingly involved 

contributions from risk assessment, actuarial, internal audit and compliance functions. We continued strengthening 

the implementation of key functions—especially compliance monitoring and risk management—which are actively 

involved in strategic planning, ongoing operations and decision-making processes. A new risk management 

committee was established, comprising key function holders, sector directors and the relevant Management Board 

member. 

The processes of integrating operations within the Triglav Group, which we began implementing in 2021, continued 

and became an established method of operation for the Company. At the Triglav Group level, we consolidated 

activities related to investment management, marketing and the management of members’ personal accounts. We 

were also active in entering new markets in the Adria region. In June 2024, the Management Board of Zavarovalnica 

Triglav adopted a resolution to continue the consolidation procedures for the centralisation of the management of 

supplementary pension insurance guarantee funds within the Triglav Group. These procedures will continue into 2025.
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2 BUSINESS REPORT 

2.1 KEY COMPANY DATA 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. (at that time known as Skupna pokojninska druzba d.d., Ljubljana) was entered in the court 

register at the District Court in Ljubljana on 19 December 2000, by decision Srg 2000/15021 under entry number 1/34008/00. 

It was established for the purpose of carrying out the activity of supplementary voluntary pension insurance under the 

Pension and Disability Insurance Act (hereinafter: the ZPIZ-2) The activity of pension funds is registered in the court register 

The activities of the pension company are as follows: 

a) carrying out pension fund management activities, namely: 

- managing the assets of the pension fund, 

- administrative services related to the operation of the pension fund, 

- marketing of pension funds, and b) providing pension annuity payment services. 

In accordance with the resolution of the General Meeting held on 22 November 2019, Skupna pokojninska druzba was 

renamed to Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. The change was entered in the court register at the District Court in Ljubljana 

on 26 November 2019, by decision Srg 2019/46640. There were no changes to the Company's capital in 2024 (as in the 

previous year). 

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's share capital was EUR 25,756,809, divided into 123,447 no-par value shares, 

each representing an equal portion and value of the capital. All these shares were held by Zavarovalnica Triglav, d.d. 

Company name: Triglav, pokojninska druZba, d.d. 

Abbreviated name: Triglav PD, d.d. 

Registered office: Dunajska 22, Ljubljana, Slovenia 

Company registration number: 1584774 

Tax number: 17849942 

Company activity code: 65.300 - Pension funding activity 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., has no branches but holds an equity stake in one affiliated company, Evropski dobrovoljni 

penzijski fond a.d. Banja Luka, in the Republika Srpska. 

In January 2024, the Company managed two groups of guarantee funds: the collective pension fund and Triglav pokojnine+. 

The collective pension fund consists of three guarantee funds within the lifecycle investment policy: the equity collective 

pension fund, the mixed collective pension fund and the guaranteed return bond collective pension fund. These funds are 

designed in accordance with the collective pension schemes PN SK 01 and PN SK 03 and the individual pension scheme 

PN SK 02. Triglav pokojnine+ comprises three guarantee funds within the lifecycle investment policy: the equity guarantee 

fund Triglav pokojnine+, the mixed guarantee fund Triglav pokojnine+ and the guaranteed return guarantee fund Triglav 

pokojnine+. These funds are designed in accordance with the collective pension scheme PN TPD 04 and the individual 

pension scheme PN TPD 05.
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ended 31 December 2024 In early February 2024, the Company carried out the merger of all the guarantee funds from the 

Triglav pokojnine+ lifecycle guarantee fund group with the collective pension fund group. The merger was executed based 

on the asset values as of 31 January 2024. The Company kept the Insurance Supervision Agency informed of all merger 

steps, and a review of the transfer was carried out. The collective pension fund consists of three guarantee funds with 

lifecycle investment policies: the equity collective pension fund, the mixed collective pension fund, and the bond collective 

pension fund with a guaranteed return. The funds are now structured in accordance with the collective pension schemes 

PN SK 01, PN SK 03 and PN TPD 04, as well as the individual pension schemes PN SK 02 and PN TPD 05. 

The Company operates under a three-member Management Board and is, at lower organisational levels, divided into 

sectors, functions and a general service. The sectors include marketing, finance and accounting, investment management, 

as well back-office support and IT. The marketing, back-office support and IT sectors are further divided into two departments 

each. The functions include the key functions stipulated by law and the general service, which provides support to all 

organisational units. 

Figure 1: Company organisational chart 

  

The back-office support and informatics sector is responsible for inputting, updating, processing and controlling data related 

to the management of the members' register and their personal accounts, onto which the asset units of the guarantee funds 

are recorded. It also handles IT support for office operations, marketing, asset management and valuation, and the 

guarantee funds' general ledger. For IT support, we utilise the servers of Zavarovalnica Triglav. 

As of 31 December 2024, the Company employed 27 people (26 in the previous year), including one with a Level 8/2 

Bologna degree, two with Level 8/1, thirteen with Level 7, two with Level 6/2, three with Level 6/1, four with
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Level 5, and two with Level 4 qualifications. 

The Company's Supervisory Board consists of a minimum of six and a maximum of eight members, of whom at least one-

third represent the interests of the pension funds. In addition to the chair, the Supervisory Board had six members as of 31 

December 2024 (at the cut-off date in the previous year, there were seven other members besides the chair). 

As at 31 December 2024, the Supervisory Board was composed of seven members: 

- Blaz Jakic, Chair, 

- Blaz Kmetec, Deputy-Chair, and members: 

- Miha Grilec, 

- Miran KalCiC, 

- Vesna Vodopivec, 

- Borut Simonic and 

- Helena Lokar. 

2.2 SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION INSURANCE MARKET OVERVIEW 

Unlike in 2023, the volume of assets managed by all providers increased in 2024, both as a result of contributions and 

positive returns, as all providers recorded positive returns across all funds over the past twelve months. 

By the end of 2024, the accumulated assets of supplementary pension insurance increased by EUR 484.4 million (or 11.45%) 

to EUR 4.7 billion. The largest increase was recorded in voluntary supplementary insurance (EUR 290.5 million or 13.2%), 

followed by supplementary insurance for public sector employees (EUR 115.9 million or 10.5%), while the smallest increase 

was seen in compulsory supplementary insurance (EUR 78.0 million or 8.5%). 

Table 1: Funds collected by type of supplementary pension insurance 

TYPE OF SUPPLEMENTARY 

PENSION INSURANCE 

31/12/2024 31/12/2023 

FUNDS COLLECTED FUNDS COLLECTED 

In EUR million SHARE in % In EUR million SHARE in % 

SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION 

INSURANCE (voluntary) 
2,493.5 52.88% 2,203.0 52.06% 

SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION 

INSURANCE (public sector 

employees) 

1,220.9 25.89% 1,105.1 26.12% 

Compulsory supplementary pension 

insurance 
1,001.3 21.23% 923.2 21.82% 

TOTAL 4,715.7 100.00% 4,231.3 100.00%  

Table 2: Change in the volume of accumulated assets by type of supplementary pension scheme 

TYPE OF SUPPLEMENTARY 

PENSION INSURANCE 

COLLECTED FUNDS EUR million 

31/12/2024 31/12/2023 CHANGE CHANGE in % 

SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION 

INSURANCE (voluntary) 
2,493.5 2,203.0 290.5 13.19% 

SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION 

INSURANCE (public sector 

employees) 

1,220.9 1,105.1 115.9 10.49% 

Compulsory supplementary pension 

insurance 
1,001.3 923.2 78.0 8.45% 

TOTAL 4,715.7 4,231.3 484.4 11.45% 
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Table 3: Members' assets by provider as at 31 December 2024 
 

31/12/2024 31/12/2023 CHANGE 

PROVIDERS 

FUNDS 

COLLECTED 

in 

EUR million 

SHARE in % 

FUNDS 

COLLECTED 

in 

EUR million 

SHARE in % 

FUNDS 

COLLECTE 

D in EUR 

million 

CHANGE in % 

Zavarovalnica Triglav 288.2 11.56% 257.6 11.69% 30.6 11.90% 

Modra zavarovalnica 432.7 17.35% 379.0 17.20% 53.7 14.17% 

Generali 123.0 4.93% 107.5 4.88% 15.6 14.47% 

Insurance companies 843.9 33.85% 744.0 33.77% 99.9 13.43% 

Triglav pokojninska druzba 461.8 18.52% 412.9 18.74% 48.9 11.84% 

Pokojninska druzba A 469.8 18.84% 412.0 18.70% 57.8 14.02% 

Prva pokojninska druzba 456.7 18.32% 399.6 18.14% 57.1 14.30% 

Sava pokojninska druzba 200.1 8.03% 179.4 8.15% 20.7 11.52% 

Pension companies 1,588.4 63.70% 1,403.9 63.73% 184.5 13.14% 

Intesa Sanpaolo 61.2 2.45% 55.0 2.50% 6.1 11.16% 

Banks 61.2 2.45% 55.0 2.50% 6.1 11.16% 

SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION 

INSURANCE total 

2,493.5 100.00% 2,203.0 100.00% 290.5 13.19% 

Source: www.finance.si, providers' websites and own calculations. 
• Bond fund balance as at 30 November 2024  

In the voluntary supplementary pension insurance sector, insurance companies increased their market share by 0.07%, 

while pension companies and the bank saw a decline. Despite an increase of EUR 48.9 million, or 11.8%, the market share 

of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. decreased by 0.22 percentage points. The most significant increase in market share was 

achieved by Prva pokojninska druZba, which rose by 0.18 percentage points. 

The largest market share by assets is held by Pokojninska druzba A, with an 18.8% share. This is followed by Triglav, 

pokojninska druzba, d.d. with an 18.5% share and Prva pokojninska druzba with an 18.3% share. Compared to 2023, the 

volume of collected assets increased by 11.8% for Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., 14.3% for Prva pokojninska druzba and 

14% for Pokojninska druzba A. 

2.2.1 ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 

Global economic environment 

In 2024, global capital markets sustained the positive momentum established in 2023, with equity markets experiencing 

particularly strong surges in share prices. Several factors underpinned these robust equity returns: easing inflation and 

subsequent cuts to key interest rates by central banks, a resilient US economy demonstrating strong growth, and the surging 

stock prices of tech giants, propelled by progress in artificial intelligence. This positive sentiment in equity markets also spilled 

over into bond markets. Eurozone-linked bond indices saw price appreciation, largely driven by declining inflation and 

subdued economic forecasts within the Eurozone, which prompted the European Central Bank to lower its key interest rate. 

In 2024, the global equity index MSCI World rose by 17%. The Slovenian equity index SBITOP recorded an exceptional 

return of 32.97% in 2024.  

http://www.finance.si/
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Table 4: Table of movements in the values of some stock market indices in local currencies in 2024 

STOCK MARKET INDICES 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 % change 

SBITOP Index Slovenian blue chip index 1,253.41 1,666.60 32.97 

MXWO Index MSCI World Index - Developed World 3,169.18 3,707.84 17.00 

MXEF Index MSCI Emerging Markets Index 1,023.74 1,075.48 5.05 

SPX Index USA INDEX OF 500 STOCKS 4,769.83 5,881.63 23.31 

DAX index GERMAN STOCKS INDEX 30 16,751.64 19,909.14 18.85 

SXXP Index EURO STOCKS INDEX 600 478.99 507.62 5.98 

NKY Index JAPANESE 225 STOCKS AVERAGE 33,464.17 39,894.54 19.22 

HSI Index HONG KONG INDEX 17,047.39 20,059.95 17.67 
Source: Bloomberg.  

Towards the close of 2024, the bond market experienced a slight divergence: required yields on longer-term instruments, 

specifically 10-year bonds, edged upwards, while shorter-term 2-year bonds saw a decrease in their required yields. As a 

result, the required yield for 10-year Slovenian bonds stood at 3 01% at the end of 2024, a marginal increase from the 2.88% 

recorded at the end of 2023. Conversely, the required yield for 2-year Slovenian bonds decreased to 2.18% at the end of 

2024, down from 2.82% at the close of the previous year.. 

Table 5: Overview of required yields for selected government bonds as of 31 December 2024 

Country Moody's rating 10-year yield 2-year yield 

Germany Aaa 2.367% 2.082% 

Slovakia A3 3.359% 2.397% 

France Aa3 3.195% 2.270% 

Italy Baa3 3.522% 2.422% 

Spain Baal 3.061% 2.253% 

Slovenia A3 3.013% 2.179% 
Source: Bloomberg.  

For 2025, real economic growth in the USA is expected to be 2.2%, which is less than the estimated 2.8% for 2024. Slightly 

slower economic activity could be influenced by policies regarding tariffs and immigration. For the Eurozone, real economic 

growth of 1% is forecast for 2025, which is an improvement compared to the estimated 0.7% for 2024. Growth continues to 

be affected by high energy prices, reduced production, regulatory costs and the delayed effects of previous monetary policy 

tightening. Inflation in the USA is expected to fall to 2.6% in 2025 (from an estimated 3% in 2024). In the Eurozone, inflation 

is expected to reach 2.1%, which is slightly less than the estimated 2.4% in 2024. Consequently, both the American central 

bank (Fed) and the European Central Bank (ECB) are expected to lower the key interest rate in 2025. The forecast earnings 

growth for the American stock index S&P 500 for 2025 amounts to 14.3%. The P/E (price/earnings) ratio for the forecast 

earnings for 2025 is estimated at 22, which exceeds both the 5-year average (19.8) and the 10-year average (18.2). 

Slovenia 

According to the Review of Macroeconomic Developments published by Banka Slovenije in December 2024, economic growth 

for 2024 is forecast at 1.4%. Growth is expected to increase in the coming years to 2.2% in 2025, then accelerate to 2.8% in 

2026, and moderate to 2.4% in 2027. The main driver of economic growth will be private consumption, based on high 

employment, real income growth and a gradual improvement in consumer confidence. Additionally, government investments 

are expected to strengthen again in 2025 and 2026, primarily as a result of the accelerated absorption of funds from the EU 

Recovery and Resilience Facility.  
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Inflation saw a slowdown in 2024, influenced by the impact of previous monetary policy actions, decreased wholesale energy 

costs, easing price pressures within global supply networks and a cyclical cooling in some areas of the domestic economy. 

However, a temporary rise in inflation is anticipated towards the end of 2024 and into early 2025, primarily driven by increased 

food prices, base effects related to annual calculations and adjustments in electricity network charges. Considering these 

elements, average inflation is projected to be 2.0% in 2024, 2.2% in both 2025 and 2026 and 2.1% in 2027. Overall, forecasts 

suggest a steady yet moderate expansion of the Slovenian economy, bolstered by improving macroeconomic circumstances 

and investment activity. 

2.3 PENSION FUND PERFORMANCE 

As of 31 January 2024, Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., completed the merger of the Triglav pokojnine+ lifecycle guarantee 

funds group with the SPS guarantee funds group. Members are included in five pension schemes, three of which are collective 

(PS SK 01, PS SK 03 and PS TPD 04) and two individual (PS SK-02, PS TPD 05). 

Table 6: Number of members and volume of guarantee funds in the collective pension fund guarantee funds group 

SPS GUARANTEE 

FUND 

31/12/2024 
31/12/2023 recalculated 1/01/2023 recalculated 

NUMBER OF 

MEMBE RS 

ACCUMUL ATED 

FUNDS 

( EUR million) 
NUMBE ROF 

MEMBE RS 

ACCUM 
ULATED 
FUNDS (EUR 
million) NUMBER OF 

MEMBE RS 

ACCUMUL ATED 

FUNDS 

( EUR million) 

Guaranteed yield 

bond SPS 37,959 334.97 41,649 327.03 42,283 315.26 

Mixed SPS 6,752 58.57 6,828 43.01 5,897 33.66 

Equity SPS 16,946 68.29 14,781 42.9 11,622 28.33 

TOTAL SPS GROUP 

OF FUNDS 

61,657 461.83 63,258 412.94 59,802 377.25 

 

In accordance with the provisions of the Pension and Disability Insurance Act (ZPIZ-2), the fund manager must guarantee an 

annual return of at least 40% of the average annual interest rate on government securities with a maturity of over one year in 

at least one of the guarantee funds within the lifecycle investment policy group of funds. Triglav, pokojninska druiba, d.d. 

defines a higher minimum return in its pension schemes, specifically 25% above the minimum guaranteed return. This means, 

in accordance with applicable secondary legislation, a return of 50% of the average annual interest rate on Slovenian 

government bonds with a maturity of over one year. The fund's reserves are formed monthly in accordance with the 

guaranteed return, based on the difference between the actual and guaranteed return on the member's personal account. In 

the event of termination of the insurance (either regular or extraordinary termination), the member's personal account will be 

credited not only with the guaranteed return but also with any excess return over the guaranteed amount.  
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On the last day of 2024, the total amount of accumulated assets stood at EUR 461,828,915 (EUR 412,942,104 in the 

previous year). 

Compared to the end of 2023, changes in the investment structure by the end of 2024 were most evident in the bond fund, 

particularly in the reduction of investments in government bonds from 43.97% to 42.25%. The largest increase was 

recorded in corporate financial bonds, which rose from 19.24% to 23.68%. In the equity and mixed funds, the most 

significant change was an increase in the share of equities and a decrease in the share of bonds, due to a shift in 

investment policy in 2024 and the rise in share prices. In the equity fund, the share of equities increased by 30.02 

percentage points, and in the mixed fund by 19.57 percentage points.  
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Table 7: Investment structure of SPS guarantee funds as of 31 December 2024 
 Bond guaranteed return 

collective pension fund Mixed collective 

pension fund 

Equity collective 

pension fund 

Corporate bonds 25.92% 8.86% 0.00% 

Corporate financial bonds 23.68% 5.75% 0.00% 

Government bonds 42.25% 12.27% 0.00% 

Open-ended investment funds 1.63% 4.68% 5.14% 

Closed-ended investment funds 1.57% 0.16% 0.14% 

Equities 0.30% 62.49% 90.87% 

Commercial papers 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Treasury bill 3.68% 3.04% 0.85% 

Successive deposits 0.21% 0.51% 0.44% 

Term deposits 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Receivables 0.61% 1.67% 2.15% 

Cash 0.86% 0.89% 0.62% 

Liabilities -0.72% -0.31% -0.20% 

Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 
 

In 2024, the bond collective pension fund achieved a return of 2.51%, exceeding the guaranteed return of 1.31%. The 

mixed and equity collective pension funds recorded returns of 18.69% and 25.42%, respectively. The higher return of the 

equity fund compared to the mixed fund is primarily the result of its investment structure, as the equity fund holds a greater 

proportion of equity investments. Neither the mixed nor the equity collective pension fund provides a guarantee on the 

return achieved. 

Table 8: Annual returns of Triglav, pokojninska druzba over the past three years 

DONATION 2024 2023 2022 

Guaranteed by law 1.05 0.4 0.03 

Guaranteed under pension schemes 1.31 0.5 0.04 

Actual return of the bond collective pension fund 2.51 2.47 -7.29 

Actual return of the mixed collective pension fund* 18.69 11.37 -9.98 

Actual return of the equity collective pension fund* 25.42 14.59 -9.47 

*The fund has no guarantee on the return achieved; 

Source: own calculations  
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2.4 COMPANY PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW 

The Company’s financial performance is presented in the table below: 

Table 9: Company's financial result 

IN EUR Triglav PD - own resources 2024 2023 Index 

Entry fee income 406,032 

Exit tee income 93.554 

391,852 103.6 

85,650 109.2 

Management tee income 4,377,051 

OPERATING REVENUE 4,870,037 

3,919,141 111.7 

4,390,042 110.9 

NET FINANCIAL INCOME/EXPENDITURE 1,407,532 1,351,428 108.0 

NET OTHER INCOME/EXPENDITURE 1,724,080 2,033,050 05.5 

OPERATING MATERIAL COSTS 35,004 30,993 90.4 

Acquisition costs 131,819 

Rentals 5,666 

139,529 94.5 

5,526 102.5 

Costs of services of natural persons not engaged in an activity 28,526 

Reimbursement of staff expenses in connection with work 73,465 

Payment and banking costs 28,453 

Intellectual and personal services costs 637,868 

Advertising, publicity and entertainment costs 112,441 

Costs of other services 541,381 

27,660 103.1 

64,516 113.9 

32,419 87.8 

485,697 131.3 

96,658 116.3 

495,408 109.3 

OPERATING COSTS OF SERVICES 1,559,019 1,347,413 115.7 

DEPRECIATION 208,590 282,097 95.0 

OPERATING PERSONNEL EXPENSES 2,241,108 1,952,372 114.8 

OTHER COSTS 100,185 102,209 98.8 

TOTAL COSTS 4,205,173 3,781,083 112.8 

OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS 3,803,077 4,599,442 82.7  

The 2024 financial year ended with a profit of EUR 3.8 million (EUR 4.6 million in the previous year) The positive performance 

was driven by favourable developments in the financial markets in 2024, which also led to the reversal of provisions for failure 

to meet the guaranteed return, totalling EUR 908.4 thousand (EUR 3.8 million in the previous year). In addition, provisions 

for guaranteed annuity calculation factors were reversed in the amount of EUR 521 6 thousand. This reduction was due to 

the withdrawal of factors for a specific age group. These changes in provisions were reflected in the Company's financial 

performance (net other income/expenses). 

Premiums paid by our members were slightly higher than in the previous year, amounting to EUR 40.4 million in 2024 (EUR 

38.3 million in 2023). The balance sheet total increased by 10.9% to EUR 535.4 million (EUR 482.8 million the year before). 

Total accumulated member assets rose compared to the previous year (EUR 412.9 million) and reached EUR 464.2 million. 

The trend of increasing asset volumes in funds with riskier investment policies continued successfully, with the share of these 

funds rising from 22.5% to 27.5% in 2024. 

Operating income in 2024 was 10.9% higher than in the previous year, while net operating costs rose by 12.8%. 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., concluded the 2024 financial year with a positive result of EUR 3.8 million.
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The Company is exposed to financial risks through financial assets and liabilities, as well as contractual obligations towards 

members. All risks and related analyses are presented in detail in the accounting section of this report. The Company’s key 

risk relates to ensuring capital adequacy in the event of failing to meet the guaranteed return on the assets of guarantee funds 

with a guaranteed return. This occurs when the actual return is lower than the guaranteed return, requiring the Company to 

form provisions to cover the shortfall. In such cases, it is necessary to ensure that claims by guarantee funds are covered by 

an appropriate level of capital. 

Due to adverse developments on capital markets in 2022, when the actual return was lower than the guaranteed return, the 

Company was required to establish provisions that were recognised in the income statement, which consequently increased 

the Company’s capital risk. However, conditions in the capital markets improved over the subsequent two years, resulting in 

the reversal of the provisions during 2023 and 2024. 

The Company met the statutory capital adequacy requirement for the entire financial year. 

As at 31 December 2024, the surplus of available capital amounted to EUR 50.5 million (EUR 44.1 million in the previous 

year, excluding current-year profit). The required minimum capital of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., as at 31 December 

2024 was EUR 14.7 million (EUR 13.9 million in the previous year), while available capital amounted to EUR 65.1 million 

(EUR 58.2 million in the previous year). 

The accounting section of the report also presents the methods used for the valuation of individual items in the financial 

statements. 

The value of the Company’s own-fund investments increased by EUR 3.1 million or 4.6% in 2024 (compared to an increase 

of 3.6% or EUR 2.4 million in the previous year, resulting from the Company’s recapitalisation). As at the reporting date, the 

largest share of the portfolio consisted of investments in debt instruments (bonds, treasury bills and commercial papers), 

accounting for 96.4% of the portfolio (compared to 86.4% the year before). 

Table 10: Own funds: investment structure 
 

31/12/2024 31/12/2023 

Structure of investments Value in EUR Share in % Value in EUR Share in % 

Corporate bonds 15,537,158 22.11% 13,237,166 19.70% 

Corporate financial bonds 16,556,349 23.56% 15,110,597 22.49% 

Government bonds 29,745,573 42.32% 24,028,090 35.76% 

Open-ended investment funds 136,201 0.19% 5,993,687 8.92% 

Closed-ended investment funds 95,314 0.14% 60,433 0.09% 

Equities 641,276 0.91% 567,893 0.85% 

Commercial papers 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 

Treasury bills 5,934,892 8.44% 5,652,133 8.41% 

Successive deposits 1,270,000 1.81% 2,301,658 3.43% 

Term deposits 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 

Receivables 2,151 0.00% 1 0.00% 

Cash 383,148 0.55% 240,744 0.36% 

Liabilities -16,250 -0.02% 0 0.00% 

Total 70,285,812 100.00% 87,192,401 100.00% 
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2.5 RISKS 

The objective of the Company is to ensure comprehensive measurement and monitoring of risks that could have adverse 

effects on its operations and the performance of its guarantee funds. As part of this effort, risk indicators are actively and 

regularly monitored, including the preparation of reports. In addition, internal and supervisory stress tests are conducted, 

which provide an additional layer of risk monitoring. These activities ensure timely identification, anticipation, and appropriate 

responses to threats, while also enabling the Company to potentially take advantage of opportunities arising from risks, thus 

helping to manage them effectively. 

The risk management process is continuous and involves all business areas of the Company, each within its own scope of 

responsibilities The Company also works closely with the Triglav Group’s risk management function. In recent periods, 

sustainability risks—particularly those related to climate change—have gained importance These represent significant new 

risks to which TPD cannot remain immune, especially in terms of their potential impact on financial investments. In addition 

to its regular quarterly risk report, the Company also prepared a climate risk assessment as part of its Own Risk and Solvency 

Assessment (ORSA) process This process, conducted in the fourth quarter of 2024, also included an evaluation of the impact 

of a scenario involving heightened geopolitical tensions, a scenario of deteriorating liquidity, as well as two scenarios relating 

to operational risk. Based on these scenarios, the Company assessed that it would remain adequately capitalised even in the 

event of extreme circumstances, and taking into account the planned transfer of voluntary supplementary pension insurance 

funds from the parent company, scheduled for 2025. 

The Company and the guarantee funds it manages are primarily exposed to financial risks, with market, credit and liquidity 

risks being the most significant due to their impact on the risk of failing to meet the guaranteed return. The Company closely 

monitors all of these risks and responds accordingly, aiming to manage them to the greatest extent possible. 

Financial markets continue to pose elevated financial risks, increasing the uncertainty of the environment, which is also linked 

to ongoing geopolitical tensions. Non-financial risks remained low in 2024. 

As part of the regular annual ORSA process, stress tests were again carried out this year: a financial scenario (escalation of 

geopolitical tensions), a liquidity deterioration scenario and an operational risk scenario. These scenarios also serve to further 

develop the risk management system by providing an additional perspective on risk assessment and forming a basis for 

potential further enhancements to the risk management framework, should the need arise. 

In 2024, the Management Board reviewed reports or topics related to risk management in nearly all of its regular meetings 

and adopted appropriate resolutions where necessary. 

The most important individual risks to which the Company is exposed in its operations are defined below.  
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Risk of non-achievement of the guaranteed return 

The most significant risk—the risk of failing to meet the guaranteed return under the minimum guaranteed return obligation 

of the bond collective pension fund with guaranteed return—did not change significantly in 2024 compared to the previous 

year. The risk remains present, but the provision for failure to meet the guaranteed return has been gradually decreasing. As 

a result, a substantial portion of the provisions for potential top-ups of negative balances on members’ accounts was already 

released in 2024. The Company continuously assessed the need for forming additional provisions for failure to meet the 

guaranteed return and, at the same time, monitored the volume of the portfolio in the AC category. A gradual shift is expected 

in the bond fund: maturing bond investments classified under AC are progressively being replaced with new bond purchases 

classified under FVTPL. As such, the AC portion of the portfolio (measured at amortised cost) in the bond fund is gradually 

decreasing. Within both the bond fund and the Company's portfolio, the reduced share of equity securities and the increased 

share of debt securities and cash are still maintained. 

This risk is also linked to the need to ensure adequate capital adequacy, as it materialises when the achieved return falls 

short of the guaranteed return and the shortfall must be covered by provisions made from the Company's own funds. Under 

the applicable Article 313 of ZPIZ-2N, adopted at the end of 2023, the shortfall must be irrevocably paid into the guarantee 

fund's cash account when the value of provisions for failure to meet the guaranteed return exceeds 20% of the Company’s 

available capital and simultaneously exceeds 10% of the actual net asset value of the fund in which the guaranteed return is 

provided. As a result of this legislative amendment, the risk has been significantly reduced. 

Financial risks 

The risks include in particular market, liquidity and credit risks. The management of financial risks is based on forecasting 

future cash flows, monitoring the Company's credit exposure and investing free financial resources based on the credit rating 

of investments, taking into account appropriate diversification, long-term profitability and the duration of investments in the 

case of investments in debt financial instruments. The Company invests the assets of the collective pension fund guarantee 

funds group in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Act (hereinafter: ZZavar-1), the Pension and Disability 

Insurance Act (hereinafter: ZPIZ-2), secondary legislation, pension schemes, fund rules and the investment policy. The 

guarantee funds are primarily exposed to investment and liquidity risks. The same applies to the Company’s own funds. 

In 2024, financial risks continued to be favourably influenced by reductions in key interest rates by major central banks, driven 

by contained inflation, which in the euro area is close to the target level, and by low but positive economic growth. For these 

reasons, the European Central Bank again lowered key interest rates in October and December. Nevertheless, markets are 

expecting further interest rate cuts in 2025. 

Due to all the measures implemented by the Company, debt investments, particularly within the guaranteed return fund, are 

now less sensitive to developments in the financial markets (a significant portion of debt securities is held in the AC portfolio, 

making it less susceptible to market fluctuations). The financial market still exhibits an increased impact of market risks 

(including the risk of changes in interest rates and credit spreads, which affects changes in bond prices and other investment 

financial instruments).  
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Insurance risk 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., does not pay out pension annuities, and the contracts concluded with members are 

defined as financial contracts; therefore, the Company is primarily not exposed to insurance risks. 

Insurance risks are, however, present in certain contracts concluded with members, specifically as a result of the guarantee 

of annuity calculation factors upon retirement. Due to amendments to pension schemes and the increase in expected life 

expectancy, the Company is gradually withdrawing the guaranteed annuity calculation factors for specific groups of insured 

persons. 

Operational risks 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., regularly monitors and mitigates the risk of loss arising from inadequate or failed internal 

processes, procedures, personnel or systems, as well as from external events and influences. Within the scope of operational 

risks, the Company pays particular attention to cyber security. The Company operates with a minimal number of employees, 

which means that staffing risks—such as illness or turnover—are significant and could potentially hinder the performance of 

certain functions. Special attention is therefore given to managing this risk. Through ongoing measures such as knowledge 

sharing among employees, staff rotation within departments, regular monitoring of conditions and staffing needs in key 

positions, continuous training, internal communication, work planning, and enabling VPN access and remote work, the 

Company ensures uninterrupted operations. 

Non-financial risks 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., classifies strategic risks, reputational risk, group risks and sustainability risks as non-

financial risks. 

As part of its strategic risk monitoring, the Company closely follows the risk of an irrevocable contribution to the guarantee 

fund with a guaranteed return. This risk is particularly relevant due to the importance of the guaranteed return mechanism: 

members who choose to save under the guaranteed return investment policy (which represents the majority) are entitled at 

any time to receive a payout equal to at least the guaranteed value of their assets. The system of provisions established in 

the event that the guaranteed asset value is not achieved is defined in Article 313 of the ZPIZ-2N. As already noted in the 

section on the risk of failing to meet the guaranteed return, this risk was reduced following the legislative amendment adopted 

at the end of 2023, both for pension companies in general and for Triglav PD in particular. 

Within the framework of strategic risks, the risk of asset transfers to other providers is also regularly monitored. The amount 

of asset transfers upon maturity, when a pension annuity is purchased, is expected, as Triglav PD does not pay out annuities. 

Members therefore transfer their assets to providers that do pay out annuities. The vast majority of transfers upon retirement 

still go to Zavarovalnica Triglav d.d. Members who began saving before 30 June 2006 had factors defined in their pension 

schemes, based on which their pension annuity is calculated at the time of retirement. As current annuity pricing is 

considerably less favourable, Triglav PD must cover the difference between the promised and the applicable rates at 

retirement. For this purpose, the Company monitors the percentage of members opting for annuities with a top-up. By the 

end of 2024, the percentage of such decisions decreased compared to the average of previous years and stood at 2.8 percent. 

On average, it amounts
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of members will choose an annuity with a top-up at retirement. 

Reputational risk is monitored primarily from the client perspective, using the Net Promoter Score (hereinafter: NPS). 

Monitoring this indicator ensures a good and comprehensive understanding of client needs, which is important for 

maintaining a competitive position. At the end of 2024, the cumulative NPS stood at 71 % (compared to 65% the previous 

year). The NPS improved year-on-year, mainly due to favourable developments in financial markets, which had a positive 

impact on members’ accumulated assets. 

Sustainability risks represent a set of risks for the Company arising from environmental, social and governance 

characteristics, which may negatively affect its financial position. Within environmental risks, the Company assesses that 

climate change risks may be of particular importance. These include transition risks and physical risks. Based on the 

geographical structure of investments, physical risks are currently assessed as not particularly significant. However, 

transition risks may be relevant both in terms of the Company's own assets and in terms of fund investments. According to 

the CPRS method, it has been determined that the Company's own assets are less exposed to climate-relevant sectors 

compared to the funds. Among the funds, the guaranteed return fund has a lower share of investments in climate-relevant 

sectors than the funds in which investment risk is borne by the insured. In terms of the funds, transition risk may also be 

relevant in terms of market sentiment. It is expected that increasing awareness of climate change will also raise client 

expectations in terms of investing in more sustainable and green investments. 

2.6 SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

Our business activities are oriented towards the transition to a climate-neutral and climate change-resilient circular economy. 

In carrying out our pension and investment activities, we will promote sustainable economic activities, energy efficiency and 

energy from renewable sources with the aim of reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 

Our approach to the integration of environmental, social and governance factors primarily takes into account EU legislation 

(Regulation on sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector - SFDR), as well as responsible investment 

methods arising from the United Nations Principles for Responsible Investment (UN PRI) and the United Nations Sustainable 

Development Goals (SDGs). 

As part of the Triglav Group (hereafter: the Group), Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. ensures sustainability in our supply 

chain through supplier evaluations and rigorously manages our environmental impact via comprehensive carbon footprint 

measurement (Scopes 1, 2 and 3). This measurement adheres to the Group's carbon footprint calculation methodology, 

clearly defining scope, boundaries, data handling and emission factors. In line with the European Green Deal, we plan to 

meet the target of carbon neutrality by 2050. 

We aim to increase the share of electricity supplied from renewable sources, reduce energy and paper consumption, and 

minimise waste per employee. We also plan to increase the share of electric and hybrid vehicles in the vehicle fleet. 

In asset management, our operations will be focused on transitioning to a climate-neutral and climate-change-
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ended 31 December 2024 resilient circular economy. The funds of the guarantee fund are invested in issuers that may have 

various sustainability impacts on the environment. The basis for measuring sustainability risks is the monitoring and 

calculation of the exposure of guarantee fund assets to individual issuers or their sustainability compliance. 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. considers and measures the main adverse impacts of its investment decisions on 

sustainability factors with a consolidated statement on the principal adverse impacts (PAI) of investment decisions on 

sustainability factors in accordance with Article 4 of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 (SFDR), which are calculated on the basis 

of the prescribed regulatory technical standards described in Table 1 of Annex 1 of the SFDR Delegated Regulation (EU) 

2022/1288. When making investment decisions, Triglav, pokojninska druzba d.d. identifies and prioritises the main adverse 

impacts in connection with sustainability indicators. 

We are establishing a comprehensive sustainability risk management system based on strategic guidelines in the field of 

sustainable development. We regularly upgrade our knowledge and improve the quality of data required for assessing 

harmfulness, both from an environmental and social perspective of each business segment. At the same time, we strive to 

encourage the Triglav Group's clients and partners towards sustainable development. 

By incorporating environmental, social and governance criteria we aim to achieve positive effects in Triglav, pokojninska 

druzba, d.d., in the Group, and in wider society. In the asset management process, we carefully examine sustainability 

aspects. Some economic activities have potentially greater harmful impacts on sustainability factors, therefore, at the level 

of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. and the Group, we have defined a list of sensitive economic activities that reflect our 

views on environmental protection, society and respect for human rights. 

The list includes the coal mining, thermal power plants, natural gas, crude oil, arms production, tobacco and gambling 

industries. In the investment area, we currently primarily implement a policy of exclusion or reduction of exposure to 

companies from these industries. The adopted guidelines for these industries are: 

• reducing exposure to issuers included on the Coal Exit List—i.e. companies where at least 20% of electricity 

production or revenue is derived from coal—to below one percent of the total value of our investments by 2025, a 

target we have already achieved, and a full exit from coal mining and thermal power generation by 2030; 

• an immediate cessation of investments in all those companies within the coal mining industry that are building new 

infrastructure or investing in additional capacity; 

• a prudent reduction in exposure to other sensitive economic activities (natural gas, oil, arms production, tobacco 

production, gambling). 

We act responsibly towards our employees, clients, partners and the wider community. We aim to maintain a high level of 

client (NFS) and employee satisfaction. To support better work-life balance, we have introduced a flexible work model and 

strengthened initiatives promoting health and well-being. We will continue to prioritise multidimensional diversity, 

intergenerational cooperation and employee development and education. We remain actively involved in socially 

responsible projects, partnerships and sponsorships. At the same time, we will support environmental and socially 

responsible projects that contribute to achieving the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). 

At Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., as a member of the Triglav Group, we recognise that by acting lawfully and  
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ended 31 December 2024 ethically, and by respecting the fundamental principles of corporate integrity, we maintain secure 

business operations, our reputation and our credibility. We also ensure the effective management of the Company and 

strengthen the mutual cooperation and trust of our shareholders, clients, suppliers, partners and other stakeholders. We 

strive to develop appropriate, transparent, clear and up-to-date codes of conduct and procedures that include mechanisms 

for ensuring the legality and compliance of our business activities. 

Detailed measures and procedures in the area of sustainability are described in our sustainable development policy, 

sustainable investment policy, the statement on principal adverse impacts of investment decisions on sustainability factors 

and the sustainable remuneration policy statement. All documents are published on our website. 

In accordance with Articles 19 and 29 of Directive 2013/34/EU, based on the CSRD Directive, ESRS standards, and the 

Companies Act (ZGD-1M), Triglav, pokojninska dru^ba, d.d. is not required to report independently on sustainability matters 

in its annual report, as sustainability information is included in the consolidated business report of the parent company, 

Zavarovalnica Triglav, d.d., which reports on sustainability at the Group level. Sustainability information is available in the 

consolidated business report of Zavarovalnica Triglav, d.d., with registered office at Miklosiceva cesta 19, 1000 Ljubljana, 

Slovenia, publicly available on its website at www.triglav.si. 

2.7 GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE PRINCIPLES OF THE CODE 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. adheres to the principles of the Corporate Governance Code for Unlisted Companies, 

which was jointly issued by the Chamber of Commerce and Industry of Slovenia, the Ministry of Economic Development 

and Technology and the Slovenian Directors' Association in May 2016. The Code is publicly available on the website of the 

Chamber of Commerce and Industry of Slovenia (www.gzs.si). 

The Company complies with the advanced level principles of the Corporate Governance Code for Unlisted Companies, with 

the exception of certain provisions: 

Point 2.7: The Company’s founding act sets out only the basic objectives. 

Point 2.8: The Company does not have a separate corporate governance policy document; the governance system is 

defined by the Articles of Association and the rules of procedure of the management and supervisory bodies. Point 2.8.4 is 

implemented. 

Point 2.9: The Company does not publish the rules of procedure of its bodies on its website, but they are available to 

stakeholders within the Company. 

Point 5.9: The chair and deputy chair of the supervisory body are elected equally from among all members and not 

exclusively from among representatives of capital. At least one third of the members of the Company's Supervisory Board 

represent the interests of the pension funds. 

Point 5.13: The Company does not have a liability insurance contract in place for the members of the supervisory body, but 

their liability is indirectly insured through the parent company. 

Point 7.3: The Company does not have a liability insurance contract in place for the members of the management or 

supervisory bodies, but their liability is indirectly insured through the parent company.

http://www.triglav.si/
http://www.gzs.si/
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Point 9.2: The Company did not have a formal training programme in place for members of the management or supervisory 

bodies for 2024. However, it offered training opportunities based on members' expressed needs and also provides 

onboarding for new members. 

As a member of the Triglav Group, the Company has also adopted the Triglav Group Code (the latest revision of which 

came into effect in June 2023), which is binding for the Company and which it fully adheres to. The Code sets out the main 

guidelines for the corporate governance of subsidiaries, taking into account the Company's long-term objectives, standards 

of conduct, responsible decision-making and business operations, where consistent implementation is monitored together 

with institutions at national and European levels The Code is publicly available on the website of Zavarovalnica Triglav, d.d. 

(http://www.triglav.eu). The governance guidelines are consistent with the vision, mission, values and strategies defined by 

the business plans and other documents of the Triglav Group and its subsidiaries. 

Triglav, pokojninska druiba, d.d. also operates in compliance with the requirements of the ZPIZ-2 and ZZavar-1, which 

impose additional obligations beyond those defined in the Code. 

MAIN CHARACTERISTICS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

The internal control system set out in the internal acts, along with the risk management strategy of Triglav, pokojninska 

druzba, d.d., both adopted by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board, define the key guidelines for the 

management of the pension company, taking into account its long-term objectives, the strategy of the Group and the 

Company and its core values. These rules form the basis for establishing and implementing a solid and reliable management 

system, which is built on effective risk management, compliance and the achievement of the Company’s business strategy. 

The establishment and maintenance of an appropriate system of internal controls and risk management is also mandated 

by the Companies Act (hereinafter: ZGD-1). Risk management is one of the most important aspects of the operations of 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. An effective risk management process is essential for achieving its strategic objectives. 

The Company is exposed to risks arising from the provision of pension fund management services in accordance with the 

Pension and Disability Insurance Act (ZPIZ-2) and the Insurance Act (ZZavar-1). The Insurance Supervision Agency, as the 

supervisory authority for pension companies, also issues secondary regulations related to internal controls and risk 

management, with the Company adhering to the applicable laws and secondary regulations in force at any given time The 

Company has established its system of internal controls and risk management in line with applicable legislation (key function 

holders have been appointed), in a manner that enables optimal management of the Company and ensures compliance 

with regulatory requirements. The system includes: 

- a clearly defined organisational structure, which was revised at the end of 2021 and fully implemented in 2022, 

with a well-defined and transparent system of competencies, responsibilities and authorisations; 

- effective procedures for ongoing monitoring, error prevention and the identification, assessment, management 

and monitoring of risks to which pension companies are or may be exposed in their operations; 

- an appropriate internal control system, which includes adequate administrative and accounting procedures 

(reporting, operational procedures, limits to restrict exposure to risks and physical controls); 

- a system to ensure compliance of operations with legal requirements. 

The key functions—risk management, actuarial function, compliance monitoring, and internal audit—ensure

http://www.triglav.eu/
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ended 31 December 2024 continuous and comprehensive oversight of the Company’s operations within their respective 

competences and responsibilities. Their purpose is to verify and assess whether the Company's risk management 

processes, compliance, control procedures and corporate governance are appropriate. In addition to the key function 

holders the Company's support services are also part of the Company's support functions. 

A significant part of risk management continues to focus on limiting market risks, particularly by maintaining low exposure 

to equity investments and reallocating assets into debt investments with appropriate maturity (also depending on the 

valuation method or accounting classification). In view of ongoing risks arising from elevated inflation, the Company will 

continue to follow the adopted strategic guidelines to mitigate the impact on its operations. 

The Company concluded 2024 in a strong capital position, and liquidity risk also decreased, which is particularly positive 

from the perspective of market liquidity risk. This type of risk can arise due to various geopolitical tensions and a reduced 

risk appetite among investors. 

GOVERNING BODIES OF TRIGLAV, POKOJNINSKA DRUZBA, D.D. 

The pension company operates under a two-tier management system. The governing bodies (General Meeting, 

Management Board and Supervisory Board) operate in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, the Company’s 

Articles of Association, and their own rules of procedure. 

GENERAL MEETING 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., is a joint-stock company owned by a single shareholder - Zavarovalnica Triglav, d.d., 

which is also recorded in the court register in accordance with Article 206 of the Companies Act (ZGD-1). The shareholder 

exercises its rights in matters concerning the pension company at the General Meeting of the pension company. The 

competences and functioning of the General Meeting are defined by the Companies Act and the Company’s Articles of 

Association. 

Each fully paid ordinary share grants one vote at the General Meeting. The General Meeting is usually convened by the 

Management Board but may also be convened by the Supervisory Board. It must be convened at least once annually within 

eight months after the end of the financial year, or whenever it is beneficial or necessary for the interests of the pension 

company. The General Meeting is typically held at the Company's registered office but may also take place elsewhere in 

the Republic of Slovenia, as determined by the convening body. The General Meeting decides on all matters within its 

competence, in accordance with applicable regulations and the Company's Articles of Association. It cannot decide on 

matters of business management unless explicitly provided by law. 

In 2024, two General Meetings were held: the 33rd on 26 April 2024 and the 34th on 23 December 2024. 

At the 33rd General Meeting of Shareholders, the following presentations were delivered: the audited annual report of 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. for the financial year that ended on 31 December 2023; the audited report on relations with 

related parties; the annual report on the internal audit function for 2023; the Supervisory Board’s report for 2023; and 

information on the remuneration of the Management and Supervisory Board
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members in 2023. The General Meeting also adopted a resolution on the appropriation of the 2023 accumulated profit and 

granted discharge to the Management and Supervisory Boards of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. The General Meeting 

appointed the following members of the Supervisory Board for a four-year term starting on 30 April 2024: Miha Grilc and 

Miran Kalcic as representatives of shareholder interests, and Vesna Vodopivec, Borut Simonic, and Helena Lokaras 

representatives of the interests of the pension funds. 

At the 34th General Meeting of Shareholders, the shareholder was informed about the remuneration policy and the rules 

governing the remuneration and other rights of members of the Management Board. A resolution was adopted on the amount 

of base remuneration for members of the Supervisory Board. The General Meeting was also informed of the resignation of 

Supervisory Board member Natasa Veselinovic in October 2024. 

The right to participate in the General Meeting is granted to shareholders who are entered as holders of shares in the share 

register maintained by the Central Securities Clearing Corporation - KDD at the close of business on the seventh day prior 

to the General Meeting. Shareholders may exercise their rights at the General Meeting in person, through a legal 

representative, or through a proxy. The authorisation to act on behalf of a shareholder must be demonstrated by submitting 

the appropriate documentation to the pension company. 

MANAGEMENT BOARD 

An individual may be appointed as President or Member of the Management Board of the Company if they meet the 

requirements stipulated by the Pension and Disability Insurance Act (ZPIZ-2), the Insurance Act (ZZavar-1), the Companies 

Act (ZGD-1) and the Company's internal regulations. The Company's Fit and proper policy for the Management and 

Supervisory Board members of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., precisely defines the criteria that individual Management 

Board members must meet regarding their fitness and propriety. It also outlines the procedure for conducting the fit and 

proper assessment, which must be carried out prior to appointment, taking into account the Company's diversity policy. This 

policy also governs the criteria and procedures for assessing the fitness and propriety of the Management Board as a 

collective body. 

COMPOSITION AND APPOINTMENT OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, the Management Board of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. 

comprises a minimum of two and a maximum of three members, one of whom serves as President. The Management Board 

is appointed by the Supervisory Board. As of 31 December 2024, the Management Board consisted of the President and 

two members. The President of the Management Board is responsible for leading and organising the Company's operations, 

coordinating the work among Management Board members, overseeing the Company's strategic development, marketing 

and sales activities, internal audit and human resources. One Management Board member is responsible for risk monitoring 

and management, ensuring regulatory compliance (including anti-money laundering and counter-terrorism financing), 

pension legislation reform, and general as well as specialised legal matters. Another Management Board member oversees 

asset management, information technology, accounting, actuarial services, and the management of insured persons' 

individual accounts. 

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s management board consisted of three members. President of the Management 

Board Aljosa Ursic and Management Board Member Peter Krassnig began their new terms on 1 January 2021, lasting until 

31 December 2025. Management Board Member Vida Seme Hocevar began her new
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ended 31 December 2024 term on 7 December 2023, which runs until 7 December 2028. 

As at 31 December 2024, the composition of the Company’s Management Board (unchanged from the previous year) was 
as follows: 

- Aljosa Ur§i6, President of the Management Board, 

- Peter Krassnig, Member of the Management Board, and 

- Vida Seme Hocevar, Member of the Management Board. 

SUPERVISORY BOARD 

The Supervisory Board performs its supervisory function and oversees the management of the Company's operations with 

full responsibility. It comprises a minimum of six and a maximum of eight members, one-third of whom represent the interests 

of the pension funds. The members of the Supervisory Board are elected by the General Meeting of the Company. Those 

representing the interests of the pension funds are elected by the General Meeting upon the proposal of the pension fund 

members. The Supervisory Board may establish procedures and methods for determining candidates from among the 

members representing the interests of the pension funds to be proposed for election at the General Meeting. Supervisory 

Board members are appointed for a four-year term and may be re-elected without limitations. Both the Supervisory Board 

as a collective body and its individual members are subject to the fitness and propriety criteria defined in the Fit and proper 

policy for the Management and Supervisory Board members of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. The fit and proper 

assessment is conducted prior to appointment. 

As at 31 December 2024, the Supervisory Board operated in the following seven-member composition: 

- Blaz Jakid, Chair, 

- Blaz Kmetec, Deputy Chair, and members 

- Miha Grilec, 

- Miran Kaldic, 

- Vesna Vodopivec, 

- Borut Simonid, and 

- Helena Lokar. 

The term of office for Chair Blaz Jakic runs until 18 February 2027. Following the resignation of Natasa Veselinovid in 

October 2024, Blaz Kmetec was appointed Deputy Chair on 13 November 2024; his term of office runs until 25 September 

2025. The terms of office for the remaining Supervisory Board members run until 30 April 2025. 

The Supervisory Board comprises both capital representatives and representatives of the pension funds. As at 31 

December 2024, the members representing the interests of the pension funds were Vesna Vodopivec, Borut Simonid and 

Helena Lokar. 

SUPERVISORY BOARD COMMITTEES IN 2024 

Committees or working bodies of the Supervisory Board may prepare draft resolutions, ensure their implementation and 

perform other specialised tasks.  
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ended 31 December 2024 In 2024, the following Supervisory Board committees were active: the Audit Committee and the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The main tasks and competences of the Audit Committee are defined by the Companies Act (ZGD-1), the Rules of 

Procedure of the Supervisory Board, resolutions of the Supervisory Board and the Rules of Procedure of the Audit 

Committee. 

The tasks of the Audit Committee are: 

- to monitor the financial reporting process and prepare recommendations and proposals to ensure its 

integrity, 

- to monitor the effectiveness and efficiency of the Company's internal control, internal audit and risk 

management systems, 

- to monitor the quarterly internal audit reports, which include internal audit recommendations and the 

implementation thereof, 

- to review the risk management and compliance reports of the Company, 

- to monitor the statutory audit of the annual financial statements, in particular the effectiveness of the 

statutory audit, taking into account all findings and conclusions of the competent supervisory authority in 

accordance with the Auditing Act, 

- to review and monitor the independence of the auditor of the Company's annual report, particularly with 

regard to the provision of additional non-audit services, 

- to be responsible for the auditor selection process and to propose to the Supervisory Board the candidate 

for appointment as auditor of the Company's annual report, 

- to supervise the integrity of the financial information provided by the Company, 

- to cooperate with the auditor in the performance of the audit of the Company’s annual report, in particular 

through mutual exchange of information on key audit matters, 

- to assess the composition of the annual report, including the preparation of a proposal for the Supervisory 

Board, 

- to review the draft management representation letter, 

- to participate in the identification of key audit areas, 

- to participate in the preparation of the contract between the auditor and the Company, whereby all 

contractual provisions restricting the General Meeting’s choice of auditor are prohibited and void, 

- to report to the Supervisory Board on the outcome of the statutory audit, including an explanation of how 

the statutory audit contributed to the integrity of financial reporting and the role of the Audit Committee in 

that process, 

- to cooperate with the internal auditor, particularly by exchanging information on key internal audit matters, 

whereby the Audit Committee may request additional information from the internal audit beyond that 

contained in the annual internal audit report, 

- to review internal audit acts and the rules of procedure of the internal audit and to make related proposals 

to the Supervisory Board,  
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risks and the financial resources for its implementation and to propose its approval to the Supervisory Board, 

- to prepare a budget proposal for the training of the external member of the Audit Committee for the 

Supervisory Board, 

- to cooperate with relevant regulators in cases specified by law and to address decisions concerning the 

appointment, dismissal and remuneration of the head of internal audit and to submit a proposal for 

consent in this regard to the Supervisory Board, and 

- to carry out other tasks defined by the Articles of Association or by resolution of the Supervisory Board. 

Until October 2024, the Supervisory Board’s Audit Committee consisted of four members. Following the 

resignation of Supervisory Board member Natasa Veselinovic in October 2024, the Committee continued with 

three members and was composed as follows as at 31 December 2024: 

- Miha Grilec, Chair, 

- Blaz Kmetec, Deputy Chair, 

- Marija Cerjak, external independent expert. 

Marija Cerjak, as an external independent expert, was appointed by a resolution of the Supervisory Board on 14 

March 2024. Her term of office runs until 30 April 2028, the same as the terms held by the members of the 

Supervisory Board of the same composition. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The main tasks and competences of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are defined by a resolution of 

the Supervisory Board and the provisions of the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Board. 

The tasks and competences of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, as determined by the resolution of 

the Supervisory Board, are: 

- preparing proposals for criteria for membership on the Management Board, 

- preparing proposals for the remuneration policy, reimbursements and other benefits of 

Management Board members, 

- fit and proper assessment of members of the Management and Supervisory Boards in accordance with the 

Fit and proper policy for members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of Triglav, pokojninska 

druzba, d.d., and 

- other tasks in accordance with the resolutions of the Supervisory Board. 

As of 31 December 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, consisting of three members, was 

composed of: 

- Blaz Jakic, Chairman, and members 

- Miran Kalcic and 

- Miha Grilec.
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DIVERSITY POLICY 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. implements a diversity policy in its management and supervisory bodies in 

accordance with the Diversity Policy adopted by both the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of the 

Company. This policy is concretely reflected in the composition of both the Supervisory Board and the Management 

Board, as both bodies ensure a diverse membership with a suitable range of competencies, professional knowledge, 

skills and experience necessary for the long-term effective operation of the Company, successful implementation of 

its strategy and sustainability goals, as well as sound and balanced decisionmaking, risk management and increased 

efficiency and performance. The Diversity Policy defines the Company’s commitment to considering professional 

qualifications, experience, skills, knowledge, competencies, gender and age of candidates. It also sets out 

objectives, responsibilities, the method of implementation and the reporting on the results achieved under the policy. 

In doing so, the Company ensures an appropriate framework and integrates these elements into the substantive 

basis and criteria used in the selection procedures for members of the Supervisory Board, its committees and the 

Management Board, together with the Fit and proper policy for the Management and Supervisory Board members 

of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. 

Candidates for positions in the management and supervisory bodies may include individuals: 

- with various types of education obtained through accredited educational programmes; 

- with diverse professional profiles, i.e., work experience and skills from different professional fields 

necessary for an in-depth understanding of the Company's activities and the risks to which the 

Company is exposed; 

- who represent both genders and are of different ages, nationalities, races, religions, beliefs, etc.; 

- who have not been convicted by a final judgment of economic offences as specified in Articles 225 

to 250 of the Criminal Code; 

- who do not have conflicts of interest as defined by the Companies Act (ZGD-1). 

The final selection of a member of the management or supervisory body is made from among the candidates who 

best meet the criteria of diversity and suitability. If a candidate of the underrepresented gender is not selected, or if 

the pool of candidates of both genders and of different ages is too limited, deviation from the principle of diversity is 

permitted in order to ensure the uninterrupted functioning of the management or supervisory body. The objective 

remains that both genders are represented in both governing bodies.
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REMUNERATION OF MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES 

Members of the Supervisory Board and members of the Supervisory Board's committees are not entitled to meeting 

fees but receive a single payment for performing their duties. The amount of these payments is determined by the 

General Meeting. Members of the Supervisory Board and members of the Supervisory Board's committees are also 

entitled to reimbursement of travel and other expenses for attending meetings. The level of the Supervisory Board's 

remuneration is reported in the financial statements. 

The remuneration of the Management Board members consists of a fixed and a variable component, as stipulated 

in the employment contracts of the Management Board members and in the annexes to these employment contracts, 

which adhere to the Rules on the remuneration and other rights of Management Board members, with which the 

General Meeting is acquainted. The employment contracts and annexes are concluded between the individual 

Management Board members and the Supervisory Board, and they also specify reimbursements and benefits. When 

concluding contracts and annexes with the Management Board members, the Supervisory Board is represented by 

the chair of the Supervisory Board. The level of the Management Board's remuneration is reported in the financial 

statements. 

SUSTAINABILITY ASPECTS OF INVESTMENT POLICY 

The sustainability aspect of the investment policy includes a description of sustainability risks and the transparency 

of adverse impacts on sustainability. At Triglav, pokojninska druZba, d.d., we make investment decisions responsibly. 

In addition to focusing on maximum security and the long-term growth of assets under management, we also take 

sustainability into account in our investment decisions. Environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors are 

integrated into our investment processes with the aim of achieving long-term profitable investing. Sustainability risk 

refers to an environmental, social or governance event or circumstance that, if it occurs, may have a significant 

actual or potential negative impact on the value of an investment. The effects of sustainable business practices are 

assessed quantitatively where possible, and otherwise using qualitative criteria and assessments of sustainability 

risks. Responses are defined for both opportunities and threats. 

Ljubljana, 31 March 2025 

AljoSa LWty prads^niKipfave / 

/  
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2.8 LOOKING AHEAD 

In 2023, the market operating conditions stabilised, allowing us to dedicate ourselves more fully to planned strategic 

activities and our clients. 

Already in 2024, the Management Board of Zavarovalnica Triglav made a significant decision to continue the 

consolidation processes for the centralisation of the management of supplementary pension insurance guarantee 

funds within the Triglav Group. To this end, we have already begun preparations for the implementation of the 

centralisation process, which will be fully completed in 2025. The process will encompass both the physical merging 

of supplementary pension insurance guarantee funds during the savings period and the unification of their 

management. In addition to Triglav, pokojninska druZba, d.d., employees of Zavarovalnica Triglav, d.d., and Triglav 

Skladi, d.o.o., are also involved in the procedures. Due to the complexity of the implementation, experts from various 

fields are collaborating, including legal, information technology, life insurance, accounting, actuarial science, and 

investment monitoring and management. The completion of the centralisation is planned for the second half of 2025. 

Based on the implemented centralisation, we will further optimise the Company's operations, thereby opening up 

new opportunities for the development of pension insurance. Within the Triglav Group, the focus on clients and 

products will be further strengthened, creating favourable conditions for further innovation and growth. At the same 

time, centralisation will enable us to better adapt to anticipated changes within the pension reform framework and 

proactively shape solutions for future generations of policyholders. 

Activities within the Triglav Group in the Adria region are also continuing, where pension companies in the Republika 

Srpska and the Republic of North Macedonia, as well as in regions where the Triglav Group is not yet present in the 

field of supplementary pension insurance, are already operating successfully. 

We will also participate in the area of amending pension legislation, as the Government of the Republic of Slovenia 

has announced that it will prepare a draft pension reform in 2025. The draft is currently still being coordinated with 

social partners, and we will participate in the public consultation expected to take place in the spring of 2025. In 

addition to significant improvements to the regulation in the field of voluntary supplementary pension insurance within 

the pension reform, we will also propose changes in the area of the regulation of pension annuities. 

We will continue our activities related to environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors, as ESG considerations 

are expanding from the investment field to virtually all areas of the Company’s operations. 

2.9 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

On 10 January 2025, Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d. d., applied to the Insurance Agency of Republika Srpska 

(AZORS) for authorisation to increase its shareholding in EDPF Banja Luka from the current 34% to 67%. Following 

a request for additional documentation received on 10 February 2025, which was promptly provided, we obtained 

final approval for the increased stake from the AZORS regulator on 12 March 2025. Subsequently, on 24 March 

2025, the Bosnia and Herzegovina Competition Protection Council (Konkurencijsko vijece BiH) issued its opinion, 

stating that the concentration must be reported in accordance with the BiH Law on Competition. We anticipate the 

successful completion of all necessary procedures and the acquisition of the increased stake by the end of 2025.  
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3 ELECTED PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Table 11: Selected performance indicators 
 IN EUR INDICATORS 2024 2023 Index 

 Gross written premium in the current year 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 

 Gross written premium in the previous year 38,254,036 35,401,117 108.06 

1 Growth in gross written premium 105.09 108.06 97.25 

 Net written premium 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 

 Gross written premium 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 

2 

Net written premium as a % of gross written premium 100 100 100.00 

 Gross claims in the current year 19,861,974 18,789,184 105.71 

 Gross claims in the previous year 18,789,184 19,742,808 95.17 

3 Movement in gross claims 105.71 95.17 111.07 

 Gross claims 19,861,974 18,789,184 105.71 

 Gross written premiums 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 

4 Claims ratio 49.41 49.12 100.59 

 Operating costs 4,265,173 3,781,684 112.79 

 Gross written premiums 40,202,041 38.254.036 105.09 

5 

Operating costs as a % of gross written premium 10.61 9.89 107.32 

 Acquisition costs 131,819 139,529 94.47 

 Gross written premiums 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 

6 

Acquisition costs as a % of gross written premium 0.33 0.36 89.90 

 Net claims* change in claims reserves 19,861,974 18,789,184 105.71 

 Net insurance premium income 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 

7 Net claims ratio 49.41 49.12 100.59 

 Operating costs 4,265,173 3,781,684 112.79 

 Net insurance premium income 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 

9 Expense ratio 10.61 9.89 107.32 

 Claims paid* change in technical provisions 68,394,847 54,803,029 124.80 

 Net premiums written 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 

10 Efficiency ratio 170.13 143.26 118.75 

 Return on investment 39,311,267 22,185,135 177.20 

 (Investment assets at the beginning of the year* Investment assets at 

the end of the year)/2 

488,922,679 438,142,153 111.59 

11 Investment income as % of average investment assets 8.04 5.06 158.79 

 Return on investment of bond funds with guaranteed return 12,065,629 11,327,674 106.51 

 

(Investment assets of guarantee fund at the beginning of the year* 

investment assets of guarantee fund at the end of the year)/2 
322,030,235 306,500,968 105.07 

11.1 Investment income as a % of average investment assets 3.75 3.70 101.38 

 

Return on investment of equity and mixed funds - policyholder bears the 

investment risk 
25,778,106 9,506,034 271.18 

 

(Investment assets of guarantee fund at the beginning of the year* 

investment assets of guarantee fund at the end of the year)/2 
100,769,667 69,715,360 144.54 

11.2 Investment income as a % of average investment assets 25.58 13.64 187.61 
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Return on investments not financed from technical provisions 1,467,532 1,351,428 108.59 

 

(Investments assets not financed from technical provisions, at the 

beginning of the year + investment assets at the end of the year)/2 
66,122,777 61,925,825 106.78 

11.3 Investment income as a % of average investment assets 2.22 2.18 101.70 

 
Net claims provisions 0 0 - 

 Net insurance premium income 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 

12 

Net claims provisions as a % of net insurance premium income 0 0 - 

 Gross profit or loss for the year 3,803,677 4,599,442 82.70 

 

Net written premium 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 

13 

Gross profit or loss for the year as a % of net written premium 9.46 12.02 78.69 

 Gross profit or loss for the year 3,803,677 4,599,442 82.70 

 

(Capital at the beginning of the year+ Capital at the end of the year)/2 

65,706,887 60,540,857 108.53 

14 Gross profit or loss for the year as a % of average capital 

5.79 7.60 76.20 

 Gross profit or loss for the year 3,803,677 4,599,442 82.70 

 

(Assets at the beginning of the year+ Assets at the end of the year)/2 

509,127,285 463,884,128 109.75 

15 Gross profit or loss for the year as a % of average assets 

0.75 0.99 75.35 

 Gross profit or loss for the year 3,803,677 4,599,442 82.70 

 Number of shares 123,447 123,447 100.00 

16 Gross profit or loss for the year per share 30,8 37,3 82.70 

 

Net written premium 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 
 

Average capital + Average technical provisions 503,092,397 455,637,418 110.42 

18 Net written premium in relation to average capital and technical 

provisions 
7.99 8.40 95.18 

 Average net technical provisions 437,385,509 395,096,561 110.70 

 Net insurance premium income 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 

19 
Average net technical provisions in relation to net insurance 

premium income 
1,087.97 1,032.82 105.34 

 

Equity 68,092,732 63,321,043 107.54 
 

Liabilities 535,422,718 482,831,853 110.89 

20 Equity in relation to liabilities 12.72 13.11 96.97 

 Net technical provisions 461,828,915 412,942,104 111.84 

 
Liabilities 535,422,718 482,831,853 110.89 

21 Net technical provisions in relation to liabilities 86.26 85.53 100.85 

 Net technical provisions for life insurance 461,828,915 412,942,104 111.84 

 Net technical provisions 461,828,915 412,942,104 111.84 

22 

Net mathematical provisions in relation to net technical provisions 

100 100 100.00 

 Gross written premium 40,202,041 38,254,036 105.09 

 Average number of full-time employees 26 26 102.08 

23 Gross written premium in relation to number of full-time employees 

1,534,429 1,490,417 102.95 

The table above shows the indicators for the relevant financial year and the preceding financial year. The indicators are calculated based on the data from Annex 3 of the 

Decision on the annual report and quarterly financial statements of insurance companies, which does not form part of the financial report prepared in accordance with 

IFRS. The serial numbers of the indicators correspond to those in the same Annex 3; the indicator  



Triglav PD, d.d. 
Revidirano letno porocilo za poslovno leto, 
ki se je zak.jucilo 31.12.2024 

34 

 

 

Triglav PD, d.d. 

Revidirano letno porocilo za poslovno leto, ki se je 

zak.jucilo 31.12.2024 under item no. 8 is calculated only for non-life insurance, and the indicator under item no. 17 refers to reinsurance receivables and technical 

provisions attributable to reinsurers, and are therefore not shown. 

4 STATEMENT OF THE ACCOUNTABILITY OF THE MANAGEMENT 

BOARD 

The Management Board approves the financial statements of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. on pages 33 to 38 for the 

year ended 31 December 2024, the notes to the financial statements on pages 71 to 94 and the accounting policies applied 

on pages 41 to 55 of this Annual Report. 

The Management Board confirms that the appropriate accounting policies were consistently applied in the preparation of 

the financial statements, that the accounting estimates were made on a prudent and reasonable basis and that the financial 

statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's assets and of the results of its operations for 2024. 

The Management Board is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Report and for keeping proper accounting records, 

for taking appropriate steps to safeguard the Company's property and other assets and certifies that the financial statements, 

including the notes thereto, have been prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with applicable law and 

International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union. 

The Company's operations may be subject to examination by the tax authorities at any time within five years from the date 

on which the tax became chargeable, which may give rise to additional liability to pay tax, default interest and penalties in 

respect of corporation tax or other taxes and duties. The Company's Management Board is not aware of any circumstances 

that could give rise to a material liability in this respect. 

Ljubljana, 31 March 2025 

AljoSa UrSty preds^dniK/jprave / /  Peter Krassnig 

Lian uprave 
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5 FINANCIAL REPORT 

5.1 SEPARATE STATEMENTS 

5.1.1 SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

IN EUR Notes 31.12. 2024 31.12. 2023 

ASSETS    

Intangible assets 52.4.1.1 50,904 78,644 

Property, plant and equipment 52.4.1.2 440,170 618,095 

Investments in associates 52.4.1.3 561,985 489,221 

Financial investments 52.4.1.4 68,084,778 64,160,777 

- af fair value through other 

 

46,761,933 33,627,169 

comprehensive Income 
   

- at amortised cost  14,916,398 18,204,055 

- at fair value through profit or loss 
 

6,406,446 12,329,553 

Assets deriving from financial contracts 5.2.4.1.5 464,163,329 414,491,103 

Receivables and other assets 52.4.1.6 468,404 451,610 

Cash and cash equivalents 5.2.4.1.7 1,653,148 2,542,401 

Total assets  535,422,718 482,831,853 

EQUITY    

Share capital 5.2 4.1.9.1 25,756,808 25,756,808 

Capital reserves 5.2 4.1.9.2 26,584,324 26,584,324 

Reserves from profit 5.2 4.1.9.2 2,380,548 932,346 

Changes in fair value reserve 5.2 4.1.9.3 337,226 -630,787 

Carry-forward of net profit from previous years* 5.2 4.1.9.4 10,678,352 6,078,910 

Net profit for the year 5.2 4.1.9.5 2,355,474 4,599,442 

Total equity 
 

68,092,732 63,321,043 

LIABILITIES    

Liabilities under financial contracts 52.4 1.10.1 464,163,329 414,491,103 

Provisions for employees 5.2.4 1.10.2 423,223 347,356 

Other provisions 5.2.4.1.10.3 1,928,526 3,639,038 
Trade and other payables 5.2.4 1.10.4 814,908 1,033,312 

Total liabilities 
 

467,329,986 419,510,810 

Total equity and liabilities 
 

535,422,718 482,831,853 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts are an integral part of the financial statements.
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5.1.2 SEPARATE INCOME STATEMENT 

IN EUR Notes 2024 2023 

Operating revenues 5.2.4.2.1 4,876,637 4,396,642 

Entry commission revenue 
 

406,032 391,852 

Exit commission revenue 
 

93,554 85,650 

Management fee revenue 
 

4,377,051 3,919,141 

Net operating expenses 5.2.4.22 4,265,173 3,781,684 

Depreciation 
 

268,596 282,697 

Labour costs 
 

2,241,108 1,952,372 

Other operating expenses 

 

1,755,468 1,546,615 

Other revenues 5.2.4.23 1,731,456 3,788,721 

Other expenses 5.2.4.2.4 6,776 1,155,665 

Operating result 
 

2,336,145 3,248,014 

Investment income 5.2.4.2.5 1,741,109 1,411,433 

Interest income 
 

1,265,726 1,049,010 

Dividend income 
 

78,068 92,389 

Gains on equity investments in associates 
 

72,763 48,574 

Gains on disposals of investments 
 

64,984 67,029 

Revaluation income 
 

255,132 154,431 

Income from other investments 
 

4,435 0 

Investment charges 5.2.4.26 273,577 60,005 

Revaluation financial expenses 
 

5,357 38,687 

Losses on disposal of investments 
 

268,220 21,318 

Investment result 5.2.4.2.7 1,467,532 1,351,428 

NET PROFIT OR LOSS 5.2.4.1.9.5 3,803,677 4,599,442 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts are an integral part of the financial statements.
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5.1.3 SEPARATE STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME 

IN EUR Notes 2024 2023 

Net operating result 5.2.4.1.9.5 3,803,677 4,599,442 

Net gains/losses on remeasuring a financial asset, measured at fair 
value through comprehensive income 

 968,012 
960,930 

Items that may subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss 5.2.4.4 968,012 960,930 

- Gains/losses recognised in the fair value reserve  

762,758 1,014,428 

- Impairment due to expected losses 
 

394 -7,342 

- Transfer of gains/losses from the fair value reserve from fair 

value gains/losses on disposals 

 

204,860 -46,156 

Other comprehensive income 
 

968,012 960,930 
 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 5.2.4.4 4,771,689 5,560,372 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts are an integral part of the financial statements  
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5.1.4 SEPARATE CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
 

IN EUR Notes 2024 2023 

A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5.2.4.5   

a) Items of income statement 
 

975,846 941,274 
 

Investment income other than financial (excluding revaluation) 
 

64,984 67,029 
 Operating and other income (excluding revaluation and net of 

provision releases) and financial income from trade receivables: 

 

5,182,483 4,400,464 
 

Net operating expenses (excluding depreciation and amortisation) 

 

-3,996,576 -3,498,987 
 

Expenditure on investments other than financial (net of revaluation) 
 

-268,220 -21,318 
 

Other operating expenses (net of increase in provisions) 
 

-6,825 -5,915 

b) Changes in items in the statement of financial position 
 

-432,973 -720,383 
 

Opening less closing trade receivables and deferred costs and 
accrued revenues 
Closing less opening trade payables and accrued costs and deferred 
revenues 

 

-16,794 

-416,179 

-56,245 

-664,139 

c) CASH FLOW  542,872 220,890 

B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 5.2.4.5   

a) Receipts 
 

10,797,952 6,381,623 
 

Interest receipts 
 

1,258,951 1,040,905 
 Receipts from dividends and shares from other people's profits  78,068 92,389 

 

Receipts arising from the decrease of financial investments measured 
at amortised cost 

 

6,175,050 0 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

 

3,285,884 5,248,328 

b) Expenditure 
 

-12.230.078 -9,200,618 
 Capital expenditure  -62,931 -118,412 

 

Expenditure due to increase in investments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

 

-12.167.146 -5,711,284 

 

Expenditure due to increase in investments at fair value through profit 
or loss 

 

0 -3,370,923 

c) Cash flow 
 

-1,432,125 -2,818,996 

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

a) Receipts 
 

0 0 
 Receipts from paid-in capital  0 0 

b) Expenditure  0 0 

c) Cash flow  0 0 

 NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  

-889,253 -2,598,105 

 

Opening balance 

 

2,542,401 5,140,506 
 Closing balance  1,653,148 2,542,401 

 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts are an integral part of the financial statements
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5.1.5 SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

5.1.5.1 SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY IN 2024 

IN EUR 

Share 

capital 

Capital 

reserves 
Reserves from profit 

Valuation effect of Valuation effect of 
Carry-forward of 

net profit previous 

years 

Net profit or loss 

for the current 

year 

Total capital debt securities - 

FVOCI 

equity instruments 

at FV via OCI 

   Legal Statutory      

Balance as at 31.12.2023 25,756,809 26,584,323 257,270 675,075 -709,458 78,671 6,078,910 4,599,442 63,321,043 

Balance as at 01.01.2024 25,756,809 26,584,323 257,270 675,075 -709,458 78,671 6,078,910 4,599,442 63,321,043 

Comprehensive income of the 

reporting period 0 0 0 0 967,393 619 0 3,803,677 4,771,689 

a) Entry of net profit for the reporting 

period 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,803,677 3,803,677 

b) Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 0 967,393 619 0 0 968,012 

Reallocations 0 0 0 1,448,203 0 0 4,599,442 -6,047,645 0 

a) Allocation of net profit to 
retained earnings 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,599,442 -4,599,442 0 

b) Allocation of net profit or loss 
to profit reserve 

0 0 0 1,448,203 0 0 0 -1,448,203 0 

Balance as at 31.12.2024 25,756,809 26,584,323 257,270 2,123,278 257,935 79,290 10,678,353 2,355,474 68,092,732 

 

Balance sheet profit       10,678,353 2,355,474 13,033,826 
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5.1.5.2 SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY IN 2023 

Valuation effect of Valuation effect of Carry-forward Net profit or 

Reserves from profit debt securities - equity instruments of net profit loss for the FVOCI at FV via OCI

 . t 
previous years current year 

IN EUR 

Legal Statutory 

Balance as at 31.12.2022 25,756,809 26,584,323 257,270 675,075 -1,591,716 0 10,744,283 -4,665,373 57,760,671 

Balance as at 01.01.2023 25,756,809 26,584,323 257,270 675,075 -1,591,716 0 10,744,283 -4,665,373 57,760,671 

Comprehensive income of the 

reporting period 0 0 0 0 882,259 78,671 0 4,599,442 5,560,372 

a) Entry of net profit for the reporting 

period 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,599,442 4,599,442 

b) Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 0 882,259 78,671 0 0 960,930 

Reallocations 0 0 0 0 0 0 -4,665,373 4,665,373 0 
a) Allocation of net profit to retained 

earnings 0 0 0 0 0 0 -4,665,373 4,665,373 0 

Balance as at 31.12.2023 25,756,809 26,584,323 257,270 675,075 -709,458 78,671 6,078,910 4,599,442 63,321,043 

 

6,078,910 4,599,442 10,678,353 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts are an integral part of the financial statements.

Share Capital 

capital reserves 

Total capital 

Balance sheet profit 
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5.2 NOTES 

5.2.1 GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY 

5.2.1.1 ESTABLISHMENT AND OWNERSHIP 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. was entered in the court register at the District Court in Ljubljana on 19 December 

2000 by decision Srg 2000/15021 under entry number 1/34008/00. 

Name: Triglav, pokojninska druttba, d.d. 

Abbreviated name: Triglav PD, d.d. 

Headquarters: Dunajska 22, Ljubljana, Slovenia 

On 14 September 2018, Zavarovalnica Triglav, the parent company of the Triglav Group, signed an agreement with 

Nova Ljubljanska banka to acquire a 28.13% ownership stake in Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. (then still operating 

as Skupna pokojninska druzba d.d., Ljubljana), thereby becoming its sole owner. 

5.2.1.2 ACTIVITY 

The Company was established to provide supplementary voluntary pension insurance in accordance with the Pension 

and Disability Insurance Act. Its pension fund management activities are registered in the Court Register. The activities 

of the pension company include:: a) carrying out the pension fund management business, 

- managing the assets of the pension fund, 

- administrative services related to the operations of the pension fund, 

- marketing of pension funds, 

b) providing pension annuity payment services. 

As the manager, the Company derives the bulk of its revenues from management, entry and exit fees. The Company 

does not provide pension annuity payment services. 

As the Company was established under the provisions of the Pension and Disability Insurance Act, it is subject to zero-

rate taxation under the second paragraph of Article 61 of the Corporate Income Tax Act (CIT Act-2). For this reason, 

the Company has not recognised a liability for corporate tax in the accounts and has not recognised deferred tax assets. 

5.2.1.3 BODIES OF THE COMPANY 

The Company's bodies are the Management Board, the Supervisory Board and the General Meeting. The composition 

and powers of the Company's bodies are set out in the Corporate Governance Statement, which forms an integral part 

of this Annual Report.  
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5.2.1.4 CAPITAL TIES 

As of the balance sheet date, Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. does not hold any investments that would represent 

subordinated instruments at the issuer (same as in the previous year). 

In June 2017, the pension company Drustvo za upravjarje Evropskim dobrovojnim penzionim fondom a.d. Banja Luka 

(abbreviated as Drustvo za uprav.jarje EDPF a.d. Banja Luka) was registered in the Republic of Srpska. Its registered 

office is located at Ulica Kralja Petra I Karadordevica 109/111, Banja Luka. Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. 

contributed EUR 764,893 in capital, representing a 34.0% ownership stake, making the company an associate of 

Triglav PD, d.d. The other co-owners are Penzijski rezervni fond Republike Srpske a.d. Banja Luka with a 33.0% 

stake, and the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) along with ENEF, a fund wholly owned 

by the EBRD, each holding a 16.5% stake. 

As at 31 December 2024, the value of the Fund amounted to EUR 23,129,261 (previous year: EUR 18,297,531). The 

Fund had 57,902 members (previous year: 53,914). The Company's operating income and expenses in 2024 were in 

line with the plan, and the result from the investment portion of own funds was positive. The Company's operating result 

was EUR 214,000, which is 17% above plan. The average premium paid was EUR 13.6 (planned: EUR 13.5), which is 

in line with the plan. The Fund achieved a net return of 2.9% in 2024 (2.1% in 2023). Customer satisfaction (NPS), 

measured using the methodology applied by Triglav PD, d.d., was 95% for 2024. 

As of the cut-off date, Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., located at Dunajska cesta 22, Ljubljana, is a subsidiary of 

Zavarovalnica Triglav, d.d., headquartered at Miklosiceva 19, Ljubljana. The consolidated annual report is available on 

the company’s website at www.triqlav.si. 

5.2.1.5 OTHER INFORMATION 

- Registration number: 1584774; 

- Tax ID:17849942; 

- Activity subclass code: 65.300; 

- Size: a large company under the Companies Act; 

- Business year: calendar year; 

- Organisation: The Company operates under the leadership of a three-member Management Board. At the 

operational level, it is structured into sectors, functions, and a general service unit. The sectors include Marketing, 

Finance and Accounting, Investment Management, Back-Office Support, and IT. The Marketing and Back-Office 

Support and IT sectors each consist of two departments. The functions encompass the key functions as defined by 

law, while the General Service provides support to all organisational units. 

- As at the balance sheet date, the number of employees was 27 (previous year: 26), the same as the previous year; 

1 with VIII/2 Bologna degree, 2 with VIII/1 degree, 13 with VII degree (previous year; 12), 2 with VI/2 degree 

(previous year; 3), 3 with VI/1 degree, 4 with V degree (previous year: 3) and 2 with IV Bologna degree. The average 

number of employees in 2024 was 25.8 (previous year 25.7); 

- Information support: Information support consists of several components, including systems for office operations, 

email, marketing, asset management and valuation, and the general ledgers of the guarantee funds, all of which 

are hosted on Triglav’s servers; 

- Outsourced activities: Since the Company’s establishment, IT support provided by Zavarovalnica Triglav, d.d.

http://www.triglav.si/
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zak.jucilo 31.12.2024 has been used to manage policyholders’ personal accounts. Part of the assets (debt securities) 

of the guarantee funds and own funds are managed by Zavarovalnica Triglav, d.d., and part of the assets (equity 

securities) of the guarantee funds are managed by Triglav Skladi, d.o.o. The actuarial function has been partially 

outsourced, as has the risk management function. These two key functions are outsourced, while the remaining 

related activities are performed in-house. 

5.2.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

5.2.2.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

The financial statements of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. for the year 2024 were approved by the Company’s 

Management Board on 10 March 2025. They were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union, including the interpretations issued by the International Financial 

Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and adopted by the EU, as well as the provisions of the Companies Act 

(ZGD-1). 

5.2.2.2 BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements presented herein are individual financial statements and reflect the operations of Triglav, 

pokojninska druzba, d.d. In accordance with Article 56 of the Companies Act, The Company does not prepare 

consolidated financial statements, as it does not have any subsidiaries. The associate is accounted for using the equity 

method. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost convention, 

except for investments measured at fair value through profit or loss and through other comprehensive income, as well 

as liabilities under contracts with members, which are measured at fair value. Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. is 

included in the consolidated financial statements of its parent company, Zavarovalnica Triglav, d.d., whose consolidated 

annual report is available on its website. In accordance with Article 70c of the Companies Act (ZGD-1), the Company 

does not prepare a Statement on Non-Financial Reporting, as it is not required to do so. 

The accounting policies presented below have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements 

for the Company for 2024 and for the comparative period 2023. However, the comparative period for the CPF group of 

guarantee funds was restated for the purpose of preparing the financial statements and related disclosures. As at 31 

January 2024, the Triglav pokojnine+ life-cycle guarantee fund group was merged into the Collective Pension Fund 

guarantee fund group. Accordingly, the retrospective method was applied in the preparation of the financial statements, 

meaning that the figures for the comparative period were restated as if the merger had taken place in the past. 

5.2.2.3 CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

There were no changes in accounting policies in the financial year 2024. 

5.2.2.4 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCIES
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The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the euro (EUR). The financial statements and 

accompanying notes are presented in whole euros (EUR 1), excluding cents. 

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency using the European Central Bank 

(ECB) exchange rate published by the Bank of Slovenia on the date of each transaction or event. Foreign exchange 

gains and losses resulting from these transactions, as well as from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date, are recognised in the income statement. For 

investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, exchange differences on monetary items 

(e g., bonds) are recognised in the income statement, while exchange differences on nonmonetary items (e g., 

shares) are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

5.2.2.5 STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS, AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET 
EFFECTIVE AND NOT EARLY ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY 

New and amended standards with explanatory notes 

In the current year, Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. applied several amendments to IFRS accounting standards 

issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the EU, which are mandatory for 

the reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The adoption of these amendments did not have a 

material impact on the disclosures or amounts presented in these financial statements. 

Standard Title 

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current and non-current liabilities 
with commitments 

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier financial arrangements 

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease obligation on sale and leaseback 
 

New and amended IFRS accounting standards adopted by the EU but not yet in force 

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, Triglav, pokojninska druiba, d.d. does not apply the 

following amended IFRS accounting standards issued by the IASB and adopted by the EU, but not yet effective: 

Standard Title 
Effective date 

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of currency substitutability 1 January 2025 
 

New and amended IFRS accounting standards issued but not adopted by the EU 

Currently, IFRS as adopted by the EU do not differ significantly from IFRS as adopted by the International 

Accounting Standards Board (IASB), with the exception of the following new standards and amendments to existing 

standards that have not been endorsed by the EU as at 31 March 2025: 

Standard Title Status of the adoption by the EU 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and 

IFRS 7 

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of 

Financial Instruments (Effective date specified by the IASB: 1 

January 2026) 

Not yet adopted by the EU 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and 

IFRS 7 

Nature-dependent electricity contracts (IASB effective date: 1 

January 2026) 

Not yet adopted by the EU 
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Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 

7, IFRS 9,IFRS Win IAS 7 

Annual Improvements to IFRSs - 11th Edition (Effective date set 

by the IASB: 1 January 2026) 
Not yet adopted by the EU 

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements (Effective 

date specified by the IASB: 1 January 2027) 

Not yet adopted by the EU 

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without public accountability: disclosures (IASB 

effective date: 1 January 2027) 

Not yet adopted by the EU 

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts (Effective date set by the IASB: 1 

January 2016) 

The European Commission has decided 

not to start the process of adopting this 

transitional standard and to wait for the 

final standard. 

Amendments to IFRS 10 

and IAS 28 

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its 

associate or joint venture, and subsequent amendments (the 

IASB has indefinitely delayed the effective date, but early 

application is permitted). 

The validation process is postponed 

ndefinitely until the research project on 

equity method has been completed. 

 

Triglav, pokojninska druZba, d.d. does not expect the adoption of the above standards in future periods to have a 

material impact on the financial statements of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. 

Accounting for the risk exposure of a portfolio of financial assets and liabilities, the principles of which have not been 

adopted by the EU, remains unregulated. Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. estimates that accounting for the risk 

exposure of its portfolio of financial assets and liabilities in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 

Recognition and Measurement would not have a material impact on the financial statements if it were implemented 

as at the balance sheet date. 

Brief description of new and amended standards 

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements, issued by the IASB on 9 April 2024, will replace 

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. The standard introduces three sets of new requirements to improve 

companies' reporting of financial performance and give investors a better basis for analysing and comparing 

companies. The main changes in the new standard compared with IAS 1 are: (a) the introduction of categories 

(operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations) and the inclusion of subtotals in the 

income statement; (b) the introduction of requirements to improve aggregation and disaggregation; and (c) the 

introduction of disclosures about performance measures determined by management in the notes to the financial 

statements. 

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures, issued by the IASB on 9 May 2024. The 

standard reduces the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries when applying IFRS accounting standards in their 

financial statements. IFRS 19 is optional for subsidiaries that meet certain conditions and sets out disclosure 

requirements for subsidiaries that choose to apply it. 

Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback issued by the IASB on 22 September 

2022. The amendments to IFRS 16 require a seller-lessee to apply the subsequent measurement requirements for 

lease liabilities unrelated to a sale and leaseback transaction to lease liabilities arising from a
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retained by the seller-lessee. The new requirements do not preclude a seller-lessee from recognising in profit or loss 

a gain or loss relating to the partial or complete cancellation of a lease. 

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-

current issued by the IASB on 23 January 2020 and Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 

- Non-current Liabilities with Covenants issued by the IASB on 31 October 2022 The amendments issued in 

January 2020 provide a more general approach to the classification of liabilities under IAS 1 based on contractual 

arrangements in place at the reporting date. The amendments issued in October 2022 clarify how conditions that an 

entity must satisfy within 12 months of the reporting period affect the classification of liabilities and specify that both 

amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. 

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Supplier 

Finance Arrangements, issued by the IASB on 25 May 2023. The amendments add disclosure requirements and 

'signposting' within existing disclosure requirements to provide qualitative and quantitative information about supplier 

financing arrangements. 

Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - Lack of Exchangeability, issued 

by the IASB on 15 August 2023. The amendments provide guidance on determining when a currency is exchangeable 

and how to determine the exchange rate when a currency is not exchangeable. The effective date set by the IASB is 

1 January 2025. 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 - Amendments to Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments, 

issued by the IASB on 30 May 2024. The amendments clarify the classification of financial assets that have 

characteristics related to environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations. The amendments also clarify 

the derecognition date of a financial asset or financial liability and introduce additional disclosure requirements for 

investments in equity instruments designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income and for disclosures 

relating to financial instruments with contingent features. 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 - Contracts Referencing Nature-Dependent Electricity issued by the IASB 

18 December 2024 The own-use requirements in IFRS 9 are amended to include factors that an entity should consider 

when applying IFRS 9:2.4 to contracts for the purchase and assumption of electricity from renewable sources whose 

generation is nature-dependent. The hedge accounting requirements in IFRS 9 are amended to permit an entity that 

uses a nature-dependent renewable electricity contract with specified characteristics as a hedging instrument to 

designate a variable volume of forecast electricity transactions as the hedged item if certain criteria are met and to 

measure the hedged item using the same volume assumptions as those used for the hedging instrument Amendments 

to IFRS 7 and IFRS 19 introduce disclosure requirements for electricity contracts that depend on the nature of the 

specified features. 

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 and IAS 7 - Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting 

Standards - 11th Edition, issued by the IASB on 18 July 2024.They include clarifications, simplifications, corrections 

and changes in the following areas: (a) hedge accounting for first-time adopters (IFRS 1); (b) gain or loss on 

derecognition (IFRS 7); (c) disclosure of the deferred difference between fair value and transaction price (IFRS 7); and 

(d) introductory disclosures and disclosures about credit risk (IFRS 7); (e) a lessee's derecognition of a lease liability 

(IFRS 9); (f) transaction price (IFRS 9); (g) the determination of 'de facto agent' (IFRS 10); (h) the cost method (IAS 

7).  
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of the standard is to enable first-time adopters that currently recognise regulatory deferrals accounts in accordance 

with previous GAAP to continue to do so on transition to IFRSs. 

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint 

Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture, issued by 

the IASB on 11 September 2014. The amendments address the divergence between the requirements under IAS 28 

and IFRS 10 and clarify that the extent to which gain or loss is recognised in a transaction with an associate or in a 

joint venture depends on whether the assets sold or contributed constitute a business entity. 

5.2.2.6 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

5.2.2.6.1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

The financial statement items where the management’s estimates and judgments have the most significant impact 

primarily relate to the valuation of non-marketable investments, the impairment of financial assets, and liabilities to 

employees. These matters are discussed in more detail under the respective sections later in this chapter. 

5.2.2.6.2 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. It is recognised only when it is 

probable that the expected future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and its cost can 

be measured reliably. 

After initial recognition, an intangible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 

impairment losses (cost model). The Company assesses whether the useful life of an intangible asset is finite or 

indefinite. An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortised over its useful life. The Company does not have any 

intangible assets with an indefinite useful life. 

The Company recognises software as an intangible asset with a finite useful life. In the case of acquired software, the 

cost of acquisition and any costs incurred to bring the software to a usable condition are included in the acquisition 

cost. The amortisable amount of intangible assets is allocated consistently over their useful lives on a straight-line 

basis. 

Depreciation begins when the intangible asset is available for use and continues over its useful life. An intangible 

asset is considered impaired if its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 

The Company recognises software as an intangible asset with a finite useful life. For acquired software, the cost of 

acquisition and qualification for use is included in the cost of acquisition. The Company consistently allocates the 

amortisable amount of an intangible asset to each accounting period as amortisation on a straight-line basis over the 

useful life of the asset. 

Depreciation of intangible assets is provided on a straight-line basis, taking into account the useful lives of each 

asset.
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Depreciation begins when the intangible asset is available for use and continues over its useful life. An intangible 

asset is considered impaired if its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 

Table 12: Depreciation rates for intangible assets 
Depreciation group Estimated useful life Linear in % 

Surveillance system 4 years 25.00 
Software 5 years 20.00 

 

5.2.2.6.3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets held by the Company for use in the rendering of services or for 

administrative purposes, and are expected to be used for more than one accounting period. 

After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses (cost model). Cost comprises its purchase price, any import duties and non- 

refundable taxes, and direct costs of putting it into service. Subsequent costs associated with an item of property, 

plant and equipment increase its cost only to the extent that they increase future benefits over those previously 

estimated and can be measured reliably. Maintenance and repair costs are charged to the income statement in the 

period in which they are incurred. The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed 

at least annually and appropriate adjustments are made if necessary. 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, taking into account the useful lives 

of each asset. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated when they are available for use. 

Table 13: Depreciation rates for property, plant and equipment 

Depreciation groups 

Estimated useful life 

In years Linear in % 

Private cars 4 25.00 

Furniture and technical equipment 5 20.00 

Computer equipment 2 50.00 

Servers and multifunction devices 3 33.33 

Other tangible fixed assets 4 25.00 

Right to use assets 5 20.00 

 

The residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted 

accordingly if expectations differ from previous estimates. 

Gains and losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment are calculated by comparing the 

disposal proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in operating profit in the income 

statement. Ongoing maintenance and repair costs are recognised in the income statement as incurred. Property, 

plant and equipment are impaired when their carrying amount exceeds their recoverable amount. 

Right-of-use assets
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a specified period in exchange for consideration. Exceptions apply to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. 

An asset acquired through a lease is recognised as a right to use the asset and a liability under the lease. 

Assets and liabilities are recognised at the present value of the lease payments to be made under the lease 

agreement. Future lease payments are discounted at the interest rate adopted at the time of the lease or at the 

assumed borrowing rate when no interest rate is specified. 

In calculating the right to use the asset, account is also taken of any initial direct costs and an estimate of the costs 

that will be incurred in removing or restoring the asset. 

The assumed interest rate is determined based on the risk-free sovereign bond rate at country level plus a credit 

premium. 

The right to use the asset is valued using the cost model. The initial value of the right is reduced by depreciation and 

impairment losses over the period of use and adjusted to re-measure the lease liability. After initial recognition, lease 

liabilities are increased for interest and decreased for lease payments. 

In the case of lease contracts with an indefinite term, the lease term is assumed to be in accordance with the strategic 

period (5 years). 

5.2.2.6.4 CAPITAL INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 

Equity investments are investments in associates and subsidiaries of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. The method 

chosen is the equity method, where gains or losses are attributed quarterly or in the current year and recognised 

through the income statement. 

5.2.2.6.5 INVESTMENTS 

Financial investments are those investments held by the Company for the purpose of generating financial income 

through the returns they generate. Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date (transaction 

date), which is the date on which the Company commits to acquire or dispose of the investment. 

5.2.2.6.5.1 FINANCIAL ASSETS 

All financial assets are classified in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 according to: 

- the business model for managing financial assets; - the characteristics of their contractual cash flows. 

The determination of the business models was made assuming the most likely scenarios for the use of the financial 

instruments, which means that so-called "worst-case" scenarios are not taken into account. 

Table 14: Business models_and categories of financial instruments  _________  

Held to collect contractual cash Financial assets measured at amortised cost 
 ___________________________________________________ (AC)  _______   
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Both held to collect and for sale 
Financial assets at fair value through 
comprehensive income 
(FVOCI) 

'Other' 
- Trading 
- Asset management on a fair value basis 
- Maximising cash flows through sales 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL) 

 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. uses three business models for own funds accounting purposes: - collecting 

contractual cash flows, - collecting contractual cash flows and trading, - the rest. 

For the purposes of accounting for the guarantee funds, Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d uses a maximum of two 

business models: 

- collection of contractual cash flows: debt instruments and deposits with the purpose of collecting contractual 

cash flows (Obvezniski CPF with a guaranteed return), 

- collection of contractual cash : deposits for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows (MeSani CPF, 

Delniski CPF) 

- Other (Obvezniski CPF with guaranteed yield, Mesani CPF, Delniski CPF, 

Categories of financial assets classified by the business model: 

- financial assets measured at amortised cost (AC), 

- financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), 

- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) 

- loans and receivables 

The fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category is not available for guarantee funds, as 

they do not have equity in their structure in the statement of financial position. 

For equity financial instruments held as part of own funds that are not solely held for trading but also for the purpose 

of collecting contractual cash flows, the Company has the option to classify and measure them at fair value through 

other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Under this classification, gains or losses are recognised in other 

comprehensive income and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. 

Investments for which fair value is determined are classified into the following levels: 

Level 1: 

This category includes prices: 

- which are based solely on directly observable data and without the use of indirectly observable data (only 

prices directly related to the security are used), 

- where the proportion of committed quotes must be at least 90%, 

- where there must be at least three committed quotes, which must be no more than one day old. 

Level 2: 

This category includes prices: 

- which are largely based on directly observable data and where the percentage of indirectly observable  
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- where market inputs may be used for directly or indirectly identical or similar assets (eg. the basis for 

valuation is the yield curve for comparable financial assets of similar maturity and credit risk), 

- where there must be at least four quotes, which must be no more than 15 days old. 

Level 3: 

This category includes prices that do not meet the above conditions. 

5.2.2.6.5.2 INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

- the financial asset is held within a business model that has as its objective the holding of financial assets for 

the purpose of receiving contractual cash flows; and 

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely repayments of principal 

and interest on the principal outstanding (SPPI test). 

5.2.2.6.5.3 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions 

are met: 

- the financial asset is held within a business model that seeks to achieve its objective by receiving 

contractual cash flows and selling the financial asset; and 

- under the contractual terms of the financial asset, there are cash flows that are solely repayments of 

principal and interest on the outstanding principal amount (SPPI test). 

This measurement category is not available for guarantee funds, as they do not have equity in the structure of the 

statement of financial position. 

5.2.2.6.5.4 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if it: 

- is a debt instrument and does not fall into one of the above measurement categories, 

- is an equity instrument and does not qualify for measurement at fair value through other comprehensive 

income, 

- eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency ('accounting mismatch') that 

would otherwise arise from measuring assets or recognising related gains and losses on different bases, 

- is a derivative. 

5.2.2.6.5.5 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 

The calculation of impairment of investments under IFRS 9 is based on the expected credit losses associated with the 

probability of default over the next 12 months, provided that there has been no significant increase in credit  
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risk compared to initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk compared with initial recognition, 

the impairment calculation is based on the lifetime probability of default. 

The definition of credit impairment ("default") of a financial instrument has not changed with the introduction of IFRS 

9. Credit impairment occurs when: 

- non-payment of coupon interest due to inability to pay, 

- non-payment of principal due to inability to pay, 

- the opening of insolvency proceedings. 

The Company uses both qualitative and quantitative factors to determine whether the risk of default has increased 

significantly from the initial recognition: 

- a change in the external credit rating of a financial instrument, 

- a change in the market price of a financial instrument. 

The calculation uses risk parameters (PD and LGD) from external sources. 

The Probability of Default (PD) parameter is obtained by the Company from the Bloomberg information system. For 

sovereign exposures, the PD is determined using statistical methods, while for corporate exposures; it is derived using 

a combination of statistical methods and a structural model. This parameter is time-calibrated, meaning it reflects the 

current situation (“point-in-time") and incorporates the most probable future economic conditions as perceived by 

financial market participants. In cases where external PD data is unavailable, the Company applies an internal model. 

This model is based on financial statement analysis, using the Altman Z" Score, which is then converted into a 

corresponding credit score through a transformation matrix. Based on the resulting credit score and the maturity of the 

financial instrument, the applicable PD is determined. 

For the determination of the Loss Given Default (LGD) parameter for exposure categories to central government units, 

central banks, regional or local government institutions, and public sector entities, the Company follows the guidelines 

set out in the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR) - Regulation (ED) No 575/2013 of the European Parliament and 

of the Council of 26 June 2013, as amended. For exposures to corporates, the LGD is based on long-term historical 

estimates of loss values as provided by credit rating agencies. 

5.2.2.6.6 ASSETS FROM FINANCIAL CONTRACTS 

The financial contract assets item represents the assets in the accounts of insured persons that guarantee the fulfilment 

of the obligations under these contracts. It comprises investments measured at fair value, investments at amortised 

cost, cash and cash equivalents and any receivables. 

At the beginning of 2024, as at 31 January 2024, the Company merged the Triglav pokojnine+ lifecycle group of 

guarantee funds into the CPF group of guarantee funds. In addition to the Obvezniski fund, the Mesani and Delniski 

funds are in the group of life cycle guarantee funds, in which the members bear the entire investment risk. 

The accounting policies of the guarantee funds are set out in more detail in the annual reports of the Collective Pension 

Fund for the financial year ended 31 December 2024.
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5.2.2.6.7 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS 

Trade receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 

active market. Upon initial recognition, they are disclosed at the amounts stated in the relevant supporting 

documents, based on the assumption that they will be repaid in full. Trade receivables are subsequently carried at 

their recoverable amount up to the balance sheet date. The Company classifies other similar items under current 

deferred costs and accrued revenue where deferred charges are recorded. 

5.2.2.6.8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash represents scriptural money held in accounts with banks that are available for payment transactions, while 

cash equivalents consist of deposits redeemable at notice. The Company does not have any automatic borrowing 

arrangements linked to its transaction accounts. The carrying amount of monetary assets is equal to their initial 

nominal value. 

5.2.2.6.9 CAPITAL 

The Company’s total capital is composed of the following components: called-up capital, capital reserves, profit 

reserves (legal, treasury shares, statutory, and other), net profit or loss brought forward from previous years, the fair 

value reserve, and the undistributed net profit or net loss for the current financial year. 

Profit reserves represent the portion of net profit from previous years retained for specific purposes - primarily to 

cover potential future losses in accordance with legal requirements or statutory provisions. Statutory reserves may 

not exceed 10% of the Company's share capital. They shall be set aside in any one financial year at a maximum of 

10% of the remaining net profit, previously reduced by any amounts that may be required by law, up to the limit 

referred to in the preceding sentence. 

The fair value reserve is used to account for decreases in the carrying amount or impairment of investments following 

their initial recognition.
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5.2.2.6.10 LIABILITIES FROM FINANCIAL CONTRACTS 

In order to carry out the accumulation of assets under the group pension plans PN SK 01 and PN SK 03 and under 

the individual pension plan PN SK-02, the Collective Pension Fund of the Company was set up for the accumulation 

period. The life-cycle Collective Pension Fund consists of three funds, namely: Obvezniski Collective Pension Fund 

with a guaranteed return (Zajamceni), Mesani Collective Pension Fund (Mesani) and Delniski Collective Pension 

Fund (Delniski). In the Zajamceni fund, the Company bears the risk of the monthly accrual of the guaranteed return, 

while in the Mesani and Delniski funds; the investment risk is borne by the members. 

In 2021, Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. created a new group of life-cycle guarantee funds Triglav pokojnine+ 

consisting of three funds: Zajamceni guarantee fund Triglav pokojnine+ (Zajamceni+), Mesani guarantee fund 

Triglav pokojnine+ (Mesani+) in Delniski guarantee fund Triglav pokojnine+ (Delniski+). Within Zajamceni+ fund, the 

Company bears the risk of the monthly accrual of the guaranteed return, while in the Mesani+ and Delniski+ funds 

the investment risk is borne by the members. All three guarantee funds of Triglav pokojnine+ accumulate assets 

under the collective pension plan PN TPD 04 and the individual pension plan PN TPD 05. The required coverage of 

the funds is recognised as a liability under financial contracts. 

At the beginning of 2024, as at 31 January 2024, pokojninska druzba, d.d. merged by acquisition a group of lifecycle 

guarantee funds Triglav pokojnine+ which consisted of three funds: the Zajamceni guarantee fund Triglav pokojnine+ 

(Zajamceni+), the Mesani guarantee fund Triglav pokojnine+ (Mesani+) and the Delniski guarantee fund Triglav 

pokojnine+ (Delniski+) In the Zajamceni+ fund, the Company bears the risk in the monthly accrual of the guaranteed 

return, while in the Me§ani+ and Delni5ki+ funds the investment risk is borne by the members. All three Triglav 

pokojnine+ guarantee funds accumulated assets under the group pension plan PN TPD 04 and the individual 

pension plan PN TPD 05. Following the merger by acquisition, the pension plans were transferred to the Collective 

Pension Fund group of guarantee funds. 

The required coverage of the funds is reported as a liability under financial contracts. The method of calculating such 

liabilities is the same for all insurance schemes (both those under the group supplementary voluntary pension 

insurance and those under the Individual supplementary voluntary pension insurance. Liabilities under financial 

contracts are calculated using the retrospective method of accounting. The calculation method takes into account 

actual contributions, accrued expenses that may be charged to the funds in accordance with the fund management 

rules, withdrawals and accruals of returns in the period up to the valuation date. Liabilities under financial contracts 

must always be established in an amount sufficient to cover all foreseeable liabilities under the financial contracts 

entered into. A chartered actuary, who shall give an annual written opinion thereon, shall verify their calculation and 

their sufficiency. 

5.2.2.6.11 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

A contingent liability is a potential liability that arises from past events and whose existence is confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events that are not wholly within the Company's 

control.
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Contingent assets and liabilities include commitments to purchase interests in alternative funds, as specified in the 

purchase agreement. The timing and amount of contributions are determined by the issuer of the alternative fund. 

5.2.2.6.12 PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES 

Under long-term liabilities to employees, the Company recognises long-term provisions for jubilee bonuses and 

severance payments upon retirement, which it is obliged to make in accordance with national legislation, collective 

bargaining agreements, and International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Provisions are made for the estimated future severance and jubilee payments, discounted to their present value as 

at the balance sheet date. The yield curve used as at 31 December 2024 is based on the yield curve of Slovenian 

sovereign bonds denominated in euros, as published on Bloomberg. For maturities exceeding 30 years, the Smith-

Wilson model was used to extrapolate the yield curve, applying parameters consistent with the methodology of the 

European Insurance and Occupational Pensions Authority (EIOPA). The calculation takes into account the cost of 

severance payments on retirement and the cost of any jubilee awards up to retirement. 

The Company recognises all actuarial gains and losses in the income statement as they arise. There was no material 

effect on equity. 

5.2.2.6.13 OTHER PROVISIONS 

As at the cut-off date of 31 December 2024, most of other provisions relate to potential surcharges related to negative 

balances in personal fund accounts due to failure to achieve the guaranteed return, as well as potential surcharges 

between the funds saved and the funds required for those members who would have opted for a life annuity had 

they met the statutory conditions for receiving a pension annuity. 

Non-achievement of the guaranteed return is checked monthly after the end of the VEP. The level of provisions is 

determined based on a report on the analysis of reserves and provisions. The Company recognises the provisioning 

or release of provisions within other expenses or revenues in the income statement. 

The potential additional payments between the funds saved and the funds needed, for members opting for a life 

annuity with guaranteed factors, are adjusted quarterly on the basis of an actuarial calculation. Again, the Company 

recognises the provisioning or release within other expenses or revenues in the income statement. 

5.2.2.6.14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Current and non-current liabilities of all types are recognised initially at the amounts shown in the relevant 

documents, assuming that creditors demand repayment. Liabilities are subsequently increased by imputed returns 

(interest, other remuneration) for which there is an agreement with the creditor. Liabilities are reduced by amounts 

repaid and any other settlements agreed with the creditor. 

Within trade and other payables, also accrued costs and deferred revenues are disclosed, where the Company 

records accrued costs and expenditure relating to the operations of the financial year for which the financial 

statements are prepared.



56 

 

 

5.2.2.6.15 CORPORATE INCOME TAX AND DEFERRED TAXES 

The Company was established under the Pension and Disability Insurance Act and, in accordance with the second 

paragraph of Article 61 of the Corporate Income Tax Act (ZDDPO-2), it is deemed zero-rated. The Company also 

does not recognise deferred tax assets and liabilities because of the above. 

The amount of accumulated tax losses as at 31 December 2024 is EUR 5,348,525 (the amount of accumulated tax 

losses was the same a year earlier). 

5.2.2.6.16 REVENUES 

Operating income is income from fund management, i.e. entry and exit commissions, and management fees The 

entry commission is contractually fixed and the exit commission is charged at 1% of the value of the compensation 

in the event of an extraordinary exit The management fee was the same in 2024 as in the previous year, 1 %. It is 

calculated monthly on the value of the assets of each guarantee fund on the last day of the month. 

Investment income consists mainly of interest and dividend income, revaluation income and gains on disposals of 

investments. 

Interest income and expense are recognised in proportion to the period elapsed and in relation to the principal 

outstanding and the effective interest rate on debt securities. 

Dividend income is recognised in the income statement the right to receive the dividend is established. 

5.2.2.6.17 EXPENDITURE 

Net operating costs comprise depreciation of assets, labour costs and other operating costs. Operating costs are 

charged directly to the guarantee fund manager at the time they are incurred. 

Employee benefits include salaries and other allowances in accordance with collective and individual agreements. 

The Company pays pension contributions (8.85% of gross salary) in line with the legislation. The contributions 

represent the cost of the period to which they relate and are shown in the income statement within labour costs. 

Investment expenditure mainly comprise revaluation expenses, losses on disposals of investments and other 

financial expenses. 

5.2.3 RISK MANAGEMENT 

5.2.3.1 INSURANCE RISK 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. may carry out supplementary insurance activities under the Pension and Disability 

Insurance Act, which includes the provision of pension fund management services and pension annuity payment 

services. The Company does not pay pension annuities, and the contracts concluded with the members
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are classified as financial contracts; therefore, the Company is not exposed to insurance risks. 

Insurance risks are contained in some of the contracts concluded with members because of the guarantee of the 

factors used to calculate the pension at retirement. These factors were present in the pension plans until 2006 and 

apply to contracts concluded until 30 June 2006. The calculation factors were based on the 1994 German annuity 

mortality tables, and the guaranteed technical interest rate taken into account in the calculation of these factors 

ranges from 2.75 to 4.00 per cent. Currently, the technical interest rate is 0.5 per cent. New factors may be set under 

pension plans if life expectancy increases by more than 5 years from the date of taking out the insurance to the date 

when the pension annuity starts to be paid. Pending the determination of the new factors, the Company has made 

appropriate provisions for members entitled to the factor guarantee. 

Table 15: Provisions for annuity top-up payments  

Liabilities for SVPI 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 

Provisions for annuity top-up payments (in EUR) 1,739,078 2,490,393 

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had provisions for annuity top-ups amounting to EUR 2,490,393 In 2024, 

the Company drew down EUR 222.900 (last year EUR 469.500) of the provisions. Following an actuarial assessment 

of the adequacy of the provisions made, EUR 528.400 (last year EUR 1.1m) of provisions were released during the 

year. The balance of provisions as at 31 December 2024 is EUR 1,739,078. 

5.2.3.2 RISK OF NOT ACHIEVING THE GUARANTEED RETURN 

Given the minimum guaranteed return in the Obvezniski Collective Pension Fund, the fund manager is also faced 

with the risk of not achieving the minimum guaranteed return The manager protects itself against the risk of non-

achievement of the guaranteed return mainly by matching the investments to the basket of investments from which 

the minimum guaranteed return is calculated and by ensuring an appropriate balance between the investments 

classified in the AC group and the other investments. 

The guaranteed return in 2024 was set according to the performance of Slovenian sovereign bonds in 2023 and 

2022. The minimum guaranteed return for the period January to December 2024 is 1.31% on an annual basis or 

0.11% on a monthly basis. 

Excess return of a guarantee fund with guaranteed return 

If the difference between the actual values of the assets of a guarantee fund with a guaranteed return at the end of 

the accounting period is higher than the guaranteed assets in that fund, the difference between them is the excess 

return. The excess return may be used to cover the difference between the guaranteed return and the actual return 

in accounting periods in which the actual return is lower than the guaranteed return. In the event of termination of 

the insurance, the member shall be entitled to the excess return. 

Table 16: Share of reserves in mathematical provisions of the funds 
31.12.2023 1.01.2023 
in % 31.12.2024 
recalculated recalculated 

Guarante  Guarant  Guarantee  

ed reserves eed reserves d return reserves 

return  return    
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Obvezniski CPF 98.35 1.65 99.43 0.57 101.39 -1.39 

The Obvezniski guarantee fund has, as at 31 December 2024, more assets of the guarantee fund than the guaranteed 

value (it also had more assets last year), and the manager has released the provisions made for this difference to the 

income statement of the Company. The achievement of a return higher than the guaranteed return was influenced by 

positive developments in the financial market. 

 

Reserves represent the excess of the return earned over the guaranteed return, and a provision is established (from 

own funds - as part of other reserves) if the return earned on a member's personal account falls below the guaranteed 

return. 

At the beginning of 2024, the Company had EUR 3.0 million (EUR 724.8 thousand at the beginning of 2023) in reserves, 

which increased to EUR 5.7 million by the end of the year (EUR 3.0 million in 2023), while the provision for potential 

additional payments due to negative balances on members' accounts decreased from EUR 1.1 million to EUR 189.400 

(EUR 5.1 million to EUR 1.1 million in 2023). The total value of the assets under guaranteed return as at 31 December 

2024 is entirely derived from the Obvezniski fund, Collective Pension Fund with a guaranteed return. 

5.2.3.3 FINANCIAL RISKS 

The Company is exposed to financial risks through its financial assets and liabilities and its obligations under financial 

contracts with its members. The Company's main financial risk is the risk that its assets will not be sufficient to meet its 

obligations under its financial contracts with its members. Therefore, the Company invests the assets of the group of 

guarantee funds Collective Pension Fund and the group of guarantee funds Triglav pokojnine+ in accordance with the 

legal provisions, pension plans, management rules and investment policy. 

Financial risks include in particular market, liquidity and credit risks. Financial risk management is based on planning 

future cash flows, controlling the Company's credit exposure, planning capital adequacy and investing free financial 

assets based on the credit rating of the investments, taking into account the appropriate diversification, long-term return 

and duration of the investments in the case of investments in debt financial instruments. The Company invests the 

assets of the group of guarantee funds Collective Pension Fund and Triglav pokojnine+ in accordance with the 

provisions of the ZZavar-1, the ZPIZ-2, the pension plans, the management rules and the investment policy. Collective 

Pension Fund and Triglav pokojnine+ are mainly exposed to investment and liquidity risks. The same applies to the 

Company's own funds. 

5.2.3.3.1 MARKET RISKS 

Market risk is measured using limits set according to the investment structure of each fund and the Company (as 

defined in the Management Rules). The table below shows the structure of the Company's investment portfolio 57

Liabilities for SVPI 31.12.2024 
31.12.2023 

recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 

Provisions for potential additional payments due to negative balances on the accounts 

of members 189,448 1,148,645 5,100,179 

Reserves 5,702,9345 3,033,849 724,808 

Table 17: Reserves and provisions for potential additional payments due to negative balances on the members’accounts in 
EUR 
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and that of each guarantee fund separately. All exposures by investment structure are within the legal limits. 

The exposure of the Company's investment portfolio is higher compared to the end of 2023, mainly due to the positive 

developments in the financial markets. For the same reason, the exposures on the CPF guarantee funds also 

increased compared to the end of 2023. 

Table 18: Structure of the Company’s investment portfolio in amounts (EUR) for 2024 and 2023 

OWN FUNDS 31.12.2024 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 31.12.2023 

Corporate bonds 

  

15,537,158 22.11% 13,237,166 19.70% 

Corporate financial bonds 
 

16,556,349 23.56% 15.110.597 2249% 

Sovereign bonds 
  

29,745,573 42.32% 24.028.090 35 76% 

Open-ended investment funds 
 

136,201 0 19% 5,993,687 8 92% 

Closed-ended investment funds 
 

95,314 0.14% 60,433 009% 

Shares 
  

641,276 0.91% 567,893 0 85% 

Commercial papers 
  

0 0 00% 0 0 00% 

Treasury bills 
  

5,934,892 8.44% 5,652,133 8 41% 

Recurring deposits 
  

1,270,000 1 81% 2,301,658 3 43% 

Fixed-term deposits 
  

0 0.00% 0 000% 

Receivables 
  

2,151 0.00% 1 000% 

Cash 
  

383,148 0 55% 240,744 0 36% 

Liabilities 
  

-16,250 -0.02% 0 000% 

Total 
  

70,285,812 100.00% 87,192,401 100.00% 

Table 19: Structure of the investment portfolio of guarantee funds in amounts (EUR) and shares for 2024 and 2023 

recalculation (opening and closing balances)     

   31.12.2023 31.12.2023 1.1.2023 1.1.2023 
OBVEZNISKI FUND 31.12.2024 31.12.2024     
   recalculated recalculated recalculated recalculated 

Corporate bonds 86,824,157 25.92% 76,999,562 23.55% 75,091,719 23.82% 

Corporate financial 79,304,391 23.68% 62,933,950 19 24% 40,406,647 12.82% 
bonds       

Sovereign bonds 141,511,851 42.25% 143,803,804 43 97% 148,476,426 47.10% 

Open-ended 5,458,166 1.63% 15,467,964 4.73% 12,256,883 3.89% 
investment funds       

Closed-ended 5,274,322 1.57% 5,172,917 1.58% 4,919,588 1.56% 
investment funds       

Shares 1,017,907 0.30% 1,028,640 0 31% 1,017,821 0.32% 

Commercial papers 0 0.00% 935,051 0.29% 2,369,489 0.75% 

Treasury bills 12,333,674 3.68% 6,295,107 1.92% 0 0.00% 

Recurring deposits 700,000 0.21% 10,298,171 3.15% 9,985,448 3.17% 

Fixed-term deposits 0 0.00% 0 0 00% 15,826,367 5.02% 

Receivables 2,052,170 0.61% 2,178,892 0.67% 3,055,470 0.97% 

Cash 2,890,363 0.86% 3,435,744 1.05% 3,421,309 1.09% 

Liabilities -2,400,356 -0.72% -1,521,747 -0 47% -1,563,407 -0.50% 

Total 334,966,647 100.00% 327,028,055 100.00% 315,263,761 100.00% 

MESANI FUND 31 12 2024 31 12 2024 31.12.2023 31.12.2023 1.1.2023 1.1.2023 
   recalculated recalculated recalculated recalculated 

Corporate bonds 5,190,564 8.86% 4,474,236 10 40% 3,577,872 10.63% 

Corporate financial 3,367,088 5.75% 3,570,645 8.30% 1,920,369 5.71% 
bonds       

Sovereign bonds 7,185,735 12.27% 6,784,023 15.77% 4,420,588 13.13% 

Open-ended 2,740,012 4.68% 5,616,519 13.06% 4,729,484 14.05% 
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investment funds 

Closed-ended investment 

funds 

95,314 0.16% 60,433 0.14% 62,033 0.18% 

Shares 36,599,598 62.49% 18,457,119 42.91% 13,509,781 40.13% 

Commercial papers 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 197,767 0.59% 

Treasury bills 1,779,468 3.04% 1,652,999 3.84% 0 0.00% 

Recurring deposits 300,000 0.51% 1,331,335 3 10% 300,000 0 89% 

Fixed-term deposits 0 0.00% 0 0 00% 2,847,959 846% 

Receivables 978,698 1.67% 894,455 2 08% 801,964 2 38% 

Cash 518,517 0.89% 278,872 0 65% 1,525,187 4 53% 
Liabilities -184,286 -0.31% -110,049 -0 26% -231,904 -0.69% 

Total 58,570,707 100.00% 43,010,587 100.00% 33,881,101 100,00% 
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Delniski Fund 31.12.2024 31.12.2024 
31.12.2023 

recalculated 

31.12.2023 

recalculated 

1.1.2023 

recalculated 

1.1.2023 

recalculated 

Corporate bonds 0 0.00% 2,241,672 5.22% 1,708,562 6.03% 

Corporate financial bonds 
0 0.00% 2,099,708 4.89% 0 0.00% 

Sovereign bonds 0 0.00% 3,428,257 7.99% 1,718,255 6 07% 

Open-ended investment 

funds 
3,509,502 5.14% 6,473,084 15.09% 4,509,824 15 92% 

Closed-ended investment 

funds 
95,314 0.14% 60,433 0.14% 62,033 0 22% 

Shares 62,059,466 90.87% 26,110,020 60.86% 16,607,661 58 63% 

Commercial papers 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 197,767 0 70% 

Treasury bills 581,499 0.85% 534,756 1.25% 0 0 00% 

Recurring deposits 300,000 0.44% 363,000 0.85% 363,000 1 28% 

Fixed-term deposits 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1,796,859 6 34% 

Receivables 1,464,924 2.15% 1,284,353 2.99% 913,419 3 22% 

Cash 420,551 0.62% 381,748 0.89% 582,699 2 06% 

Liabilities -139,696 -0.20% -73,568 -0.17% -133,924 -047% 

Total 68,291,561 100.00% 42,903,463 100.00% 28,326,155 100.00% 
 

The share of debt investments in the Company's portfolio as at 31 December 2024 compared to 31 December 2023 

increased by 10.1 percentage points to 96.4% of the portfolio. On the other hand, the share of equity investments 

decreased by 8.7 percentage points to 1.2%. The share of deposits (term and recurring) decreased by 1.6 percentage 

points to 1.8% of the portfolio in 2024. 

In the Obvezniski fund, the biggest change was in debt investments, which increased by 6.5 percentage points to 

95.5%, while equity investments decreased by 3.1 percentage points. Deposits, on the other hand, fell by 2.9 

percentage points to 0.2% of the portfolio 

The Delniski and Mesani CPF funds are dominated by equity investments. Equity investments account for 67% (last 

year 54.5%) and 95.8% (last year 74.6%) in the MeSani and DelniSki funds, respectively. Both guarantee funds 

show a more pronounced increase in equity investments in 2024, due to the rise in share prices and the change in 

investment policy to a higher share of equities. The share of debt investments decreased by 8.8 percentage points 

to 29.9% in the Mesani fund and by 18.8 percentage points to 0.9% in the Delniski Fund, while the share of fixed-

term deposits decreased. It fell by 2.6 percentage points to 0.5% in the Mesani fund and by 0.4 percentage points to 

0.4% in the Delniski Fund. 

The data in the above tables form the basis for further performance analysis.
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Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is assessed by analysing the sensitivity of the price of fixed-rate securities to changes in market 

interest rates (Modified Duration). The following tables show the composition of marketable debt securities by fixed 

and variable yield, respectively. In 2024, as in the previous year, there were no marketable debt securities with 

variable interest rates, except in the Obvezniski fund, where such debt securities account for 0.6%. In terms of asset 

structure, the Obvezniski fund has the highest exposure to interest rate risk, followed by the Company's own funds, 

the Mesani and the DelniSki guarantee funds. 

Table 20: Structure of debt securities in own funds by type of return in amounts and percentage 
 

31.12.2024 

Fixed return 

31.12.2024 

Variable return 

31.12.2023 

Fixed return 

31.12.2023 

Variable return 

Own funds 67,773,972 0 58,027,986 0 

 

96.43% 0.00% 86.36% 0.00%  

Table 21: Structure of debt securities in guarantee funds by type of return in amounts and percentage 

Fund 31.12.2024 

Fixed return 

31.12.2024 

Variable 

return 

31.12.2023 

Fixed return 

recalculated 

31.12.2023 

Variable 

return 

recalculated 

1.1.2023 

Fixed return 

recalculated 

1.1.2023 

Variable return 

recalculated 

Obvezniski 
317,963,858 2,010,215 287,997,847 2,969,627 264,435,727 1,908,555 

 

94 92% 0 60% 88.07% 0 91% 83.88% 0.61% 

Mesani 
17,522,855 0 16,481,903 0 10,116,597 0 

 

29 92% 000% 38.32% 0.00% 30.05% 0.00% 

Delniski 
581,499 0 8,304,393 0 3,624,585 6 

 

0.85% 000% 19.36% 0.00% 12.80% 0.00%  

The duration of debt investments was extended for the Company in 2024, and it was at a similar level for the 

Obvezniski fund, extended for the Mesani fund and significantly shortened for the Delniski fund due to a change in 

the investment policy. 

Table 22: Structure of debt securities by duration (in years) 
Fund 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 

Own funds 2.39 1 93 
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Table 23: Structure of debt securities in guarantee funds by duration (in years) 

Fund 31.12.2024 reralrulated 
rcLalLUIalcU 

1.1.2023 
recalculated 

Obvezniski 3 54 3.52 405 

Mesani 5 33 2.63 252 

DelniSki 0 04 3.62 228 
 

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk 

The analysis tracks the decline in the value of debt securities as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, 

assuming a 1-percentage-point and a 2-percentage-point rise in interest rates... Based on the current level of interest 

rates, a 1-percentage point increase would lead to a decrease in the value of debt investments as at 31 December 

2024 on an individual fund and company basis of between 0.04% and 5.33% and between 0.08% and 10.66% 

respectively for a 2-percentage point increase. 

Table 24: Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis of debt securities 31.12.2024    

Fund 31.12.2024 

Interest rate increase of 

1 percentage point in 

EUR 
in % 

Interest rate 

increase of 2 

percentage 

points in EUR 

in % 

Own funds 67,773,972 -1,618,178 -2.39% -3,236,357 -4.78% 

Obvezniski 319 974,074 -11,315,364 -3 54% -22,630,729 -7 07% 

Mesani 17,522,855 -933,891 -5 33% -1.867,783 -10.66% 

Delniski 581,499 -233 -0 04% -465 -0 08% 

Table 25: Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis of debt securities in own funds 31. 12.2023 - recalculated 

 

Fund 31.12.2023 

Interest rate increase of 

1 percentage point in 

EUR 
in % 

Interest rate 

increase of 2 

percentage 

points in EUR 

in % 

Own funds 58,027,986 -1,121,334 -1.93% -2,242,667 -3 86% 
 

Table 26: Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis of debt securities in guarantee funds 31.12.2023 - recalculated  

Fund 
31.12.2023 recalculated 

Interest rate 

increase of 1 

percentage 

point in EUR 

recalculated 

in % 

recalculated 

Interest rate 

increase of 2 

percentage 

points in EUR 

recalculated 

in % 

recalculated 

Obvezniski 290,967,474 -10,241,484 -3.52% -20,482,967 -7.04% 

Mesani 16,481,903 -433,114 -2.63% -866,228 -5 26% 

Delniski 8,304,393 -300,461 -3.62% -600,921 -7 24% 
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Table 27: Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis of debt securities in guarantee funds 1.1.2023 - recalculated 

Fund 1.1.2023 recalculated 

Interest rate 
increase of 1 
percentage 
point in EUR 
recalculated 

in % 

recalculated 

Interest rate 
increase of 2 
percentage 
points in EUR 
recalculated 

in % 

recalculated 

Obvezniski 266,344,282 -10,786,201 -4.05% -21,572,401 -8.10% 

Mesani 10,116,597 -254,938 -2 52% -509,876 -5.04% 

Delniski 3,624,585 -82,641 -2 28% -165,281 -4.56% 
 

The changes in percentage refer to the change in the value of the guarantee fund in the event of a return increase. In 

the case of the Obvezni&ki guarantee fund, the fall in value is covered by the excess return on the personal accounts 

of the members or, in the absence thereof, by the Company's own operating funds. However, in the case of the Mesani 

and Delniski CPF and own funds, there is no obligation to provide a guaranteed return. The impact of the changes 

can be seen in more detail in the interest rate risk sensitivity analysis in the table above. 

In the own funds, the change in the value of investments has a direct impact on the Company's profit or indirectly 

through comprehensive income. As the analysis shows, a sale at lower values would have a negative impact on the 

Company's profit, as the value of own funds decreases by 4.78 % or by EUR 3.24 million in value. 

Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk of a change in the value of an investment due to fluctuations in the exchange rate between the 

currency in which the investment is valued and the currency in which it is denominated. Currency risk can be mitigated 

by ensuring that the majority of investments are denominated in the currency of the fund's valuation currency. 

The Company measures currency risk using the currency-matching ratio, i.e. the proportion of investments 

denominated in the same currency as the currency of the liabilities (which are entirely denominated in euros). Article 

332k of the ZPIZ-2 prescribes that at least 80% of investments must be matched with liabilities arising from contracts 

concluded with members, where the liability amounts depend on changes in foreign currency exchange rates. 

Table 28: Currency structure in own funds by amount and share 
OWN FUNDS 31.12.2024 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 31.12.2023 

EUR 69,723,827 99.20% 66,703,179 99.27% 

USD 0 0.00% 0,03 0.00% 

Other 561,985 0.80% 489,222 0.73% 
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Table 29: Currency structure in guarantee funds by amount and share 

OBVEZNISKI FUND 
31.12.2024 31.12.2024 

31.12.2023 
recalculated 

31.12.2023 
recalculated 

1.1.2023 
recalculated 

1.1.2023 
recalculated 

EUR 334,949,860 99.99% 327,012,114 100.00% 315,254,504 100.00% 

USD 15,491 0.00% 14,590 0.00% 8,389 0.00% 

Other 1,295 0.00% 1350,12 0.00% 867 0 00% 

MESANI FUND 31.12.2024 31.12.2024 
31.12.2023 

recalculated 
31.12.2023 

recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 

EUR 26,289,767 44.89% 27,496,653 63.93% 21,132,675 62.78% 

USD 30,007,299 51.23% 14,651,564 34 07% 11,321,210 33 63% 

Other 2,273,641 3.88% 862,370 2.01% 1,207,216 3.59% 

Delni&ki Fund 31.12.2024 31.12.2024 
31.12.2023 

recalculated 
31.12.2023 

recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 

EUR 13,550,659 19.84% 21,350,673 49.76% 13,426,978 47.40% 

USD 50,895,790 74.53% 20,384,838 47 51% 13,418,502 47 37% 

Other 3,845,112 5.63% 1,167,952 2 72% 1,480,676 5 23% 
 

The two tables above show the currency breakdown of the investments of own funds and all guarantee funds. As 

can be seen, the currency risk is negligible in the Obvezniski guarantee fund and in the own funds, where over 99% 

of the investments are denominated in the local currency. 

An increased share of risky investments in foreign currencies is present in the other two guarantee funds. The 

proportion of investments in other currencies is 55.1% in the Mesani CPF (previous year: 36.1%) and slightly higher 

in the Delniski CPF, where the proportion is 80.2% (previous year: 50.2%). The main reasons for these changes 

are the previously mentioned adjustments to the investment policy in 2024 and the rise in share prices, which 

influenced the currency structure The US dollar is the dominant foreign currency, and exposures remain within the 

prescribed limits. 

Geographical risk 

Table 30: Geographical breakdown of assets in own funds by amount and share  
OWN FUNDS 31.12.2024 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 31.12.2023 

Slovenia 3,898,789 5.55% 5,026,994 748% 

Other EU countries 55,635,995 79.16% 53,136,992 79 08% 

Non-EU countries 10,751,028 15.30% 9,028,415 13.44% 
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Table 31: Geographical breakdown of assets in guarantee funds by amount and share 

OBVEZNISKI FUND 31.12.2024 31.12.2024 
31.12.2023 

recalculated 
31.12.2023 

recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 

Slovenia 23,174,285 6.92% 41,096,435 12.57% 64,049,646 20.32% 

Other EU countries 242,408,768 72.37% 229,157,643 70.07% 198,871,563 63.08% 

Non-EU countries 69,383,594 20.71% 56,773,977 17 36% 52,342,552 16 60% 

MESANI FUND 31.12.2024 31.12.2024 
31.12.2023 

recalculated 
31.12.2023 

recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 

Slovenia 2,044,534 3.49% 3,116,287 7.25% 5,177,240 15.38% 

Other EU countries 19,496,951 33.29% 19,002,476 44 18% 11,409,192 33 89% 

Non-EU countries 37,029,221 63.22% 20,891,823 48 57% 17,074,670 50 73% 

Delniski Fund 31.12.2024 31.12.2024 
31.12.2023 

recalculated 
31.12.2023 

recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 

Slovenia 300,000 0.44% 1,426,181 3.32% 3,489,228 12.32% 

Other EU countries 9,704,055 14.21% 14,356,844 33 46% 7,069,032 24 96% 

Non-EU countries 58,287,506 85.35% 27,120,439 63 21% 17,767,895 62 73% 

 

The tables above show the composition of investments of guarantee funds and own funds by country of issuer. 

Obvezniski fund and the Company have the highest relative exposure to other EU countries. This is mainly due to 

their higher exposure to European euro bonds. Mesani in Delniski CPF have the highest relative exposure to 

investments outside the EU, dominated by US equities. 

As regards the Obvezniski fund and own funds, the balance of investments in other EU countries increased as at 31 

December 2024 compared to the previous year, at the expense of a decrease in the share of investments in Slovenia. 

The Mesani and Delniski CPF show a decrease in exposure to Slovenia, other EU countries, and an increase in 

exposure to other investments. This is mainly due to the rise in prices and the additional investment of funds in US 

equities due to the change in investment policy. 

5.2.3.3.2 ISSUER CREDIT RA TING RISK 

Issuer credit rating risk is the risk of changes in the value of investments due to changes in the credit rating of the 

issuer of securities. This risk primarily applies to debt securities issued by entities other than sovereigns or banks. 

Equity securities are excluded from the analysis, as they do not directly carry credit rating risk. 

The Company manages this risk by setting specific limits on individual amounts, in addition to already established 

maximum exposure levels for individual securities. It monitors and reviews the credit analysis and ratings of the 

issuers to minimise risk exposure. The Company also manages the risk of credit rating by investing in sovereign 

securities or highly rated instruments. Credit rating risk is monitored on a regular basis 

The credit rating of a debt security is determined based on the credit ratings of Standard & Poors, Fitch and Moody's, 

where the second-best credit rating is taken into account. Investments in debt securities that do not have a published 

credit rating are classified in the unrated category. 

In 2024, investments in debt securities with a better credit rating were purchased with the Company's own funds and 

the funds' assets. As a result, for most of the portfolios in 2024, we improved the average credit rating ( Moody's 

credit score=MCS), which ranges in points between 1 and 270 (the lower the credit rating, the better). In the case of the 

Delniski Fund, due to the change in the investment policy as at 31 December 2024, only the 65
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all portfolios is within the limits. 

Table 32: Structure of own funds by credit rating as at 31.12.2024 and 31.12.2023 in EUR 

OWN FUNDS 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 

From AAA to A- 
 

47,780,936 36,009,188 

From BBB+ to BBB- 

 

19,712,685 21,255,460 

From BB+ to D 

 

280,351 763,338 

No rating 
 

0 0 

Total 
 

67,773,972 58,027,986 

Credit rating 
 

170 187 

Table 33: Structure of the assets of guarantee funds by credit rating as at 31.12.2024 and 31.12.2023 in EUR 

OBVEZNISKI FUND 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 

From AAA to A- 199,072,508 170,574,898 127 575 901 

From BBB+ to BBB- 111,145,472 106,523,407 114 982 725 

From BB+ to D 5,286,995 7,796,577 17,980,000 

No rating 4,469,100 6,072593 5,805,656 

Total 319,974,074 290,967,474 266,344,282 

Credit rating 239 271 349 

MESANI FUND 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 recalculated 
1.1.2023' 

recalculated 

From AAA to A- 9,150,613 8,638,435 3,162,592 

From BBB+ to BBB- 7,722,621 7,218536 6,151,241 

From BB+ to D 463,822 467,111 470,174 

No rating 185,800 157,822 332,589 

Total 17,522,855 16,481,903 10,116,597 

Credit rating 270 264 412 

Delniski Fund 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 recalculated 
1.1.2023 

recalculated 

From AAA to A- 581,499 5 131,228 1,712,580 

From BBB+ to BBB- 0 2.836,790 1,149,908 

From BB+ to D 0 239,834 469,558 

No rating 0 96,540 292,538 

Total 581,499 8,304,393 3,624,585 

Credit rating 1 234 472 
  



67 

 

 

Triglav PD, d.d. 

Revidirano letno porocilo za poslovno leto, ki se je zak.jucilo 31.12.2024 

Table 34: Age structure of receivables of the Company as at 31.12.2024 and 31.12.2023 

in EUR Non-overdue Overdue up to 1 year Overdue above 1 year Total 

31 12.2024 32,274 0 246 32,520 

31 12 2023 56,458 0 246 56,705 

Table 35: Age structure of receivables of guarantee funds as at 31.12. 2024 

  

in EUR Non-overdue Overdue up to 1 year Overdue above 1 year Total 

Obvezniski 1,186 0 0 1,186 
Mesani 16,558 0 0 16 558 

Delniski 28,010 0 0 28010 

Total 45,754 0 0 45,754 

Table 36: Age structure of receivables of guarantee funds as at 31. 12. 2023 - recalculated 

 

 Non-overdue Overdue up to 1 year Overdue above 1 year Total 
 recalculated recalculated recalculated recalculated 

Obvezniski 17 0 0 17 

Mesani 11 588 0 0 11 588 

Delniski 16418 0 0 16 418 

Total 84,482 0 246 84,728 

 

Table 37: Age structure of receivables of guarantee funds as at 1.1.2023 - recalculated 

in EUR 

Non-overdue recalculated Overdue up to 1 year 

recalculated 

Overdue above 1 year 

recalculated 

Total 

recalculated 

Obvezniski 596,102 71,875 0 667,977 

Mesani 27,506 2,875 0 30,381 

Delniski 31,973 0 0 31,973 

Total 655,581 74,750 0 730,331 
 

The receivables held in the guarantee funds as at 31 December 2024 are not yet due. In the meantime, we have 

receivables on the Company for a partial indemnity payment that we have overpaid to a member. As the member 

still has part of the funds with us, we have not yet impaired the receivable as it will be settled when the remaining 

funds are paid to the member. 

5.2.3.3.3 LIQUIDITY RISK 

Liquidity risk is the risk associated with the inability to ensure the disbursement of guarantee funds (both regular and 

extraordinary liabilities of the two funds) without having to sell the investments of the guarantee funds at a highly 

unfavourable price. Liquidity risks are managed by projecting future cash flows, monitoring the Company's credit 

exposure, planning capital adequacy, and deploying free financial resources based on the credit rating of investments. 

This is done while taking into account appropriate diversification, long-term returns, and the duration of investments 

in debt financial instruments, in accordance with the provisions of ZZavar-1, ZPIZ-2, pension plans, governance rules, 

and the investment policy.
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Table 38: Maturity structure of financial assets and liabilities of CPF guarantee funds in 2024  

in EUR Carrying amount < 1 year 1 -5 years > 5 years 

At amortised cost 
168,955,782 33,062,914 65,925,315 69,967,554 

At fair value through IPI 285,972,247 47,594,870 74,213,774 164,163,603 

Receivables and other assets 91,113 91,113 0 0 

Cash and cash equivalents 9,144,186 9,144,186 0 0 

Total assets from contracts with 

Policyholders 
464,163,329 89,893,084 140,139,089 234,131,156 

Mathematical provisions 461,828,915 8,460,000 42,401,754 410,967,160 

Other liabilities 2,334,414 2,334,414 0 0 

Total liabilities from contracts with 

Policyholders 
464,163,329 10,794,414 42,401,754 410,967,160 

Net exposure 0 79,098,669 97,737,335 -176,836,004 
 

Table 39: Maturity structure of financial assets and liabilities of CPF guarantee funds as at 31.12.2023 - recalculated 

in EUR 

Carrying amount 

recalculated 
< 1 year 

recalculated 

1 -5 years 

recalculated 

> 5 years 

recalculated 

At amortised cost 197,000,140 31,234,896 91,490,131 74,275,114 

At fair value through IPI 197,200,758 38,704,970 72,583,024 85,912,764 

Receivables and other assets 39,937 39,937 0 0 

Cash and cash equivalents 20,250,268 20,250,268 0 0 

Total assets from contracts with     

Policyholders 
414,491,103 90,230,071 164,073,155 160,187,878 

Mathematical provisions 412,942,104 6,944,245 36,352,362 369,645,496 

Other liabilities 1,548,999 1,548,999 0 0 

Total liabilities from contracts with     

Policyholders 
414,491,103 8,493,244 36,352,362 369,645,496 

Net exposure 0 81,736,827 127,720,793 -209,457,618 
 

Table 40: Maturity structure of financial assets and liabilities of CPF guarantee funds as at 1.1.2023 - recalculated 

in EUR 

Carrying amount recalculated 
< 1 year 

recalculated 

1 -5 years 

recalculated 

> 5 years 

recalculated 

At amortised cost 222,461,969 25,951,089 115,923,771 80,587,109 

At fair value through IPI 135,769,787 23,961,390 47,531,277 64,277,120 

Receivables and other assets 748,625 748,625 0 0 
Cash and cash equivalents 

19,869,753 19,869,753 0 0 

Total assets from contracts with 

Policyholders 
378,850,134 70,530,857 163,455,048 144,864,229 

Mathematical provisions 377,251,018 5,611,982 30,194,424 341,444,612 

Other liabilities 1,599,116 1,599,116 0 0 

Total liabilities from contracts with 

378,850,134 7,211,098 30,194,424 341,444,612 

Policyholders 
    

Net exposure 0 63,319,759 133,260,624 -196,580,383 
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The tables above show the total investments of the guarantee funds and the liabilities to CPF members by
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maturity for 2023 and 2024. The CPF guarantee funds together have the most significant imbalance in the amount of 

investments with a maturity of more than five years, as this is where the highest exposure lies. A perfect matching of 

assets and liabilities in the maturity structure is not fully feasible in practice, as the composition of investments is 

influenced by current financial market conditions. Investments generally have shorter maturities than contractual 

liabilities, which means that a significant portion of assets is invested with shorter maturities than the corresponding 

liabilities. 

Table 41: Maturity structure of investments and liabilities of own funds for 2024 

in EUR Carrying amount < 1 year 1 -5 years > 5 years 

At amortised cost 14,916,398 2,515,804 9,405,611 2,994,983,32 

At fair value through other comprehensive income 
46,761,933 16,401,139 20,086,414 10,274,380 

At fair value through IPI 6,968,431 5,934,892 240.040 793.499 

Receivables 468,404 468,404 0 0 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,653,148 1,653,148 0 0 

Other assets 491,075 269,935 200,218 20,922 

Total assets 71,259,389 27,243,322 29,932,283 14,083,784 

Capital 68,092,732 0 0 68,092,732 

Liabilities 3,166,657 1,338,609 1,035,515 792,533 
Total liabilities 71,259,389 1,338,609 1,035,515 68,885,265 

Net exposure 0 25,904,713 28,896,768 -54,801,480 

Table 42: Maturity structure of investments and liabilities of own funds for 2023 

in EUR Carrying amount < 1 year 1 -5 years > 5 years 

At amortised cost 18,204,055 6,485,835 11,718,220 0 

At fair value through other comprehensive income 
33,627,169 7,729,153 23,803,454 2,094,562 

At fair value through IPI 12,818,775 5,652,133 623,301 6,543,341 

Receivables 451,610 451,610 0 0 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,542,401 2,542,401 0 0 

Other assets 696,739 269,610 406,207 20,922 

Total assets 68,340,749 23,130,742 36,551,182 8,658,825 

Capital 63,321,043 0 0 63,321,043 

Liabilities 5,019,706 2,583,849 1,487,144 948,713 

Total liabilities 68,340,749 2,583,849 1,487,144 64,269,756 

Net exposure 0 20,546,893 35,064,037 -55,610,931 
 

5 2.3.4 CAPITAL ADEQUACY MANAGEMENT 

In accordance with the risk management rules laid down in the Pensions and Disability Insurance Act and the Insurance 

Act, the Company must ensure that it has adequate capital at all times in relation to the volume and types of insurance 

business it carries on and the risks to which it is exposed in carrying on that business (capital adequacy). In accordance 

with the provisions of Article 331 of the Pensions Act, the minimum capital of a pension company is set at 4% of the 

mathematical provisions made for funds where the pension company bears the investment risk, or 1% for funds where 

the investment risk is borne by the members. Notwithstanding this provision, the capital shall never be less than the 

amount of the minimum guarantee fund, which in 2024 (as well 69  
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as the previous year of EUR 3.7 million) for the life insurance business amounted to EUR 4.0 million. The Company 

shall calculate the capital adequacy at least quarterly. In order to manage capital adequacy in the long term, the 

Company also makes capital adequacy projections on an annual basis, taking into account current and projected data. 

The capital adequacy data and the potential need to provide additional capital are regularly reported to the Supervisor, 

the ISA, and are presented to the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Board. 

As at the reporting date, the Company meets and exceeds the regulatory capital adequacy requirement. The surplus 

of available capital as at 31 December 2024 amounts to EUR 50,5 million excluding current retained earnings and EUR 

52,8 million including current retained earnings (previous year EUR 48,8 million including current year's profit). 

The minimum required capital of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. as at 31 December 2024 was EUR 14,7 million 

(previous year: EUR 13,9 million) and the available capital was EUR 65,1 million (previous year: EUR 58,2 million). 

Table 43: Minimum capital requirement 

in EUR Minimum capital requirement 31. 12. 2024 31. 12.2023 

Liabilities to members (technical provisions) 461,828,915 412,942,104 

- two guarantee funds with the guarantee 334,966,647 327,028,055 

- guarantee funds without the guarantee 126,862,268 85,914,050 

Minimum capital requirement 14,667,289 13,940,263 

- two guarantee funds with the guarantee -4% of liabilities to 

members 
73,398,666 73,087,722 

- guarantee funds without the guarantee - 1 % of liabilities to 

members 

7,268,623 859,140 

 

Table 44: Capital adequacy 

in EUR Tier 1 capital (Art. 331.c of the ZPIZ-2) 31. 12. 2024 31. 12.2023 

Paid-up share capital, other than cumulative preference shares of the paid-up share capital 
25,756,808 25,756,808 

Capital reserves, excluding capital reserves related to cumulative preference shares 

26,584,324 26,584,324 

Profit reserves 2,380,548 932,346 

Net profit carried forward from previous years 10,678,352 6,078,910 
Fair value reserve in respect of assets not financed from technical provisions 

337,226 -630,787 

Intangible fixed assets (as a deductible item) 50,904 78,644 

Net loss carried forward from previous years and current year’s loss 0 0 

Core capital 65,686,354 58,642,956 

Minimum capital requirement in accordance with Article 331 f of the ZPIZ-2 14,667,289 13,940,263 

Compliance with the requirement laid down in the seventh paragraph of Article 331f of the 
ZPIZ-2 

51,019,065 44,702,693 

Participation (first indent of the first paragraph of Article 331 d of the ZPIZ-2 561,985 489,221 

Available capital 65,124,369 58,153,735 

Capital surplus or deficit 50,457,080 44,213,472 

Current undistributed profits 2,355,474 4,599,442 

 -------------------------------------------------------- -20 ------------------------  
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Capital surplus including current profit 52,812,554 48,812,914 

Surplus of available capital taking into account current profit 444,0 450,2 
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5.2.4 NOTES TO THE SEPARATE STATEMENTS 

5.2.4.1 NOTES TO THE SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

5.2.4.1.1 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Intangible assets of EUR 50,904 (previous year EUR 78,644) represent investments in software 

Table 45: Movement in intangible fixed assets in 2024 

in EUR Intangible fixed assets 

Purchase value 
 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 322,770 

Purchases 5,490 

Balance as at 31 December 2024 328,260 

Value adjustment 
 

As at 31 December 2023 244,126 

Depreciation in the year 33,230 
Balance as at 31 December 2024 277,356 

Undepreciated value 
 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 78,644 

Balance as at 31 December 2024 50,904 

 

Audited annual report tor the financial year 

ending 31/12/2024 Table 46: Movement in intangible fixed assets in 2023 

in EUR Intangible fixed assets 

Purchase value 

Balance as at 31 December 2022 
300,223 

Purchases 22,547 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 322,770 

Value adjustment 

Balance as at 31 December 2022 
205,630 

Depreciation in the year 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 
38,496 

244,126 
Undepreciated value 

Balance as at 31 December 2022 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 

94,593 

78,644 

Company as of 31 December 2024 (the same as a year earlier) did not have any pledged intangible assets. 

5.2.4.1.2 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 

This item shows furniture and technical equipment of premises, investments in foreign fixed assets, cars owned and 

the right to use assets in accordance with IFRS 16.  
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Company as of 31 December 2024 (the same as one year earlier), it had neither pledged fixed assets nor fixed 

assets acquired under finance leases. 

Table 47: Movement in property, plant and equipment in 2024 
    

The right to use 
 

in EUR Equipment 
Small Private funds 

Total 
 inventory cars   

Purchase value 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 

503,229 3,810 189,573 1,329,981 2 026 593 

Purchases, increases 28,692 0 0 28,749 57,441 

Reduction during the year 32,256 0 0 0 32,256 

Balance as at 31 December 2024 499,665 3,810 189,573 1,358,730 2,051,778 
Value adjustment 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 

459,454 3,810 149,521 795,712 1 408 497 
Depreciation in the year 20,968 0 22,243 192,155 235 366 

Reductions during the year 32,256 0 0 0 32 256 

Balance as at 31 December 2024 448,166 3,810 171,764 987,867 1,611 607 
Undepreciated value 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 

43,775 0 40,052 534,269 618 096 
Balance as at 31 December 2024 51,499 0 17,809 370,863 440 171 

  

Table 481 Movement in pronariv, Plant and equipment in 2023 
    

The right to 
 

  Small  use funds  

in EUR Equipment 
inventory cars 

 Total 

Purchase value      

Balance as at 31 December 2022 

504,590 4,689 189,573 1,266,912 1,965,764 

Purchases, increases 31,081 0 0 63,069 94,149 

Reduction during the year 32,441 879 0 0 33,320 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 503,229 3,810 189,573 1,329,981 2,026,593 
Value adjustment      

Balance as at 31 December 2022 

451,911 4,689 126,549 617,683 1,200,832 
Depreciation in the year 39,984 0 22,972 181,244 244,201 

Reductions during the year 32,441 879 0 3,216 36,536 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 459,454 3,810 149,521 795,712 1,408,497 
Undepreciated value 

Balance as at 31 December 2022 

52,679 0 63,024 649,229 764,932 
Balance as at 31 December 2023 43,775 0 40,052 534,269 618,096 

5.2.4.1.2.1 RIGHT TO USE ASSETS UNDER IFRS 16  

As at 31 December 2024, the Company has a leasehold right-of-use balance of EUR 370,862. The total amount is 

made up of two contracts (the same as last year). The first is for the lease of office space and parking in the 

Dunajska cesta 22 office building, where the company carries out its core business, and the second is for the lease 

of the external car park in front of the Dunajska cesta 22 office building. 

The contract for the lease of office premises is indexed annually to the consumer price index for the previous year, 

published in January on the website of the Statistical Office of the Republic of Slovenia. The monthly rent for the car 

park in front of the Dunajska cesta 22 office building is charged according to the current price list.
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Table 49: Status of rights to use land and buildings under lease 

in EUR 31/12/2024 31/12/2023 

Lease agreement for business premises and parking lots 347,255 506,719 

Right to use rented land and buildings 1,311,024 7,289,932 

Acjustment to the value ot leasehold rights to use land and buildings -963,769 -783,213 

Rental contract for car parks 23,607 27,549 

Right to use rented land and buildings 47,706 40,048 

Acjustment to the value ot leasehold rights to use land and buildings -24,098 -12,499 

Total 370,862 534,269  

The lease agreements are for an indefinite term but are accounted for in accordance with IFRS16 until the end of 

2026 (with an estimated useful life of 5 years), with the possibility of further extension. The balance of long-term 

lease liabilities at 31/12/2024 is EUR 380,450 (previous year EUR 544,865). 

Table 50: Balance of long-term lease liabilities 

in EUR 31/12/2024 31/12/2023 

Lease agreement for business premises and parking lots 355,962 516,721 

Rental contract for car parks 24,488 28,144 

Total 380,450 544,865 
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Table 51: Depreciation and interest expense on lease liabilities 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Lease agreement for business premises and parking lots 185,865 179,523 

Amortisation ot rights to use leased land and buildings 180,556 172,361 

Interest expense on leased land and buildings 5,309 7,162 

Rental contract for car parks 12,827 9,815 

Amortisation ot rights to use leased land and buildings 17,599 8,883 

Interest expense on leased land and buildings 1,229 932 

Total 198,693 189,338  

Table 52: Cash outflow for leases 
in EUR 2024 2023 

Lease agreement for business premises and parking lots 189,698 181,244 

Cash outflow for rentals 789,698 181,244 

Rental contract for car parks 15,300 11,550 
Cash outflow tor rentals 75,300 77,550 

Total 204,998 192,794 

5.2.4.1.3 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. paid in the initial capital of KM 1,496,000 (EUR 764,892) to the pension company 

Drustvo za upravljanje EDPF-om a.d. Banja Luka, which was registered in the Republic of Serbia in June 2017. Triglav 

PD holds 34% of the capital. The valuation method chosen is the equity method, where gains or losses are accrued 

on an ongoing basis or in the current year and recognised through the income statement. On 31 December
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Triglav PD d.d. 

2024, the value of the capital investment was EUR 561,985 (previous year EUR 489,221). The difference between 

2023 and 2024 is represented by revaluation income of EUR 72,763, which represents an increase due to the related 

profit of the current year. 

5.2.4.1.4 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 

Financial investments include equity and debt securities, loans, deposits and certificates of deposit. It applies to 

securities of both domestic and foreign issuers. 

The Company does not use investments as collateral or pledges and does not recognise any financial instruments as 

hedges at the balance sheet date. 

Table 53: Financial investments by type __________________________________________________________________________  

in EUR 
31 December 2024 31 December 

2023 

Debt securities 67,773,972 58,027,986 

Equity securities 

Investments in mutual funds or investment companies 

79,291 78,671 

231,514 6,054,120 

Total 68,084,778 64,160,777 

The debt securities mature in the period up to 2035, all denominated in euro. Coupon rates on debt securities range 

between 0% and 4.75% in nominal terms (the same as last year). 
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Table 54: Investments by classification 

in EUR 31 December 
 31 December 2024 

2023 

At fair value through other comprehensive income 

At amortized cost 

At fair value through profit or loss 

46,761,933 33,627,169 

14,916,398 18,204,055 

6,406,446 12,329,553 

Total 68,084,778 64,160,777 

5.2.4.1.4.1 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

Table 55: Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 

in EUR 31 December 2024 31 December 
2023 

Shares of domestic issuers 

Debt securities of domestic issuers 

Debt securities of foreign issuers 

79,291 78,671 

2,549,498 2,134,242 

44,133,144 31,414,256 

Total 46,761,933 33,627,169 

Changes in the fair value of investments at fair value through other comprehensive income funded from equity affect 

the fair value reserve and retained earnings (equity securities) as an equity item and may be transferred to profit or 

loss in subsequent periods, as detailed under "Fair value reserve" and in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and 

the notes thereto. 

Equities of domestic issuers are classified as SAVR shares in 2024 (same as the previous year). The changes relate 

to movements in market values.
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Table 56: Fair value hierarchy of investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 

in EUR 31 December 2024 
31 December 

2023 

Level 1: Using market rates 16,668,275 4,441,093 

Level 2: Valuation based on market data 30,014,368 29,107,404 
Level 3: Not valued on the basis of market parameters 79,291 78,671 

Total 
 

46,761,933 33,627,169  

Investments for which fair value is determined are classified into the following levels: 

- Level 1: Valuation based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity 

can access at the measurement date (exchange prices and quoted prices provided by third parties e g. 

Bloomberg). The fair values are based entirely on directly observable inputs and without the use of indirectly 

observable inputs, where the proportion of firm quotes must be at least 90% and there must be at least three 

firm quotes, which must not be more than one day old. 

- Level 2: Valuation based on prices, which may be less than fully based on quoted prices for the same asset 

and liability. Indirect inputs, i.e. observable inputs for comparable financial instruments, are also allowed for 

the purpose of determining the fair price, but their proportion is strictly limited (maximum 10%).
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Level 3: Valuation based on prices that have not reached Level 1 or Level 2 standards. 

Table 57: Fair value methods 

Type of financial investment Assessment model Important parameters 
Fair value 

hierarchy 

BLOOMBERG BVAL 

Debt securities of corporates and 

financial institutions and government 

securities 

Discounting of cash flows 

according to the amortisation plan 

EUR SWAP curve of interest rates, issuer 

credit spreads, credit spreads of 

comparable issuers, indicative quotes 

Level 2 

INTERNAL 

Government debt securities Discounting of cash flows 

according to the amortisation plan 

Interest rate curve of the Republic of 

Slovenia; credit spreads between 0% and 

0.63% 

Level 2 

Debt securities of corporates and 

financial institutions and government 

securities 

Discounting of cash flows 

according to the amortisation plan 

Interest rate curve of the Republic of 

Slovenia, issuer credit spreads between 

0.42% and 3.98% 

Level 2 

Alternative investments - closed-end 

mutual funds 

 Issuer's quarterly reports and additional 

contributions taken into account in the 

current period 

Level 3 

 

 
Table 58: Reclassification of investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 
in EUR 2024 2023 

Reclassification from Level 1 to Level 2 2,230,108 8,277,141 

Reclassification from Level 2 to Level 1 7,832,254 338,896 

Total 10,062,362 8,616,037 
 

5.2.4.1.4.2 INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 

 

Table 60: Fair value disclosures for investments at amortised cost 
in EUR 31/12/2024 31/12/2023 

Book value 14,916,398 18,204,055 

Tair value 14,757,993 17,913,356 

Difference -158,405 -290,699 

in EUR 

Fair value Book value Fair value Book value 

Debt securities to maturity of domestic issuers 0 0 0 0 

Debt securities to maturity of foreign issuers 14,757,993 14,916,398 17,913,356 18,204,055 
Total 14,757,993 14,916,398 17,913,356 18,204,055 

Table 59: Investments at amortised cost 

31/12/2024 31/12/2023 
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Table 61: Valuation hierarchy for investments at amortised cost 

in EUR 31/12/2024 31/12/2023 

Level 1: Using market rates 2,344,273 4,481,200 

Level 2: Valuation based on market data 12,413,720 13,432,156 

Level 3: Not valued on the basis of market parameters 0 0 

Total 14,757,993 17,913,356 

Table 62: Reclassification of investments between amortised cost investment levels 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Reclassification from Level 1 to Level 2 

Reclassification from Level 2 to Level 1 
4,580,650 0 5,546,758 0 

Total 4,580,650 5,546,758 

 

5.2.4.1.4.3 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

Table 63: Investments at fair value through profit or loss 

in EUR 

2024 

31 December 31 December 
2023 

Debt securities of domestic issuers  0 0 

Debt securities of foreign issuers 

 

6,174,932 6,275,434 

Investments in mutual funds or investment companies of foreign issuers 

 

231,514 5,541,697 

Investments in mutual funds or investment companies of domestic issuers 
 

0 512,423 

Total 

 

6,406,446 12,329,553  

 
Table 64: Valuation hierarchy of investments at fair value through profit or loss 

in EUR 31/12/2024 31/12/2023 

Level 1: Using market rates 
0 

4,483,753 

Level 2: Valuation based on market data 6,174,932 7,663,976 
Level 3: Not valued on the basis of market parameters 231,514 181,824 

Total 6,406,446 12,329,553  

5.2.4.1.5 ASSETS DERIVING FROM FINANCIAL CONTRACTS 

At the beginning of the year, the company was still managing two groups of life-cycle funds (Triglav Pensions+ and 

the Joint Pension Fund). Then, as at 31 January 2024, it merged the Triglav Pensions* group of life-cycle funds into 

the Common Pension Fund group of life-cycle funds. 

Since the acquisition, the Company manages one group of life-cycle cover funds: 

- The Common Pension Fund (CPF), which comprises the Bond Guaranteed Income Common Pension Fund  
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(Bond), the Mixed Common Pension Fund (Mixed) and the Equity Common Pension Fund (Equity), 
all based on the collective pension plans PN-SK-01, PN-SK-03 and PN TPD 04 and the individual pension plans PN-
SK-02 and PN TPD 05. 
 
The financial contract asset item comprises investments measured at fair value through profit or loss and amortised 
cost, deposits, cash and cash equivalents and receivables. It represents the assets in members' accounts for which 
the Company guarantees the fulfilment of obligations under financial contracts. 

Table 65: Assets deriving from financial contracts 

in EUR 31 December 2024 
31 December 2023 

recalculated 

1 January 2023 

recalculated 

Financial investments 454,928,029 394,200,899 358 231 756 

-At fair value through profit or loss 285,972,247 197,200,759 135,769,787 

-At amortised cost 168,955,782 197,000,140 222,461,969 

Receivables and other assets 91,113 39,936 748 625 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,144,186 20,250,268 19,869,753 

-Money in trust accounts 7,844,186 8,257,763 9,227,305 

-Deposits on call 1,300,000 11,992,505 10,648,448 

Total 464,163,328 414,491,103 378,850,134 

All financial contract assets, other than investments at amortised cost, are measured at fair value. The disclosure of 

the fair value of investments at amortised cost is shown in the tables below: 

Table 66: Assets under financial contracts: Investments at amortised cost 
 31/12/2024 31 December 2023 

recalculated 
1 January 2024 

recalculated 

in EUR Fair value Book value Fair Book 

value value 

Fair Book 

value value 
Investments at amortised cost 162,135,733 168,955,872 188,138,110   197,000,140 205,267,926   222,461,969 

Total 162,135,733 168,955,872 188,138,110   197,000,140 205,267,926    222,461,969 

Difference (book value - fair 

value) 
6,820,139 

8,862,030 17,194,043 

Table 67: Assets under financial contracts as of 31 December 2024 - fair value 

IN EUR Fair value LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 

Financial investments 448,107,980 166,869,567 269,024,988 12,213,425 

-At fair value 285,972,247 142,525,366 131,233,457 12,213,425 

-At amortised cost 162,135,733 24,344,202 137,791,531 0 

Total 448,107,980 166,869,567 269,024,988 12,213,425 
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Table 68: Assets under financial contracts at 31 December 2023 - fair value 
  

IN EUR 
  

LEVEL2 LEVEL3 
Fair value restated LEVEL1 recalculated recalculated recalculated 

Financial investments 385,338,869 109,519,973 223,916,105 7,601,620 

-At fair value 197,200,759 62,113,203 66,054,964 7,601,620 

-At amortised cost 188,138,110 47,406,770 157,861,141 0 

Total 385,338,869 109,519,973 223,916,105 7,601,620 

Table 69: Assets under financial co 

2023 - 

itracts at 1 January fair value   

IN EUR 
  

LEVEL2 LEVEL3 
Fair value restated LEVEL1 recalculated recalculated recalculated 

Financial investments 341,037,713 109,519,973 223,916,120 7,601,620 

-At tair value 135,769,787 62,113,203 66,054,964 7,601,620 

-At amortised cost 205,267,926 47,406,770 157,861,156 0 

Total 341,037,713 109,519,973 223,916,120 7,601,620 

The financial assets classified as Level 3 are investments in closed-end and open-end mutual funds and a share in 

SAVR SV. Investments in closed-end and open-end mutual funds are valued according to the values obtained in the 

issuer's quarterly reports at the date of receipt of the report. SAVR SV is valued according to the internal model. 

5.2.4.1.6 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER ASSETS 

Table 70: Receivables and other assets 

in EUR 
31 December 2024 31 December 

2023 

Receivables 439,952 426,624 
Active accruals 28,452 24,986 

Total 468,404 451,610 

Receivables mainly show the claims of the manager on the cover funds for an entry of EUR 46,225 (previous year: 

EUR 48,744), an exit of EUR 6,616 (previous year: EUR 5.277) and management fees of EUR 383,043 (previous year 

EUR 340,883), all of which are due in January 2024 and are not exposed to risk, are not secured and are not pledged. 

5.2.4.1.7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Table 71: Cash and cash equivalents 

in EUR 31 December 2024 
31 2023 

December 

Cash in transaction accounts 383,148 

 

240,744 
Deposits on call 1,270,000  2,301,657 

Total 1,653,148  2,542,401 

The interest rate on call deposits is 2.0% in nominal terms (previous year 0.0%) and interest is paid monthly. The 

Company has no open credit lines.  
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5.2.4.1.8 RESIDUAL VALUE OF ASSETS 

In measuring the fair value of financial assets, we follow the following fair value hierarchy: 

- Level 1: Valuation based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity 

can access at the measurement date (exchange prices and quoted prices provided by third parties e.g. 

Bloomberg). The fair values are based entirely on directly observable inputs and without the use of indirectly 

observable inputs, where the proportion of firm quotes must be at least 90% and there must be at least three 

firm quotes, which must not be more than one day old. 

- Level 2: Valuation based on prices, which may be less than fully based on quoted prices for the same asset 

and liability. Indirect inputs, i.e. observable inputs for comparable financial instruments, are also allowed for 

the purpose of determining the fair price, but their proportion is strictly limited (maximum 10%). 

- Level 3: Valuation based on prices that have not reached Level 1 or Level 2 standards. 

Table 72: Fair value techniques: 

Type of financial investment Assessment model Important parameters 
Fair value 

hierarchy 

BLOOMBERG BVAL 

Debt securities of corporates and 

financial institutions and government 

securities 
Discounting of cash flows according 

to the amortisation plan 

EUR SWAP curve of interest rates, issuer 

credit spreads, credit spreads of comparable 

issuers, indicative quotes 

Level 2 

INTERNAL 

 
 

Discounting of cash flows Interest rate curve of the Republic of 

Government debt securities according to the amortisation plan Slovenia; credit spreads between 0% and Level 2 

Debt securities of corporates and 

financial institutions and government 

securities 

Alternative investments - closed-end 

mutual funds 

Discounting of cash flows 0.63% 

according to the amortisation plan Interest rate curve of the Republic of Slovenia, 

issuer credit spreads between 0.42% and 

3.98% 

Issuer's quarterly reports and additional 

contributions taken into account in the 

current period 

Level 2 

Level 3 

 

s of assets according to the fair value hierarchy. 

Table 73: Fair value of the Company's hierarchy as at 31 December 2024 
IN EUR Fair value LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 

Financial investments 67,926,372 19,012,548 48,603,019 310,805 

Debt securities 67,615,567 19,012,548 48,603,019 0 

Equity securities and shares 310,805 0 0 310,805 

Total 67,926,372 19,012,548 48,603,019 310,805 
 
Table 74: Fair value of the Company's assets by hierarchy as at 31 December 2023 

in EUR Fair value LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 

Financial investments 63,870,078 13,406,046 50,203,536 260,496 

Debt securities 57,737,287 8,922,293 48,814,994 0 

Equity securities and shares 6,132,791 4,483,753 1,388,542 260,496 

Total 63,870,078 13,406,046 50,203,536 260,496 
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The value of financial assets classified as Level 3 at 31 December 2024 is EUR 310,805 (previous year: EUR 

260,496), representing investments in a closed-end mutual fund, and a share in SAVR SV. Investments in closedend 

and open-end mutual funds are valued according to the values obtained in the issuer's quarterly reports at the date 

of receipt of the report. 

SAVR SV is valued according to the internal model. 

5.2.4.1.9 CAPITAL 

The Company's capital consists of share capital, reserves (capital, legal and statutory), fair value reserves, retained 

earnings or loss, net profit or loss carried forward and net profit for the year 

Table 75: Capital composition 

in EUR 31 December 2024 31 December 
2023 

Share capital 25,756,808 25,756,808 

Reserves 28,964,872 27,516,669 

capital 26,584,324 26,584,324 

legal 257,269 257,269 

statutory 2,123,279 675,076 

Fair value reserve 337,226 -630,787 

Net profit or loss carried forward 10,678,352 6,078,910 

Net profit for the year 2,355,474 4,599,442 

Total 68,092,732 63,321,043 

Number of ordinary shares 123,447 123,447 

Book value of the share 552 513 

5.2.4.1.9.1 SHARE CAPI7AL  

The last two recapitalisations of Triglav PD were carried out in 2022. The first one was carried out at the end of May 

2022 for an amount of EUR 7,999,836. The share capital of EUR 6,750,764 (divided into 32,355 ordinary registered 

no-par value shares) increased by EUR 3,378,825 to EUR 10,129,588 (divided into 48,549 no-par value shares). The 

issue amount per share was EUR 494. The difference in the amount of the capital increase of EUR 4.621.011 was 

allocated to capital reserves. The second capital increase was carried out at the end of June 2022 in the amount of 

EUR 36,999,612. The share capital of EUR 6,750,764 (divided into 32,355 ordinary registered no-par value shares) 

increased by EUR 3,378,825 to EUR 10,129,588 (divided into 48,549 no-par value shares). The issue amount per 

share was EUR 494. The difference in the amount of the capital increase of EUR 21.372.392 was allocated to capital 

reserves. Both recapitalisations were carried out to ensure the long-term viability of the company. 

The subscribed (share) capital at the cut-off date thus amounts to EUR 25,756,808 and is divided into 123,447 ordinary 

shares, which are held in full by Zavarovalnica Triglav, d.d., Ljubljana as the sole owner of the Company.  

Book value of the share at 31 December 2024 is EUR 551.6 (EUR 512.9 one year earlier). 
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5.2.4.1.9.2 CAPITAL AND PROFIT RESERVES 

Table 76: Company reserves 

in EUR 31 December 2024 
31 

December 

Capital reserves 26,584,324 26,584,324 

Legal reserves 257,269 257,269 

Statutory reserves 2,123,279 675,076 

Total 28,964,872 27,516,669 

Reserves totalling EUR 28,964.872 (previous year EUR 27,516,669) are part of the Company's capital. They combine 

legal, statutory and capital reserves. Capital reserves totalling EUR 26,584,324 were created in the Company s 

recapitalisations (in 2006, 2007 and 2022) from paid-in capital surpluses. Capital reserves are not redeemable in 

accordance with Article 64 of the Companies Act. 
 

Table 77: Movement in the Company's reserves in 2024 

in EUR Capital reserves Legal reserves 

Statutory 

reserves Total 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 26,584,324 257,269 675,076 27,516,668 

Formation by decision of the Management Board 

0 0 

1,448,203 1,448,203 

Balance as at 31 December 2024 26,584,324 257,269 2,123,278 28,964,871 

Since the 2007 recapitalisation, the legal reserves have remained unchanged as they are fully funded. The  
Management Board of the Company has allocated part of the operating profit of EUR 1,448,203 to the creation of 

statutory reserves at the end of the financial year 2024. 

The balance and movements in reserves are also shown in the Statement of Changes in Equity. 

5.2.4.1.9.3 FAIR VALUE CHANGE RESERVES 

The fair value reserve reflects the change in fair value of those investments of the Company that are designated at 

fair value through other comprehensive income. 

The capital surplus increased by EUR 968,012 to an ending value of EUR 337,226 in 2024 from an initial value of EUR 

-630,787 (in the previous year it increased by EUR 960,930 from an initial value of EUR -1,591,716 to an ending value 

of EUR-630,787). 

 

Table 78: Movement in fair value reserves 

in EUR 2024 2023 

As at 31 December of the previous year -630,787 -1,591,716 

Change in year 968,012 960,930 

Reductions -3,329,230 -2,661,880 
Increases 4,297,242 3,622,809 

As at 31 December 337,226 -630,787 
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The increase in the fair value reserve in 2024 by a total of EUR 968,012 is due to the remeasurement of the Company's 

investments at fair value through other comprehensive income; The increase of EUR 394 is due to impairments for 

expected losses, the increase of EUR 204,860 is due to transfers of gains and losses to the profit and loss account 

on disposals and EUR 762,758 is due to net valuation effects. 

Changes in fair value reserves are also disclosed in the statement of other comprehensive income and in the notes to 

that statement. 

5.2.4.1.9.4 NET PROFIT/LOSS CARRIED FORWARD FROM PREVIOUS YEARS 

Table 79: Carry-forward of net profit from previous years ______________________________________  

in EUR 31 December 2024 31 Dec 2023 

Carry-forward of net profit from previous years 10,678,352 6,078,910 

Total net profit/loss carried forward from previous years 10,678,352 6,078,910 

The net profit carried forward from previous years at 31/12/2024 amounts to EUR 10,678,352 and is higher 

compared to the previous year by a net profit in 2023 of EUR 4,599,442. 
 

The movement in the net profit or loss carried forward is also shown in the statement of changes in equity. 

5.2.4.1.9.5 NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 

In the financial year 2024, the Company realised a profit of EUR 3,803,677 (previous year EUR 4,599,442). Earnings 

per share of EUR 30.8 (previous year EUR 37.3) are calculated from the net profit distributed over 123,447 shares. 

5.2.4.1.10 LIABILITIES 

Liabilities are divided into liabilities arising from financial contracts, provisions for employees, other provisions and 

trade and other payables. On 31 December 2024, the Company recognises a financial liability of EUR 16,250 for the 

contribution to the Alternative Fund (no financial liability was recognised in 2023). In 2024, other provisions decreased 

significantly. Other provisions include provisions for potential surcharges on negative balances on members' accounts 

that have not achieved the guaranteed rate of return and provisions for guaranteed factor annuities. In 2024, the 

provision for negative balances on members' accounts decreased by EUR 1.0 million (last year by EUR 4.0 million), 

due to the increase in the return above the guaranteed value on the cover funds guaranteeing this return (Bond SPS). 

Provisions for guaranteed annuities with factors also decreased by EUR 0.8 million (compared to an increase of EUR 

0.7 million in the previous year, due to the new longevity analysis, which also takes into account the weighted Covid19 

years). 
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Table 80: Overview of liabilities in EUR 31 December 2024 31 December 

2023 

Liabilities under financial contracts 464,163,329 414,491,103 

Provisions for employees 

Other provisions 

423,223 347,356 

1,928,526 3,639,038 

 

814,908 1,033,312 

467,329,986 419,510,810 

5.2.4.1.10.2 LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCIAL CONTRACTS 

The financial contract payable item relates entirely to the operations of the Life Cycle Joint Pension Fund (LCJPF) 

group of umbrella funds, which includes the Equity and Blended Joint Pension Funds and the Bond Guaranteed 

Income Joint Pension Fund. It applies to collective and individual voluntary supplementary pension schemes. 

Liabilities arising from financial contracts are divided into accrued liabilities arising from financial contracts entered 

into, current liabilities arising from accrued claims and other liabilities. 

Table 81: Liabilities under financial contracts 

in EUR 31 December 2024 
31 December 2023 

recalculated 

1 January 2023 

recalculated 

Liabilities to members (technical provisions) 461,828,915 412,942,104 377,251,018 

- with guarantee 334,966,647 327,028,055 315,263,761 

- no guarantee 126,862,268 85,914,050 61,987,257 

Liabilities arising from the purchase of securities and other 

financial instruments 

390,000 0 0 

Accrued claims liabilities 1,492,488 1,146,935 1,225,493 

Other liabilities of pension funds 451,927 402,064 373,624 

-to the operator for the tees charged 435,943 394,906 363,003 

-to the custodian bank 12,225 7,159 9,985 

-tor unallocated member remittances 3,759 0 636 

Total 464,163,329 414,491,103 378,850,134  

The liabilities arising from financial contracts are presented in more detail in the annual report of the Joint Pension 

Fund Group managed by the Company. 

5.2.4.1.10.3 PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES 

The provision for employees of EUR 423,223 (previous year EUR 347,356) relates to provisions for jubilee bonuses 

and retirement gratuities established in accordance with the collective agreement and individual contracts, and to long-

term provisions due to the Management Board in respect of operating performance. 

 

 

 

 

 

Trade and other payables 

Total 
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Table 82: Movement in provisions for employees 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Balance as at 1 January 347,356 332,593 

release / consumption 70,031 58,088 

additional provisioning 145,898 72,851 

Balance as at 31 December 423,223 347,356 

  

 

Table 83: Absolute change in the level of employee benefits payable In 2024 – In EUR Parameter (change, type) Jubilee awards 

Retirement gratuities Total 

Discount rate (+0.25%, absolute) -282 -3,280 -3,562 
Discount rate (-0.25%, absolute) 291 3,408 3,699 

Wage growth (+0.5%, absolute) 0 7,594 7,594 
Wage growth (-0.5%, absolute) 0 -7,032 -7,032 

Staff turnover (+20.00% shift in the curve) -449 -3,239 -3,688 

Staff turnover (-20.00% shift in the curve) 474 3,393 3,867 

Mortality (+20 00% change in mortality) -54 -1,487 -1,541 

Mortality (-20.00% change in mortality) 54 1.504 1.558 

Table 84: Absolute change in the level of employee benefits payable in 2023 - in EUR Parameter (change, type) Jubilee 
awards Retirement gratuities Total    

 

Discount rate (+0.25%, absolute) -271 -3,146 -3,417 
Discount rate (-0.25%, absolute) 280 3,273 3,553 

Wage growth (+0 5%, absolute) 0 7,298 7,298 

Wage growth (-0.5%, absolute) 0 -6,758 -6,758 

Staff turnover (+20.00% shift in the curve) -448 -3,178 -3,626 

Staff turnover (-20.00% shift in the curve) 474 3,340 3,814 

Mortality (+20 00% change in mortality) -51 -1,525 -1,576 

Mortality (-20.00% change in mortality) 51 1.543 1.594 

5.2.4.1.10.4 OTHER PROVISIONS 

Table 85: Other provisions ______________  

in EUR 31 December 2024 31 Dec 2023 

Provisions for potential liabilities to cover funds 189,448 1,148,645 

Provisions for guaranteed factor annuities 1,739,078 2,490,393 

Total 1,928,526 3,639,038 

The Company makes two types of provisions, provisions for members who are entitled to an annuity with guaranteed 
factors and provisions for potential liabilities to cover funds to provide guaranteed returns. 

Following the settlement with the parent company, Triglav PD has undertaken to cover from its own resources any 

difference between the funds collected and the funds required for all members opting for an annuity with guaranteed 

factors. Based on actuarial calculations, the Company has aprovisionof EUR 1,739,078 (previous year EUR 

2,490,393) at the cut-off date for this purpose. 

Provisions for potential liabilities to cover funds for guaranteed returns were made at 31/12/2024 amounting to EUR 

189,448 (previous year EUR 1,148,645).
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5.2.4.1.10.5 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Table 86: Trade and other payables 

in EUR 31 December 2024 
31 

December 

Short-term payables to employees 183,132 159,014 

Other payables 545,177 717,507 

Accrued liabilities 86,599 156,791 

Total 814,908 1,033,312 

The largest item among short-term payables to employees is, as last year, the payroll payable for December 2024, 

which is due in January 2025. 
 

Other liabilities also relate to long-term lease liabilities under IFRS 16, which amounted to EUR 380,450 at 31 

December 2024 and EUR 544,865 at the end of 2023. The difference of EUR 164.727 at the cut-off date mainly relates 

to current trade payables. 

Accrued charges and expenses are deferred accrued charges and expenses. 

5.2.4.1.10.6 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Contingent assets and liabilities represented contractual commitments to contribute to alternative funds. On 31 

December 2024, we no longer have a balance of unrealised payments (the year before, the balance of unrealised 

payments in the commitment was still EUR 32,500). 

5.2.4.2 NOTES TO THE SEPARATE INCOME STATEMENT 

All items in the separate income statement relate to the Company's own operating resources, while items arising from 

technical operating resources (cover funds) are shown and explained in more detail in the annual reports of the cover 

funds (in accordance with the Decision on the annual report and interim financial statements of a pension fund 

constituted as a cover fund and of a group of cover funds issued by the Insurance Supervisory Agency). 

5.2.4.2.1 OPERATING REVENUE 

Under pension plans, the provider is entitled to entry, exit and management fees. Such income is the Company's 

operating income or income from fund management. 

Table 87: Operating income 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Entry fee 406,032 391,852 
Exit fee 93,554 85,650 

Management fee 4,377,051 3,919,141 

Total 4,876,637 4,396,642 
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5.2.4.2.2 . NET OPERATING COSTS 

Net operating costs are mainly divided into depreciation, labour costs and other operating costs. 

Table 88: Net operating costs 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Depreciation 268,596 282,697 
Labour costs 2,241,108 1,952,372 

Other operating costs 1,755,468 1,546,615 

Total 4,265,173 3,781,684 

Table 89: Depreciation 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Amortisation of intangible assets 33,230 38,496 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 43,211 62,957 

Right to use funds 192,155 181,244 

Total 268,596 282,697 

Table 90: Labour costs 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Salaries 1,546,394 1,369,279 

Social security and pensions 260,259 231,397 

-for social insurance 117,197 104,201 

-tor pensions 143,061 127,197 

Voluntary supplementary pension insurance and PPPs 151,298 142,168 

Meal and commuting allowances 54,965 54,217 

Holiday allowance 67,739 64,533 

Liabilities for management remuneration 137,695 25,000 

Other labour costs 2,268 2,005 

Provisions for employees 20,491 63,773 

Total 2,241,108 1,952,372 

The cost of voluntary supplementary pension insurance is entirely borne by the employer. On 31 December 2024, as 

in the previous year, there are no employee requests for payments to which the Company objects . There are no 

employee earnings or shares in distributed profits.   

Table 91: Other operating costs   

in EUR 2024 2023 

Operating material costs 35,664 36,993 

Operating costs of services 1,559,619 1,347,413 

Other operating costs 160,185 162,209 

Total 1,755,468 1,546,615 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Table 92: Audit-related costs 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Assurance services 36,128 32,446 
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Total 36,128 32,446 

5.2.4.2.3 OTHER REVENUE 

  

Table 93: Other revenue 

  

vEUR 2024 2023 

Revenue from reduced provisions for potential surcharges for non-achievement 908,437 3,783,399 

of guaranteed returns 

Revenue from reduced provisions for potential surcharges to members in the event 

terminations 521,608 
521,608 

0 

Revenue from the contract for the trusteeship, the common contact centre and the insurance 

PDPZ 

252,109 0 

Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 

0 1 500 
Other miscellaneous revenue 49 302 3,823 

Total 1.731.456 3.788.721 

The largest part of other income in 2024 is income from reduced provisions for non-achievement of guaranteed returns 

amounting to EUR 908,437 (last year EUR 3.8 million), as the situation in the financial markets has corrected compared 

to the previous year. Income from reduced provisions for potential surcharges to members in the event of regular 

terminations amounts to EUR 521.608. During 2024, some of the factors were removed, thus reducing the provisions 

made. In 2024, a large part of the revenue comes from the custody, joint contact centre and PDPZ insurance 

processing contract we have with the Triglav Insurance Company for an amount of EUR 252,109. There was no such 

revenue in 2023, as Triglav Insurance was issued a credit for overcharged costs in previous periods 

5.2.4.2.4 OTHER EXPENDITURE 

Table 94: Other expenditure 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Provisioning for potential surcharges to members in the event of regular interruptions 0 1,141,850 

Interest on leases under IFRS 16 6,538 7,162 

Other miscellaneous expenses 238 6,654 

Total 6,776 1,155,665 

Triglav PD covers from its own resources any difference between the funds collected and the funds required for all 

members who opt for an annuity with guaranteed factors. It therefore makes provisions during the year for potential 

surcharges to members in the event of regular interruptions. The actuarial calculation for 2023 shows that the Company 

has to make a provision of EUR 2.5 million at the cut-off date for this purpose, and therefore EUR 1.1 million has been 

charged to the current result. Whereas in 2024, according to the actuarial calculation, these provisions do not need to 

be made. 

Other expenses in 2024 include interest on IFRS 16 leases, which represented the highest value.  
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5.2.4.2.5 INVESTMENT INCOME 

Investment income consists of interest and dividend income, gains on disposals of investments and revaluation finance 

income and other investment income. 

Table 95: Investment income 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Interest income 1.265,726 1,049,010 
Income from dividends 78,068 92,389 

Gams on equity investments in associates 72,763 48,574 

Profit from disposal 64,984 67,029 

Revaluation financial income 255,132 154,431 

Other investment income 4,435 0 

Total 1,741,109 1,411,433  

Compared to 2023 interest income increased by EUR 216,716 or 20,7 % which is a result of a larger share of 

investments in the AC portfolio, where the change is expressed through the effective interest rate. Dividend income 

also decreased by EUR 14,321 or 15.5 %, as the share of investments in equity securities decreased. Revaluation 

financial revenues increased by EUR 100,701 or 65.2% compared to 2023 due to the positive valuation of investments 

in investment funds. Other investment income relates entirely to alternative investments. 

Profits from equity investments in associated companies relate only to the revaluation of the investment in the pension 

company Drustvo za upravljanje EDPF-om a.d. Banja Luka. 

Table 96: Interest income by investment classification 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Of sec. at fair value through other comprehensive income 732,030 330,469 

of sec. at amortised cost 331,034 397,481 

Of sec., at fair value through profit or loss 185,756 250,222 

Other interest income 16,906 70,837 

Total 1,265,726 1,049,010 

Table 97: Dividend income by investment classification 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Of sec. at fair value through other comprehensive income 0 88,545 

Of sec., at fair value through profit or loss 78,068 3,844 

Total 78,068 92,389 

Table 98: Gains on disposals by investment classification 

In EUR 2024 2023 

Of sec. at fair value through other comprehensive income 63,638 66,860 

Od v.p,, at fair value through profit or loss 1,346 169 

Total 64,984 67,029 
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Table 99: Revaluation financial income by investment classification 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Of sec. at fair value through other comprehensive income 0 9,556 

Of sec., at fair value through profit or loss 252,078 144,527 

Of sec, at amortised cost 3.055 347,51 

Total 255,132 154,431 

Table 100: Income from investments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income 

in EUR 2024 2023 
Interest income 732,030 330,469 

Income from dividends 0 88,545 

Profit from disposal 63,638 66,860 

Revaluation financial income 0 9.556 

Total 795,668 495,430 

Table 101: Income from investments classified at fair value through profit or loss 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Interest income 185,756 250,222 
Income from dividends 78,068 3,844 

Profit from disposal 1,346 169 

Revaluation financial income 252,078 144,527 

Other investment income 4,435 0 

Total 521,682 398,762 

Table 102: Investment income classified by amortized cost in EUR 2024 2023 

 

Interest income 331,034 397,481 
Revaluation financial income 3,055 348 

Total 334.089 397.829 

 

5.2.4.2.6 INVESTMENT EXPENSES 

Investment expenses consist of losses on disposal of investments and expenses from the re of investments. 

Table 103: Investment expenses 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Losses on disposal of investments 268,220 21,318 

Revaluation financial expenses 5,357 38,687 

Expenses from the valuation ot investments measured at fair value through profit or loss 135 36,473 

Credit loss expense on investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 3,449 

 

 2,274 

Expenses from credit losses on investments measured at amortized cost 1,773 
0 

Total 273,577 60,005  

The impact of the increase in the prices of financial instruments, which is reflected in revaluation financial expenses, 

which decreased by EUR 33,330 compared to 2023 (the previous year they decreased by EUR 790,391). Losses on 

disposal of investments  
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increased by EUR 246,902 compared to 2023, which is a result of several matured bonds whose nominal price at 

maturity was lower than the purchase price. 

5.2.4.2.7 NET EFFECTS OF INVESTMENTS 

Table 104: Net effects of investment income and expenditure 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Investment income 1,741,109 1,411,433 

Investment expenses 273,577 60,005 

Total 1,467,532 1,351,428 

Table 105: Net effects on the sale of investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Profit from disposal 63,638 169 

Losses on disposals 267,514 0 

Total -203,876 169 

Table 106: Net effects on the sale of investments measured at fair value through profit or loss 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Profit from disposal 1.346 66.060 

Losses on disposals 706 0 

Total 640 66.060 

5.2.4.3 CHANGE OF LIABILITIES FROM FINANCIAL CONTRACTS  

The change in liabilities from contracts concluded with members includes net payments based on these contracts, 

reduced by calculated gross amounts of claims and costs that, in accordance with the management rules, may be 

charged to pension funds, investment income and expenses, and the change in short-term liabilities from these 

contracts.The value and movement of the value of all pension funds of both groups of life cycle cover funds are 

expressed as the net asset value through the net asset value (NAV) and the number of asset units: 

in EUR 2024 2023 

recalculated 

1 January 2023 

recalculated 

Balance of NAV on the first day of the current year 326,651,050 315,263,761 336,839,03

2 Paid-in units 21,632,197 22,610,864 24,354,55

8 Paid-out units 21,915,604 18,829,063 21,614,77

5 Net profit for the year 8,599,003 7,982,493 -24,315,054 

Closing balance of unit values 334,966,647 327,028,054 315,263,761 

   

 

 

Table 107: Assets from financial contracts: Bond SPS - Movement of NAV 
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Table 108: Assets from financial contracts: Bond SPS - Movement of NAV 

2024 1 January 2023 
2023 recalculated recalculated 

Initial number of units 31,011,872 30,670,757 30,378,471 
Number of paid-in units 2,065,638 2,191,701 2,354,566 

Number of paid-out units 2,053,270 1,813,179 2,062,281 

Final number of units 31,024,240 31,049,279 30,670,757  

 
Fable 109: Assets from financial contracts: Mesani SPS - Movement of AV 

in EUR 2024 
2023 recalculated 

1 January 2023 

recalculated 

Initial value of the NAV 41,916,678 33,661,101 30,858,457 

Paid-in units 7,936,418 6,310,190 8,409,187 
Paid-out units 948,992 1,024,873 2 722 288 

Net profit for the year 9,666,602 4,064,169 -3,323,185 

Closing balance of unit values 58,570,707 43,010,587 33,222,170 

Table 110: Assets from financial contracts: Mixed SPS - Movement in the number of asset units 
 

 

2024 
2023 recalculated 

1 January 2023 

recalculated 

Initial number of units 3,067,908 2,754,777 2,270,793 

Number of paid-in units 610,051 502,143 698,326 

Number of paid-out units 66,151 83,046 214,342 

Final number of units 3,611,808 3,173,874 2,754,777  

 
Table 111: Assets from financial contracts: Delniški SPS - Movement of NAV 

in EUR 2024 
1 January 2023 

2023 recalculated recalculated 

Initial value of the NAV 40.214.191 28,326,156 24,486,184 

Paid-in units 13,787,278 10,520,805 8,389,880 

Paid-out units 648,505 607,470 2,018,699 

Net profit for the year 14,938,597 4,663,972 -2,531,209 

Closing balance of unit values 68,291,561 42,903,463 28,326,156 

 

 
Table 112: Assets from financial contracts: Delniški SPS - Movement of NAV 
 

2024 2023 recalculated 1 January 2023 

recalculated 

Initial number of units 2,463,612 2,019,688 1,558,406 

Number of paid-in units 908,763 738,014 596,344 

Number of paid-out units 36,524 43,791 135,063 

Final number of units 3,335,851 2,713,914 2,019,688 
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The assets and liabilities of the group of life cycle funds managed by the company are presented in more detail in the 

annual report of the Joint Pension Fund. 

5.2.4.4. NOTES TO THE SEPARATE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

The separate statement of comprehensive income shows net profits or losses for the period and income and 

expenses of all components of comprehensive income for the period. 

Table 113: Transfer of gains and losses from revaluation surplus due to disposals in the separate income statement 

in EUR 2024 2023 

- transfer of losses to Income statement 267 904 20 704 
- transfer of profits to IS 63 044 66860 

- retained earnings on disposal of equity securities 0 0 

Total 204,860 -46,156  

In 2024, the net effect of transfers of gains or losses on disposals from the fair value reserve was an increase of EUR 

204,860 (previous year: decrease of EUR 46,156). Of this amount, EUR 267,904 (previous year: EUR 20,704) 

relates to losses carried forward to income statement, EUR 63,044 (previous year: EUR 66,860) to profits carried 

forward to income statement. There were no retained earnings from the disposal of equity securities this year (same 

as previous year). 

in EUR 2024 2023 

- losses 3,236,353 2,530,900 

- profits 3,998,492 3,545,328 

Total 762,139 1,014,428 

  

The net effects of changes in the fair value reserve due to the remeasurement of financial assets measured at fair 

value through other comprehensive income were positive in 2024 in the amount of EUR 762,139 (also positive in 

2023 in the amount of EUR 1,014,428 

Table 115: Impairments due to expected loss 

in EUR 2024 2023 

- impairment due to expected loss 394 -7,342 

Total 394 -7,342 

In 2024, as a result of measurement in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, net impairments due to expected 

losses in the amount of EUR 394 occurred, while the previous year there was a net reversal of impairments in the 

amount of EUR 7,342.

Table 114: Gains and losses recognised in the fair value reserve due to remeasurement 
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5.2.4.4. NOTES TO THE SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are prepared based on balance sheet data and adjusted for 

accounting items that do not represent cash flows (depreciation, impairments, provisioning). Receipts and expenses for 

intangible assets and tangible fixed assets are calculated based on the change in the book value and adjusted for the amount 

of depreciation. Cash flows in financing reflect actual payments and disbursements 

In 2024, the company generated a positive cash flow from operations in the amount of EUR 542,872 (EUR 220,890 last year), 

which is a result of higher income than operating expenses in this period Cash flow from investing activities was negative in 

the amount of EUR 1,432,125 (EUR -2,818,996 last year), mainly as a result of higher expenses for increasing financial 

investments through other comprehensive income in the amount of EUR 12,167,146 (EUR 5,711,284 last year). This year, 

there were more receipts due to a decrease in financial investments at fair value in the amount of EUR 6,175,050 (last year, 

we had expenses from these investments in the amount of EUR 3,370,923), while receipts due to a decrease in investments 

at amortized cost were slightly lower this year, namely EUR 3,285,884 (last year, they amounted to EUR 5,248,328). There 

was no cash flow from financing in 2024 (same as last year). 

5.2.5 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS 

As of the balance sheet date, the company reports a capital investment in the associated company Drustvo za upravljanje 

evropskom dobrovoljnim penzijskim fondom ad, Banja Luka with paid-in capital of 1,496,000 KM (764.893 EUR) and a 34 

percent share. The company values the investment using the equity method and as of 31 December 2024 amounts to EUR 

561,985 (EUR 489,221 the year before). The difference between 2023 and 2024 is revaluation revenues in the amount of 

EUR 72,763 (last year EUR 48,574). 

The controlling company Triglav, pokojninske druzbe, d.d. is Zavarovalnica Triglav, d.d. Triglav PD is its subsidiary and part 

of the Triglav Group. 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. leases business premises and parking spaces in an office building at Dunajska cesta 22, 

Ljubljana, from Zavarovalnica Triglav. - December 2023, the use of rented buildings amounted to EUR 506,719 (EUR 616,012 

the previous year). IFRS 16 requires the lessee to recognize the lease agreement in its separate statement of financial position 

as an increase in fixed assets with the right to use the leased buildings. 

As at 31 December 2024 Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. shows receivables from Zavarovalnica Triglav in the total amount 

of EUR 11,488 (previous year: EUR 11,334). The total amount represents active accrued costs for accident insurance cf 

insured persons in the event of death and 100 % disability, as a result of an accident, far the period of the last three months 

of 2024. 

The balance of short-term liabilities to Zavarovalnica Triglav as of 31 December 2024 EUR 21,309 (previous year EUR 

16,342). For voluntary pension insurance Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. pays part of the premium to its employees, and on 

the last day of the year it owes Zavarovalnica Triglav a monthly premium cf EUR 9,373 EUR (last year 7,559 EUR). There is 

also an open liability under the contract on mutual cooperation in procurement procedures in 

2024 in the amount of EUR 732 (the same as last year) and a liability for administrative transfer costs in the amount of EUR 

45. As of 31 December 2024, TPD also owes a fee for processing insurance claims in the amount of EUR 9,962. 

Balance of long-term liabilities as of 31 December 2024 was EUR 2,095,040 (EUR 3.007.114 the year before). Part of the 

amount of EUR 355,962 (EUR 625 310 the previous year) is for the rental of business premises and parking lots. The 

difference in the amount of EUR 1,739,078 EUR (the previous year 2,490,392) is represented by longterm provisions formed 

for potential additional payments for annuities with guaranteed factors. 

Zavarovalnica Triglav performs for Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. quite a few services. Under the contract, it provides for 
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the lease of the information system of Zavarovalnica Triglav and related outsourcing services for the business needs of 

Triglav, pokojninska druiba, d.d., which also provides support for the i.triglav portal, for which the cost in 2024 was EUR 

163,746 EUR (167,999 EUR the previous year). 

92 
Zavarovalnica Triglav manages part of the company's assets and technical operating resources for which it charged EUR 

187,326 in 2024, in accordance with the contractual agreement, while in 2023 this cost was EUR 121,991. 

Cost related to company car insurance of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. at Zavarovalnica Triglav for 2024 amounted to 

EUR 10,928, and the year before it was EUR 10 703. 

The company has a policy of accident insurance for members with Zavarovalnica Triglav in the event of death and 100 

%disability as a result of an accident (bonus for members who are included in voluntary supplementary pension insuranceat 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. in life cycle hedge funds). The cost of this insurance in 2024 amounted to EUR 45,797 EUR, 

a year before 45,406 EUR. 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d., has taken out collective accident insurance for its employees with Zavarovalnica Triglav. In 

2024, the premium is EUR 3,370 (the year before it was EUR 2,566). Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. also pays a part of the 

premium for voluntary pension insurance with Zavarovalnica Triglav to its employees , the cost for 2024 is EUR 92,541 EUR 

(a year before 84,495 EUR) 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. has leased business premises and parking spaces at Dunajska 22 in Ljubljana from 

Zavarovalnica Triglav for its operations. The cost for this was EUR 185,865 in 2024 (EUR 179,523 in 2023). 

The administrative costs for the transfer of pension insurance to Zavarovalnica Triglav in 2024 amount to EUR 345 (EUR 420 

the previous year). 

According to the agreement on mutual cooperation in procurement procedures in 2024, expenses amount to EUR 732 (the 

same year before) 

According to the insurance agency contract held by Triglav, pokojninska dru2ba, d.d. concluded with Zavarovalnica Triglav, 

the annual cost is EUR 43,067 (EUR 49,037 the previous year). 

The agreement on custody, contact center and processing of PDPZ was concluded during the project of consolidation of 

pension insurance activities within Zavarovalnica Triglav. Contract expenses in 2024 amounted to EUR 99,164 (EUR 143 301 

the previous year). Triglav pokojninska druzba, d d and this contract will result in revenues for 2024 in the amount of EUR 

252,109 In 2023, TPD should have received revenues of EUR 251 946 from this contract, but a credit note of EUR -257,655 

was issued during 2023. The credit related to overcharged costs for the current year 2023 and part of the years 2021 and 

2022 when not all activities under the contract were carried out due to Covid-19. The credit amount was drawn down 

successively during the year. At the end of 2023, a decision was made to settle the amount in full, so Triglav PD had expenses 

of EUR 5,709 under this contract at the end of the year. 

The remaining part of the revenues of Triglav, pokojninska druZba, d.d. in the amount of EUR 225 (last year EUR 

225) is due for administrative costs due to the transfer of insured assets (in accordance with the ZPIZ-2 Act) to Zavarovalnica 

Triglav. Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. cashed in a policy to cover damages to company cars in the amount of EUR 1,211 

(last year for EUR 731). 

- In 2024 Triglav pokojninska druZba d.d., also had business cooperation with companies affiliated through the state, which 

are shareholders of Zavarovalnica Triglav. The cooperation was limited to regular business cooperation, namely 
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Triglav,pokojninska druzba, d.d. generated EUR 19,864 in revenue (no revenue was generated the previous year) and EUR 

83,818 in costs or expenses (EUR 115,942 the previous year). As at 31 December 2024 did not disclose any liabilities to 

these companies (the previous year the amount of liabilities was EUR 10,767). In addition, at the end of 2024, it also disclosed 

investments in shares of the aforementioned companies in the amount of EUR 215,492 (the previous year in the amount of 

EUR 78,671). 

 

Table 116: Labor costs of the management board, supervisory board and committees 

in EUR 2024 2023 

Management costs 734,438 575,351 
- gross salaries and bonuses 574,214 432,844 

- other 71,847 75,191 

- employer costs 88,377 67,316 

Labor costs of the supervisory board and committees 37,955 41,346 

Total 772,393 616,697 

The data on the cost of management work in the table above refers to gross salaries, performance 
bonuses, other (mainly insurance) and employer contributions 

The amounts stated in the following paragraph show the remuneration of the Management Board and the 

remuneration of the Supervisory Board members in 2024. which also include variable remuneration of the 

Management Board for previous financial years, but were paid in the year 2024, therefore, they cannot be 

equated with the costs in the table, which are summarized according to the gross balance of the financial year. 

In 2024, the members of the management board received EUR 444,282 gross in salary (EUR 408,812 last year). 

The members of the management board received EUR110,712asa reward for successful operations (EUR 

38,808 a year earlier). For voluntary supplementary pension insurance premiums each person received the same 

amount of EUR 2,903 from their employer (EUR 2,903 last year). The values of the bonuses, which mainly relate 

to various insurance policies and the use of a company vehicle for private purposes, were EUR 71,293 for 

members of the management board (EUR 66,083 last year). 

The gross remuneration of the members of the Supervisory Board and the Audit Committee in 2024 was EUR 

35,000 (EUR 37,870 last year). 

In 2024 (the same as the previous year), there was no compensation for losses arising from legal transactions with the 

controlling company and its affiliated companies. Based on Article 527 and 545 of ZGD-1, the company's management 

submitted a report on relationships with affiliated companies, in which it established that Triglav pokojninska druZba, dd based 

on the circumstances known to the management at the time the legal transaction was carried cut, it was not disadvantaged 

in the aforementioned transactions with the controlling company and its affiliated companies, or in 2024 and the year before, 

no legal transaction was carried out or no action was taken or omitted that would have caused damage to the company and 

that would have been a consequence of the controlling company's influence. 
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5.2.6 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET 

On 10 January 2025, an application was submitted to the Insurance Agency of the Republika Srpska (AZORS) to obtain a 

permit or consent to increase the stake of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. d„ in the company EDPF Banja Luka from the 

current 34 % to 67 %. On 10 February 2025, we received a request to supplement the documentation, which we duly 

implemented. On 12 March 2025, we received final approval or permission from the regulator AZORS to increase our share. 

In the further process on 24 March 2025 we also received an opinion from the Competition Protection Office of Bosnia and 

Herzegovina (Konkurencijsko vijece BiH), which stated that the concentration must be notified in accordance with the 

Competition Act of BiH. We estimate that we will successfully complete all procedures and the increase (purchase) of the 

stake by the end of the year 2025 

6 REPORT ON THE WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD 

REPORT ON THE WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD OF TRIGLAV, POKOJNINSKA DRUZBA, d.d. 

FOR THE BUSINESS YEAR 2024 

1. Introduction 

The Supervisory Board of Triglav, pokojninske dru^be, d.d, operated in accordance with s the plan of action of 

the supervisory board in year 2024. It more actively followed and supervised business of the company, regularly 

reviewed quarterly, annually and other reports about its operation and management, adopted the appropriate 

decisions and supervised their implementation. Individual questions were previously discussed within the 

framework of the supervisory board committees, which, based on their findings and recommendations, based on 

the careful consideration of the Supervisory Board, enabled to adopt appropriate decisions by the supervisory 

board. 

The Supervisory Board performed its work in accordance with authorisations and competences specified with 

legal regulations, the company's articles of association and Rules of Procedure for the supervisory world. 

2. General information 

Supervisory Board 

As at 31 DEC 2024 the supervisory board was composed of: 

i. representatives of capital: 

o Blaz Jakic (President of the Supervisory Board) 

o Blaz Kmetec (deputy president of the supervisory board) 

o Miha Grilec, o Miran Kalcic - members who represent the interests of pension funds: 

o Borut Simonic, 

o Vesna Vodopivec, o Helena Lokar, 

At the 33rd General Meeting of 26 April 2024, the general meeting appointed members of supervisory world, 

which represent the interests of shareholders (representatives of capital) Miha Grilc and Miran Kalcic, and 

members, representing the interests of pension funds, Vesna Vodopivec, Borut Simonic and Helena Lokar, for 
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four-year term of office, which began on 30 April 2024. 

At the session 1/2024 of 14 March 2024, the supervisory board at the proposal of the audit committee and the 

committee for appointment and receipts and in accordance with provisions of the Policy on assessment of 

qualifications and suitability of members of the management board and the Supervisory Board of Triglav 

pokojninska druzba d.d. named Marija Cerjak as a member of the audit committee - external member, 

independent expert, qualified for 

accounting or audit for four-year term of office from 30 April 2024 to 30 April 2028. 

At the founding session (3/2024 session) of the Supervisory Board on 31 May 2024, the supervisory board was 

informed of the appointing of members of the supervisory board, and they adopted a decision with which Blaz 

Jakic remained the president of the supervisory board and Natasa Veselinovic, as deputy of the supervisory 

board. At the same session the supervisory board appointed Natasa Veselinovic as the president of audit 

commission, Miha Grilc as the deputy and Blaz Kmetec as member of the audit commission and for president of 

the commission for appointments and remunerations Blaz Jakic is apponzed, and Miha Grilec and Miran Kalcic 

as members. 

Term of office of members of the audit committee and the committee for appointments and receipts, which are 

concurrent members of Supervisory Board of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. terminates at the same time as 

expiration of term of office in the Supervisory Board or due to another interruption. 

At the 5/2024 session of 13 November 2024 the supervisory world got informed of the resignation of the 

member of the Supervisory Board Natasa Veselinovic, based on which her term of office ended on 1 October 

2024, so the supervisory board appopinted as a deputy president of supervisory board Blaza Kmetec, and Miha 

Grilec as Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board and Blaz Kmetec as Deputy Chairman of 

the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board. 

At 34th general meeting of shareholders on 23 December 2024 the sole shareholder was informed of the 

resignation statement of Natasa Veselinovic who was a member of the supervisory board until 1 October 2024. 

Supervisory Board has formed two Commissions, Audit commission and The Commission for appointment and 

remuneration. 

ii. Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board 

As at 31 December 2024 the members of the audit committee were Miha Grilec (President of the Audit 

Committee), Blaz Kmetec (Deputy Chairman of the Audit Committee) and Marija Cerjak as external 

independent expert. 

iii. Supervisory Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

As at 31 December 2024 the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were Blaz Jakic 

(president), Miha Grilec and Miran Kalcic. 
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3. Report on the work of the Supervisory Board and verification of the company's 

management during the financial year 2024 

The Supervisory Board met in 2024 at six regular sessions and one correspondence session. Regular sessions 

of the supervisory board meetings were held at the company's premises, sometimes also in a hybrid format 

upon request of the members and approval of the president via video conferencing session (MS Teams tool). 

Supervisory board monitored the business of the company for past and current periods. In addition, the 

Supervisory Board monitored the operation of the commissions and monitored, dealt with and decided on the 

following important matters: 

- annual report for the financial year 2024, 

- annual internal audit report for financial year 2024, 

- supervisory board report for financial year 2024, 

- reports of the key internal audit function, 

- report of key actuarial functions, 

- reports of key functions for risk management, 

- Reports of key functions for monitoring business compliance, 

- implementation of the company's operating strategy for the past three years, 

- periodic suitability monitoring and adequacy of the management board and supervisory board, 

- monitored suitability and appropriateness of candidates for members of the supervisory board, 

- materials for general meetings, 

- proposal to the general meeting for use of accumulated profit, 

- proposal to the general meeting for the recapitalization of the company, 

- business plan for the year 2025, 

- plan for key functions of internal audits for 2024, 

- annual plan of the key risk management function for 2024, 

- annual plan of the key compliance monitoring function for 2024, 

- monitored the work of the audit committee, 

- monitored the work of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

- monitored the company's capital adequacy, 

- monitored the implementation of the company's investment policy and guarantee funds, 

- gave consent to the appointment of a new actuary, 

- monitored the operation of the pension company in the Republic of Srpska, 

- Was informed of the transfer of guarantee funds of supplementary pension insurance of Zavarovalnica 

Triglav to Triglav, pokojninska druzba, 

- the performance of the management board, 

- remuneration of the management board and, - approval of rules for company management. 

The Supervisory Board, in addition to its own decisions, generally adopted resolutions proposed by the company's 

management board or the competent committee of the supervisory board. In accordance with its powers, the 

supervisory board adopted or gave consent to regulations, policies and rules of procedure for the adoption of 

which the consent of the Supervisory Board is required. Among the more important ones, it gave his consent to 

the internal acts: the Risk Undertaking and Management Strategy. Statement of risk appetite, Actuarial Function 
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Rules. Rules on internal controls, Remuneration policies and Rules on remuneration and other rights of members 

of the management board. The Supervisory Board was informed of the implementation of minimum standards. 

The Supervisory Board has tasked the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to carry out the nomination 

procedure for the appointment of new members of the Supervisory Board whose term of office expired in 2024, 

in accordance with the Policy on the Assessment of the Qualification and Suitability of Management Board 

Members and Supervisory Board of T rig I a v, pokojnnska druzba, d.d. The Supervisory Board approved the 

committee's proposals and gave a positive assessment of implementation criteria or circumstances regarding 

qualifications and suitability of members of the management and supervisory board as individuals and as a whole. 

In 2024, the Supervisory Board conducted a self-assessment of its operations and adopted measures to 

improve its operations. 

Cooperation between supervisory board, its committees and the management was very good. 

4. Report on work of supervisory board commissions in year 2024 

Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board 

The Audit Committee met in 2024 at five regular sessions and one correspondence session. The Committee, 

among other things, monitored and discussed the operation of the key internal audit function (internal audit 

work plan, monitoring the work of the department, monitoring the implementation of recommendations), and 

was informed of the reports of the key compliance monitoring function of the company, it was informed of 

reports of the key risk management function, evaluated and provided comments on the annual report for 2024 

and the report on relationships with related persons, company reservations, capital adequacy of the company, 

held a meeting with the head of the key internal audit function without the presence of the management board, 

determined the most important audit areas for the external audit for the 2024 financial year, conducted an 

assessment of the quality of the external audit, and monitored the independence of the external auditor's 

operations. 

The Audit Committee has provided an opinion on the Internal Audit Work Plan for 2025, and was informed of 

the key action plan functions Risk Management for 2025 and the Work Plan for key monitoring functions 

compliance for 2025. Audit Committee also conducted a self-assessment of Committee activities and adopted 

an action plan based on the results. 

Supervisory Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

In 2024 Supervisory Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee met at five regular sessions, some 

sessions were conducted as video conference sessions (MS Teams). Commission performed a competency 

assessment and suitability of candidates for members of supervisory board. All candidates were rated as 

individuals and as whole and gave proposals to the supervisory board. Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee also checked management awards for the past business year and discussed the self-assessment of 
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the functioning of the Supervisory Board and action plan. At its last session in 2024 the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee discussed the draft of the Remuneration Policy and Rules about benefits and other 

rights of management members and methodology for measuring the performance of Triglav, pokojninska 

druzba, d.d. for the year 2025 and proposed to the Supervisory Board to give its consent. 

5. The position of the Supervisory Board to internal audit reports for 2024 

Supervisory Board received the Annual report on internal audit in 2024. Based on annual report and based on 

the annual monitoring of operating activities of key internal audit function, the supervisory board was informed of 

the internal audit and performance of planned internal audits in the period under review, content of internal audits 

and key findings and recommendations of internal auditors in the period under review, the implementation of the 

recommendations of internal auditors in the period under consideration and with suitability assessment and risk 

management effectiveness and operations system of internal controls on audited areas. Based on the above and 

on positive opinion of the Audit Committee, the Supervisory Board gave a positive opinion of the Annual report 

on internal audit for year 2024. Supervisory Board had no comments on Annual report on internal audit for year 

2024. The management informed the General meeting with the annual report on internal audit and the opinion of 

the Supervisory Board to the report. 

6. Supervisory Board's position on the audit report 

Based on the audit opinion of Deloitte revizija d.o.o., which ensures that the financial statements of Triglav, 

pokojninska druzba, d.d., which contain the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2024, the income 

statement, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of 

cash flows and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, present fairly, in all 

material respects, the financial position of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. as at 31 December 2024, and its 

financial result and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards as adopted by the EU, the Supervisory Board, after a thorough review, issued a positive opinion on 

the audit report  
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7. Supervisory Board comments on the annual report tor 2024 

The Supervisory Board found that the annual report was prepared and submitted to the Supervisory Board 

within the legal deadline, together with the auditor's report.. After the completion of detailed checks of annual 

report for 2024 the supervisory board had no comments on the Audited annual report for Triglav, pokojninska 

druzba, d.d. for the business year that ended on 31 December 2024. 

8. Supervisory Board's position on the annual report for 2024 

Based on the audited annual report for 2024, the audit opinion of Deloitte revizija d.o.o., the opinion of the key 

function holder - actuarial function and the proposal of the audit committee of the supervisory board of Triglav, 

pokojninska druzba, d.d., the Supervisory Board approved the Audited Annual Report of Triglav, pokojninska 

druzba, d.d. for the business year that ended on 31 December 2024. 

9. Report on relations with affiliated companies 

The Supervisory Board was informed of the Independent Auditor's Report and reviewed the Related Party 

Relationships Report. Based on the review of the report and the auditor's report, that based on the procedures 

performed and the evidence obtained, nothing was observed that would cause us to believe that the statements 

in the Related Party Relationships Report for the year ended 2024 were not accurate in all material respects, that 

in the legal transactions listed in the report, given the circumstances known at the time of the conclusion of these 

transactions, the value of the company's performance was disproportionately high in a material respect, and that 

there were circumstances that, with regard to other actions listed in the report, would indicate a significantly 

different assessment of disadvantage than that given by management, the Supervisory Board had no comments 

on the report and issued a positive opinion on the Related Party Relationships Report. 

10. Proposal for the use of accumulated profit 

The Supervisory Board also reviewed the proposal of the company's management board for the use of 

distributable profit as of 31 December 2024, which will be finally decided by the general meeting of shareholders 

of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. The Supervisory Board agreed with the proposal of the Management Board 

to propose to the General Meeting of the Company that the accumulated profit of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, 

d.d., which amounts to EUR 13,033,825.62 as of 31 December 2024 and consists of the remaining net profit of 

the 2024 financial year in the amount of EUR 2,355,473.68 and from net profits carried forward from previous 

years in the amount of EUR 10,678,351.94 remains unallocated. 

The Supervisory Board also proposed to the General Meeting of Shareholders of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, 

d.d., to grant the company's management board a discharge for operations in 2024.
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Ljubljana, 16 April 2025 

Blaz Jakic 

President of the Supervisory Board 
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7 OPINION OF THE ACTUARIAL FUNCTION HOLDER 

OPINION OF THE ACTUARIAL FUNCTION HOLDER ON THE ANNUAL REPORT 

As the holder of the actuarial function of Triglav, pokojninska druSba, dd I have actuarially verified the calculation 

of liabilities from pension insurance contracts, the status of insurance technical provisions and capital adequacy as 

of 31 December 2024. The management board of the pension company is responsible for the company's operations 

and the status of insurance technical provisions. 

I conducted the actuarial review in accordance with the Pension and Disability Insurance Act, relevant 

implementing regulations, international financial reporting standards, and the rules on the implementation of the 

actuarial function in Triglav, pokojninski druzba, dd. and fundamental actuaria principles. I am confident that my 

actuarial review provides an appropriate basis for the issuance of an actuarial opinion. 

Based on the actuarial review performed, I believe that the data necessary to calculate liabilities from pension 

insurance contracts are appropriate, sufficient and of good quality and that the pension company uses appropriate 

methods, models and assumptions to calculate liabilities from pension insurance contracts. Where assumptions 

were used, they were reasonably determined based on experience or actuarial judgment. Liabilities from pension 

insurance contracts, as formed by the pension company, are measured at an appropriate level in relation to the 

pension company's liabilities arising from or in connection with pension insurance contracts. 

The pension company does not have a general policy for concluding pension insurance contracts. The pension 

company did not start concluding new types of pension insurance contracts during the year. 

As the holder of the actuarial function, I participate in the implementation of the risk management system. 

I believe that the insurance technical provisions have been properly calculated (which includes the appropriateness 

of the methods and assumptions used in the calculation) and assessed in accordance with the provisions of the 

resolution governing insurance technical provisions. For each of the three insurance funds, the insurance technical 

provisions are covered by investments. 

The required minimum capital is EUR 14,667,289. Since the available capital is EUR 65,124,369, the pension 

company meets the capital requirements as of 31 December 2024 and the capital adequacy ratio is 444%. The 

proposal to use retained earnings does not reduce the capital adequacy ratio. 

Ljubljana, 9 March 2025 

Dejan Siraj, PhD (United Kingdom), 

Chartered Actuary (AIA), full member of the Association of Slovenian 

Actuaries, 

holder of the actuarial function of Triglav, pension company,
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8 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 

Tek+386(0) 1 3072 800 Faks: +386(01)1 372 900 www deloitte si 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT 

to the shareholder of Triglav, pokojninska druiba, d.d. 

Financial statement audit report 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. (hereinafter referred to as the 'Company'), which 

include the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 a separate income statement, a statement of other 

comprehensive income, a separate statement of changes in equity and a separate statement of cash flows for the year then 

ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of the 

company as at 31 December 2024 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (hereinafter 'IFRS'), 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the 

European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on specific requirements relating to the statutory audit of public 

interest entities (Regulation). Our responsibilities under these rules are described in this report in the Auditor's Responsibilities 

for the Audit of the Financial Statements paragraph In accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional 

Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for 

Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements relevant to the audit of financial statements in Slovenia, we confirm 

our independence from the company and that we have fulfilled all other ethical requirements in accordance with these 

requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements 

for the financial year ended 31 December 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 

statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Audited annual report for the financial year ending 31/12/2024 

Deloitte. 

Valuation of liabilities from financial contracts 

Key audit matter Audit procedures related to a key audit matter 

Accounting policies, which also describe the key assumptions, methodologies and models used to calculate the 

liabilities of 12 financial contracts, are presented in disclosure 5.2 2.6.10. Liabilities from financial contracts 

(accounting policies). Other related disclosures are described in disclosure 5.2.4.1.10.1. Liabilities under financial 

contracts 

Deloitte. 
Deloitte revizija d o o. 

Dunajska cesta 165 

10D0 Ljubljana 

Slovenia 

http://www.deloitte.si/
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To evaluate liabilities from financial contracts, which are identified as 

a key audit matter, we performed the following audit procedures 

together with actuarial experts: 

• We reviewed the appropriateness of accounting policies. 

• We obtained an understanding of the control environment and 

internal controls established by management in the process of 

calculating liabilities from insurance contracts, including the 

applications and IT tools used. We assessed the adequacy of the 

design and verification of the implementation of identified internal 

controls important for the process of valuing liabilities from insurance 

contracts. We tested the effectiveness of the relevant identified 

internal controls over the valuation of liabilities from insurance 

contracts. 

• We reviewed the procedures for analyzing economic and non-

economic assumptions used to calculate liabilities from financial 

contracts. 

• We examined the appropriateness of management’s key 

assumptions. We examined the appropriateness of management’s 

key assumptions used in estimating the amount of liabilities from 

financial investments and reconciled them with the appropriate 

supporting documentation. We assessed whether the liabilities from 

financial contracts are disclosed in accordance with the requirements 

of the accounting framework, industry practice and legal 

requirements. 

• We also reviewed the disclosures in the financial 

statements to assess whether information related to 

liabilities under financial contracts is adequately disclosed. 

ending 31/12/2024 

Deloitte 

Other information 

Management is responsible for other information. Other Information comprises information in the annual report, but does not 

include the Financial Statements and the auditor’s report thereon. We obtained other information prior to the date of the auditor's 

report, except for the Supervisory Board's report, which will be available later 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not relate to, and we do not express any form of assurance about, other 

information. 

In connection with the aforementioned audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and , in 

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, legal requirements or 

our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated If, based on the work performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of other information, we are required to report such circumstances. In this regard, 

based on the procedures described, we report that: 

* the other information is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements 

* other information is prepared in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, and  

As of December 31,2024, liabilities from financial contracts 

in the company's financial statements amount to 464,163 

thousand (2023: EUR 414,491 thousand). 

Liabilities from financial contracts relate to the required 

coverage of funds in the Joint Pension Fund, which include 

the bond joint pension fund with guaranteed return 

(Guaranteed), the Mixed Joint Pension Fund (Mixed) and 

the Equity Joint Pension Fund (Equity). 

Liabilities from financial contracts are calculated using the 

retrospective accounting method. The calculation method 

takes into account actual payments, accrued costs that 

may be charged to the funds in accordance with the fund 

management rules, payouts and accruals of returns in the 

past period up to the valuation date. Liabilities from 

financial contracts are formed in an amount sufficient to 

cover all foreseeable liabilities from concluded financial 

contracts. 

Liabilities from financial contracts are significant 

accounting estimates and are subject to a high degree of 

judgment. Due to the above and due to their importance in 

the Company's Statement of Financial Position, liabilities 

from financial contracts are considered a key audit matter. 
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Based on the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained during the audit we did not 

identify any material misstatements in relation to the other information. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with IFRS and 

for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process 

Auditor's responsibility for the audit of financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion Reasonable assurance is a 

high level of assurance, but not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these financial statements 

We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism when conducting an audit in accordance with 

International Standards on Auditing. Also: 

• We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those assessed risks, and obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis 

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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• We obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's internal controls. 

• We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management. 

• Based on the audit evidence obtained regarding the existence of a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that cast 

significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern, we conclude on the appropriateness of management's 

use of the going concern basis of accounting. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 

in our auditor's report to the relevant disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. The auditor's conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor's report. However, 

subsequent events or circumstances may cause the organization to cease to exist as a going concern. 

• We evaluate the overall presentation structure, content of the financial statements, including disclosures and whether the 

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation 

We discuss with those charged with governance, among other things, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence and discuss with them all relationships and other requirements that may reasonably be thought to bear on 

our independence and, when applicable, the actions taken to address threats or safeguards applied 

From all the matters discussed with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 

the audit of the financial statements of the period under review. These are therefore the key audit matters We describe these 

matters in the auditor's report unless law or regulation prevents public disclosure of those matters, or when, in exceptionally rare 

circumstances, we decide not to communicate the matters in the report because we reasonably expect that the adverse 

consequences of doing so would be greater than the public benefits of such communication 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

Report on the requirements of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 ot European Parliament and the Council (EU Regulation No. 

537/2014) 

Certificate to the audit committee 

We confirm that our auditor's opinion on the financial statements included in this report is consistent with the additional report to the 

audit committee in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council. 

Prohibited services 

We confirm that we have not provided services to the company as referred to in Article 5(1) of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 of the 

European Parliament and the Council, and the audit firm met the requirements for auditing independence 

Other services of the auditing company 

The audit firm did not provide any other services to the audited company, apart from auditing the financial statements, other than 

those disclosed in the annual report. 

Appointment of the audit firm and the responsible certified auditor  
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Deloitte, 

Deloitte revizija d.o.o. was appointed as the company's statutory auditor at the company's general meeting on 27 June 2022, and the 

Chairman of the Supervisory Board signed the auditing contract on 9 November 2022 The contract was concluded tor a period of three 

years. We have been performing mandatory audits of the company's financial statements continuously since 21 October 2019. 

On behalf of the auditing company Deloitte revizija d.o.o. Barbara Zibret Kralj is responsible for the audit. 

Deloitte revizija d.o.o Dunajska cesta 165 1000 Ljubljana 

Deloitte. 
Deloitte revizija d o.o 
Ljubljana, Slovenija 3 

Barbara Zibret Kra,j 
Certified Auditor 
Ljubljana, March 31, 2025

ending 31/12/2024 
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APPENDIX TO THE ANNUAL REPORT 

9 APPENDIX TO THE ANNUAL REPORT ACCORDING TO THE 

METHODOLOGY OF THE INSURANCE SUPERVISION 

AGENCY 

9.1 DECISION ON THE ANNUAL REPORT AND QUARTERLY 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INSURANCE UNDERTAKINGS 
(UNAUDITED) 

Triglav, pokojninska druzba, d.d. 

BALANCE SHEET as at 31 December 2024 

  31 December 
2024 

31 December 
2023 

Index 

ASSETS (A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H+l+J+K+L+M) 535,422,718 482,831,852 110.9 

A. Intangible assets 50,904 78,644 83.1 

B. Property, plant and equipment 440,170 618,095 64.7 

C. Non-current assets held for sale 0 0 / 

D. Deferred tax assets 0 0 / 

E. Investment property 0 0 / 

F. Financial investments in Group companies and associates, of which 561,985 489,221 114.9 
 - accounted using the equity method 561,985 489,221 114.9 

G. Financial assets 68,084,778 64,160,778 106.1 
 1. at amortised cost 14,916,398 18,204,055 81.9 
 2. at fair value through other comprehensive income 

46,761,933 33,627,170 139.1 

 3. at fair value through profit or loss 6,406,446 12,329,553 52.0 

H. Unit-linked insurance assets 0 0 / 

I. Technical provisions transferred to reinsurance and co-insurance undertakings 
0 0 / 

J. Assets from financial contracts 464,163,329 414,491,103 112.0 

K. Receivables 439,952 426,624 103.1 
 1. Receivables from direct insurance operations 246 246 100.0 
 2. Receivables from reinsurance and co-insurance operations 0 0 / 
 3. Current tax assets 0 0 / 
 4. Other receivables 439,706 426,378 118.5 

L. Other assets 28,452 24,986 113.9 

M. Cash and cash equivalents 1,653,148 2,542,401 65.0 

N. Off-balance sheet items 0 32,500 / 
    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H+l+J+K) 535,422,718 482,831,852 111.0 

A. Equity 68,092,732 63,321,643 167.5 
 1. Share capital 25,756,808 25,756,808 100.0 
 2. Share premium 26,584,324 26,584,324 100.0 
 3. Profit reserves 2,386,548 932,346 255.3 
 4. Fair value reserve 337,226 -630,787 -53.5 
 5. Reserve due to fair value revaluation 0 0 / 
 6. Net profit or loss brought forward 10,678,352 6,078,910 176.0 
 7. Net profit or loss for the financial year 2,355,474 4,599,442 51.2 

B. Subordinated liabilities 0 0 / 

C. Technical provisions 0 0 / 

D. Technical provisions for unit-linked insurance contracts 
0 0 / 

E. Other provisions 2,732,199 4,531,259 60.3 

F. Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale 0 0 / 

G Deferred tax liabilities 0 0 / 

H. Liabilities from financial contracts 464,163,329 414,491,103 112.0 

I. Other financial liabilities 0 0 / 

J. Operating liabilities 0 0 / 
 1. Liabilities from direct insurance operations 0 0 / 
 2. Liabilities from reinsurance and co-insurance operations 0 0 / 
 3. Current tax liabilities 0 0 / 

K. Other liabilities 434,459 488,447 88.9 

L. Off-balance sheet items 0 32,500 /   
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Triglav, pokojninska druzba, 

INCOME STATEMENT for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2024 

 2024 2023 Index 

£T PREMIUM INCOME 0 0 / 

B. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES, of which 
72,763 48,574 149.8 

 - profit on equity investments in associates and jointly controlled 
companies accounted using the equity method 

72,763 48,574 149.8 

C. INVESTMENT INCOME, of which 1,668,345 1,362,859 122.4 
 - interest income calculated using the effective interest rate 

method 
1,265,726 1,049,010 120.7 

 - dividend income 78,068 92,389 84.5 
 - reversal of impairments of financial assets 255,132 154,431 165.2 
 - gains arising from the difference between the amortised cost 

of a financial asset and its fair value as at the reclassification 

date 

0 0 
- 

 
- gains recognised in other comprehensive income, reclassified 

to profit or loss due to reclassification 
0 0 - 

 - gains on disposal of investments 64,984 67,029 96.9 

D. OTHER TECHNICAL INCOME, of which 4,876,637 4,396,642 110.9 
 - fee and commission income 4,876,637 4,396,642 110.9 

E OTHER INCOME 1,731,456 3,788,721 45.7 

F. NET CLAIMS INCURRED 0 0 / 

G, CHANGE IN OTHER TECHNICAL PROVISIONS 
0 0 / 

H. CHANGE IN TECHNICAL PROVISION FOR UNIT- LINKED 
INSURANCE CONTRACTS 

0 0 / 

I. CHANGE IN LIABILITIES FROM FINANCIAL CONTRACTS 0 0 / 

J. EXPENSES FOR BONUSES AND DISCOUNTS 0 0 / 

K. OPERATING EXPENSES, of which 4,265,173 3,781,684 112.8 
 

- acquisition cost 131,819 139,529 94.5 

L. EXPENSES FROM INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES, of which 

0 0 / 

 - loss on equity investments in associates and jointly controlled 
companies accounted using the equity method 0 0 / 

M EXPENSES FROM INVESTMENTS, of which 273,577 60,005 455.9 
 - impairment of financial assets 5,357 38,687 13.8 
 - losses arising from the difference between the amortised cost 

of a financial asset and its fair value as at the reclassification 

date 

0 0 
- 

 - losses recognised in other comprehensive income, reclassified 

to profit or loss due to reclassification 
0 0 - 

 - losses on disposal of financial assets 268,220 21,318 1,258.2 

N. OTHER TECHNICAL EXPENSES, of which 0 0 / 

0. OTHER EXPENSES 6,776 1,155,665 0.6 
 - expenses from financing 0 0 / 

P. PRUFTT UR LOSS BEFORE TAX 3,803,677 4,599,442 82.7 

R. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 0 0 / 

S. NET PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 3,803,677 4,599,442 82.7 
 Net profit/loss per share 31 37 83.3 
 Net profit/loss per share 31 37 83.3   
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Triglav, pokojninska druzba, STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME for the period from 1 January to 

31 December 2024 

1.3. STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2024 2023 Index 

I. NET PROFIY OR LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR AFTER TAX 3,803,677 4,599,442 827 
II. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AFTERTAX (a + b) 968,(512 960,93d 100.7 

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods (1+2+3+4+5+6) 
0 0 / 

1. Net gains/losses recognised in the surplus from revaluation of intangible assets 
0 0 / 

2. Net gains/losses recognised in the surplus from revaluation of property, plant and 

equipment 
0 0 / 

3. Actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit pension plans 
0 0 / 

4. Share of net gains/losses of equity investments in associates and jointly controlled 
companies accounted using the equity method 

0 0 / 

5. Other items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 0 0 / 

6. Tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0 0 / 

b) Items that could be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods (1+2+3+4+5) 
968,012 960,930 100.7 

1 .a. Net gains/losses on the re-measurement of available-for-sale financial assets 
0 0 / 

1.1. Gains/losses recognised in revaluation surplus 0 0 / 

1.2. Reclassification of gains/losses from revaluation surplus to profit or loss 0 0 / 

1.3. Other reclassifications 0 0 / 

1 ,b. Net gains/losses recognised in the surplus from revaluation of financial assets 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 968,012 960,930 100.7 

2. Net gains/losses from the hedging of cash flows (effective portion of the hedge) 
0 0 / 

2.1. Gains/losses recognised in revaluation surplus 0 0 / 

2.2. Reclassification of gains/losses from revaluation surplus to profit or loss 0 0 / 

2.3. Reclassification of gains/losses from revaluation surplus to the opening carrying 

amount of a hedged item 
0 0 / 

3. Share of net gains/losses of equity investments in associates and jointly controlled 

companies accounted using the equity method 
0 0 / 

4. Other items that could be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 
0 0 / 

5. Tax on items that could be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 
0 0 / 

III. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR AFTER TAX (I + 
II) 

4,771,689 5,560,372 85.8 
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9.2 DECISION ON THE ANNUAL REPORT AND INTERIM FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF THE PENSION FUND STRUCTURED AS A 
GUARANTEE FUND, AND OF THE GROUP OF GUARANTEE 
FUNDS (UNAUDITED) 

9.2.1 SKUPNI POKOJNINSKI SKLAD (COLLECTIVE PENSION FUND) GROUP OF 
LIFE-CYCLE GUARANTEE FUNDS 

Aggregate balance sheet 

in EUR 31 December 

2024 

31 December 
2023 
recalculated 

1 January 2023 
recalculated Index 

I. ASSETS* 464,163,329 414,491,103 378,850,134 112.0 

A. Investment property and other real property rights 
0 0 0 / 

B. Financial assets 454,928,029 394,200,899 358,231,756 115.4 
 

1. at amortised cost, of which 168,955,782 197,000,140 222,461,969 85.8 

- loans and deposits 0 0 20,471,185 
 

- debt securities 168,955,782 197,000,140 201,990,784 85.8 
 2. at fair value through other comprehensive income, of which 

0 0 0 / 

 3. at fair value through profit or loss, of which 
285,972,247 197,200,759 135,769,787 145.0 

  

- debt securities 169,122,646 118,753,632 78,094,679 142.4 
  

- equities 116,849,601 78,447,128 57,675,108 149.0 

C. Receivables* 91,113 39,935 748,625 228.2 
 1. Receivables due from the fund manager up to the guaranteed 

return 
916 8,852 16,658 10.3 

 

2. Other receivables* 90,198 31,083 731,968 290.2 

D. Cash and cash equivalents* 9,144,186 20,250,269 19,869,753 45.2 

E Other assets 0 0 0 / 

F. Off-balance sheet assets 656,693 1,436,693 1,496,988 45.7 
 

1. From derivatives 0 0 0 / 

 

2. Other off-balance sheet assets 656,693 1,436,693 1,496,988 45.7 

II. LIABILITIES* 464,163,329 414,491,103 378,850,134 112.0 

A. Technical provisions 461,828,915 412,942,104 377,251,018 111.8 
 

1. Mathematical provisions for net paid-in premiums 0 0 0 / 

 2. Mathematical provisions for capital gain on the guarantee 
fund, of which 

0 0 0 / 

 3. Insurance provisions for guarantee funds backing unit- linked 

insurance, of which 
461,828,915 412,942,104 377,251,018 111.8 

 
- surplus from revaluation 0 0 0 / 

B. Financial liabilities 0 0 0 / 

C. Operating liabilities* 2,330,655 1,548,999 1,598,480 150.5 
 1. Liabilities from the purchase of securities and other financial 

instruments 
390,000 0 0 / 

 

2. Liabilities to the guarantee fund manager* 435,943 394,904 363,003 110.4 
 3. Cash surrender value payments to guarantee fund members 

1,492,488 1,146,936 1,225,493 130.1 

 

4. Other operating liabilities* 12,225 7,159 9,985 170.8 

D. Other liabilities* 3,759 0 636 / 

F. Off-balance sheet liabilities 656,693 1,436,693 1,496,988 45.7 
 

1. From derivatives 0 0 0 / 

 
2. From issued guarantees 0 0 0 / 

 

3. Other off-balance sheet liabilities 656,693 1,436,693 1,496,988 45.7   
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* The aggregate balance sheet of the Skupni pokcjninski sklad (Collective Pension Funo) is the sum of the items of the individual statements of financial position 

of the guarantee funds from the group of lifecycle guarantee funds in all items except for other liabilities, cash and cash equivalents and other operating liabilities. 

The items receivables and other liabilities do not include the values arising from internal accounting relationships between funds within the group as at the cut-off 

date. However, cash and cash equivalents, and other operating liabilities are higher than the bare sum of the individual statements by the cash balance or the 

balance of liabilities from unallocated transfers of the Skupni kritni sklad (Collective Guarantee Funo). 

Aggregate income statement 

In EUR 2024 
2023 

recalculated 
1 January 2023 

recalculated 
Index 

1. Financial income 42,003,617 23,181,958 0 181.2 

 

1. Dividend and profit sharing income 1,196,813 779,995 0 153.4 

 

2. Interest income 7,685,936 6,689,012 0 114.9 

 

3. Gains on disposal of financial assets 127,880 44,660 0 286.3 
 4. Net income from changes in the fair value of 

financial assets recognised affair value through profit or 

loss 

24,461,142 14,771,864 0 165.6 

 

5. Other financial income 8,531,846 896,427 0 951.8 

II. Income from investment property 0 0 0 / 

III. Financial expenses 4,208,163 2,516,387 0 167.2 

 

1. Interest expenses 0 0 0 / 

 

2. Losses on disposal of financial assets 31,733 190,521 0 16.7 
 3. Net expenses from changes in the fair value of 

financial assets recognised affair value through profit or 

loss 

4,021,867 1,128,759 0 356.3 

 

4. Other financial expenses 154,563 1,197,107 0 12.9 

IV. Expenses from investment property 0 0 0 / 

V. Investment result (I. + II. - III. - IV.) 37,795,454 20,665,571 0 182.9 

     

VI. Income from fund manager’s payments up to the 

guaranteed return 
48,281 168,136 0 28.7 

VII. Other income 0 0 0 / 

VIII. Expenses from management and operations 4,639,532 4,123,073 0 112.5 
 

1. Management commission 4,373,815 3,919,142 0 111.6 

 
2. Custodian bank fee 91,850 82,301 0 111.6 

 

3. Auditing expenses 0 0 0 / 

 4. Expenses from notification of guarantee fund 
members 

68,343 64,499 0 106.0 

 5. Brokerage expenses from the purchase and sale of 

securities 
24,893 8,519 0 292.2 

 

6. Other expenses which are directly charged to the 

guarantee fund under management rules 
80,631 48,612 0 165.9 

IX. IX. 0 0 0 / 

7. Net profit or loss attributable to policyholders (V. + VI. + 

VIL-VIII. -IX.) 
33,204,203 16,710,634 0 198.7 
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9.2.1.1 OBVEZNISKI SKUPNI POKOJNINSKI SKLAD Z ZAJAMCENIM DONOSOM 
(GUARANTEED RETURN BOND COLLECTIVE PENSION FUND) 

Balance sheet 
   

31 December 
2024 

31 
December 

2023 
recalculated 

1 January 
2023 

recalculated 

Index 

I. ASSETS 337,367,003 328,549,537 316,827,103 102.7 

A. Investment property and other real property rights 
0 0 0 / 

B. Financial assets 331,724,469 312,636,996 300,364,941 106.1 
 

1. at amortised cost, of which 168,955,782 197,000,140 217,817,150 85.8 
  

- loans and deposits 0 0 15,826,367 0,0 
  

- debt securities 168,955,782 197,000,140 201,990,783 85.8 
 2. at fair value through other comprehensive income, of which 

0 0 0 / 

  
- debt securities 0 0 0 / 

  
- equities 0 0 0 / 

 3. at fair value through profit or loss, of which 
162,768,688 115,636,856 82,547,791 140.8 

  
- debt securities 151,018,292 93,967,334 64,353,498 160.7 

  
- equities 11,750,396 21,669,521 18,194,293 54.2 

C. Receivables 2,052,170 2,178,627 3,055,405 94.2 
 1. Receivables due from the fund manager up to the guaranteed 

return 
916 8,852 16,658 10.3 

 
2. Other receivables 2,051,255 2,169,775 3,038,747 94.5 

D. Cash and cash equivalents 3,590,363 13,733,914 13,406,757 26.1 

E. Other assets 0 0 0 / 

F. Off-balance sheet assets 656,693 1,371,693 1,431,988 47.9 
 

1. From derivatives 0 0 0 
 

 
2. Other off-balance sheet assets 656,693 1,371,693 1,431,988 47.9 

II. LIABILITIES 337,367,003 328,549,537 316,827,103 102.7 

A. Technical provisions 334,966,647 327,028,054 315,263,761 102.4 
 

1. Mathematical provisions for net paid-in premiums 0 0 0 / 
 2. Mathematical provisions for capital gain on the guarantee fund, 

of which 
0 0 0 / 

  
- surplus from revaluation 0 0 0 / 

 3. Insurance provisions for guarantee funds backing unit- linked 
insurance, of which: 

334,966,647 327,028,054 315,263,761 102.4 

  
- surplus from revaluation 0 0 0 / 

B. Financial liabilities 0 0 0 / 

C. Operating liabilities 2,128,636 1,384,863 1,515,283 153.7 
 1. Liabilities from the purchase of securities and other financial 

instruments 
357,500 0 0 / 

 
2. Liabilities to the guarantee fund manager 307,381 300,513 292,383 102.3 

 3. Cash surrender value payments to guarantee fund members 
1,455,525 1,078,644 1,215,199 134.9 

 
4. Other operating liabilities 8,230 5,706 7,701 144.2 

D. Other liabilities 271,720 136,620 48,059 198.9 

F. Off-balance sheet liabilities 656,693 1,371,693 1,431,988 47.9 
 1. From derivatives 0 0 0 / 

 
2. From issued guarantees 0 0 0 / 

 
3. Other off-balance sheet liabilities 656,693 1,371,693 1,431,988 47.9   
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Income statement 

  

2024 
2023 

recalculated 

1 January 2023 
recalculated Index 

1. Financial income 12,967,706 11,415,235 0 113.6 
 1. Dividend and profit sharing income 251,391 108,246 0 232.2 
 2. Interest income 7,195,916 6,262,664 0 114.9 
 3. Gains on disposal of financial assets 60,069 1,470 0 4,086.3 
 4. Net income from changes in the fair value of financial assets 

recognised at fair value through profit or loss 

3,926,067 4,254,723 0 92.3 

 5. Other financial income 1,534,263 788,132 0 194.7 

II. Income from investment property 0 0 0 / 

 1. Rental income from investment property 0 0 0 / 
 2. Gains on disposal of investment property 0 0 0 / 
 3. Net income from changes in the fair value of investment property 

recognised at fair value through profit or loss 

0 0 0 / 

III. Financial expenses 950,359 255,697 0 371.7 
 1. Interest expenses 0 0 0 / 
 2. Losses on disposal of financial assets 0 843 0 0.0 
 3. Net expenses from changes in the fair value of financial assets 

recognised at fair value through profit or loss 

892,421 106,362 0 839.0 

 4. Other financial expenses 57,938 148,492 0 39.0 

IV. Expenses from investment property 0 0 0 / 
 

1. Expenses from management and rental of investment property 
0 0 0 / 

 2. Losses on disposal of investment property 0 0 0 / 
 3. Net expenses from changes in the fair value of investment 

property recognised at fair value through profit or loss 

0 0 0 / 

V. Investment result (I. + II. - III. - IV.) 12,017,347 11,159,538 0 107.7 

     

VI. Income from fund manager’s payments up to the guaranteed return 
48,281 168,136 0 28.7 

VII. Other income 0 0 0 / 

VIII. Expenses from management and operation of the guarantee fund 
3,466,625 3,345,181 0 103.6 

 
1. Management commission 3,306,862 3,200,345 0 103.3 

 2. Custodian bank fee 69,444 67,207 0 103.3 
 3. Auditing expenses 0 0 0 / 
 4. Expenses from notification of guarantee fund members 46,682 47,563 0 98.1 
 5. Brokerage expenses from the purchase and sale of securities 

3,220 912 0 353.1 

 6. Other expenses which are directly charged to the guarantee fund 

under management rules 
40,418 29,154 0 138.6 

IX. IX. 0 0 0 / 

     

X. Net profit or loss attributable to policyholders (V. + VI. + VII. - VIII. 
-IX.) 

8,599,003 7,982,493 0 107.7 
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9.2.1.2 MESANI SKUPNI POKOJNINSKI SKLAD (MIXED COLLECTIVE PENSION 
FUND) 

Balance sheet 

   31 
December 

2024 

31 December 
2023 
recalculated 

1 January 2023 

recalculated 

Index 

I. ASSETS 58,754,993 43,119,847 33,892,750 136.3 

A. Investment property and other real property rights 
0 0 0 / 

B. Financial assets 56,957,778 40,615,974 31,265,853 140.2 

 1. at amortised cost, of which  0 2,847,959 / 

  

- loans and deposits 0 0 2,847,959 / 
  

- debt securities 0 0 0 / 
 2. at fair value through other comprehensive income, of which 

0 0 0 / 

  
- debt securities 0 0 0 / 

  
- equities 0 0 0 / 

 

3. at fair value through profit or loss, of which 59,957,778 40,615,974 28,417,895 147.6 
  

- debt securities 17,522,855 16,481,903 10,116,597 106.3 
  

- equities 39,434,923 24,134,071 18,301,298 163.4 

C. Receivables 978,698 893,666 801,710 109.5 

 1. Receivables due from the fund manager up to the guaranteed return 
0 0 0 / 

 2. Other receivables 978,698 893,666 801,710 109.5 

D. Cash and cash equivalents 818,517 1,610,207 1,825,187 50.8 

E. Other assets 0 0 0 / 

F. Off-balance sheet assets 0 32,500 32,500 0.0 
 

1. From derivatives 0 0 0 / 
 

2. Other off-balance sheet assets 0 32,500 32,500 0.0 

II. LIABILITIES 58,754,993 43,119,847 33,892,750 136.3 

A. Technical provisions 58,570,707 43,010,587 33,661,100 136.2 
 

1. Mathematical provisions for net paid-in premiums 0 0 0 / 
 2. Mathematical provisions for capital gain on the guarantee fund, of 

which 
0 0 0 / 

  
- surplus from revaluation 0 

  
/ 

 3. Insurance provisions for guarantee funds backing unit-linked 

insurance, of which: 
58,570,707 43,010,587 33,661,101 136.2 

  - surplus from revaluation 0 0 0 / 

B. Financial liabilities 0 0 0 / 

C. Operating liabilities 99,790 96,472 44,889 103.4 
 1. Liabilities from the purchase of securities and other financial 

instruments 
16,250 0 0 / 

 
2. Liabilities to the guarantee fund manager 57,670 45,020 37,080 128.1 

 3. Cash surrender value payments to guarantee fund members 
23,965 50,730 6,632 47.2 

 

4. Other operating liabilities 1,905 723 1,177 263.5 

D. Other liabilities 84,496 12,788 186,761 660.7 

F. Off-balance sheet liabilities 0 32,500 32,500 0.0 

 1. From derivatives 0 0 0 / 

 
2. From issued guarantees 0 0 0 / 

 3. Other off-balance sheet liabilities 0 32,500 32,500 0.0 
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Income statement 

  2024 2023 
recalculated 

2023 
recalculated 

Index 

1. Financial income 11,421,242 5,454,688 0 209.4 

 1. Dividend and profit sharing income 373,962 296,787 0 126.0 
 2. Interest income 406,064 293,392 0 138.4 

 3. Gains on disposal of financial assets 28,679 19,818 0 144.7 

 4. Net income from changes in the fair value of financial assets 

recognised at fair value through profit or loss 

8,357,316 4,797,484 0 174.2 

 5. Other financial income 2,255,220 47,207 0 4,777.3 

II. Income from investment property 0 0 0 / 

 1. Rental income from investment property 0 0 0 / 

 2. Gains on disposal of investment property 0 0 0 / 

 3. Net income from changes in the fair value of investment property 
recognised at fair value through profit or loss 0 0 0 / 

III. Financial expenses 1,199,472 994,219 0 120.6 
 1. Interest expenses 0 0 0 / 

 
2. Losses on disposal of financial assets 10,240 82,114 0 12.5 

 3. Net expenses from changes in the fair value of financial assets 
recognised at fair value through profit or loss 

1,158,645 453,330 0 255.6 

 4. Other financial expenses 30,587 458,775 0 6.7 

IV. Expenses from investment property 0 0 0 / 

 

1. Expenses from management and rental of investment property 
0 0 0 / 

 2. Losses on disposal of investment property 0 0 0 / 

 

3. Net expenses from changes in the fair value of investment 

property recognised at fair value through profit or loss 

0 0 0 / 

V. Investment result (I. + II. - III. - IV.) 10,221,769 4,460,469 0 229.2 

     

VI. Income from fund manager’s payments up to the guaranteed return 
0 0 0 / 

VII. Other income 0 0 0 / 

VIII. Expenses from management and operation of the guarantee fund 
555,167 396,300 0 140.1 

 1. Management commission 511,034 372,442 0 137.2 

 2. Custodian bank fee 10,732 7,821 0 137.2 

 3. Auditing expenses 0 0 0 / 

 4. Expenses from notification of guarantee fund members 6,221 5,330 0 116.7 

 5. Brokerage expenses from the purchase and sale of securities 
7,527 2,654 0 283.6 

 6. Other expenses which are directly charged to the guarantee fund 

under management rules 
19,654 8,053 0 244.1 

IX. IX. 0 0 0 / 

     

X. Net profit or loss attributable to policyholders (V. + VI. + VII. -VIII. -IX.) 
9,666,602 4,064,170 0 237.8 
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9.2.1.3 DELNISKI SKUPNI POKOJNINSKI SKLAD (EQUITY COLLECTIVE PENSION 
FUND) 

Balance sheet 

   

31 December 

2024 

31 December 
2023 
recalculated 

1 January 2023 
recalculated Index 

I. ASSETS 68,431,257 42,977,031 28,459,466 159.2 

A. Investment property and other real property rights 
0 0 0 / 

B. Financial assets 66,245,781 40,947,930 26,600,961 161.8 
 

1. at amortised cost, of which 
 

0 1,796,859 / 
  - loans and deposits 0 0 1,796,859 / 

  - debt securities 0 0 0 / 

 2. at fair value through other comprehensive income, of which 
0 0 0 / 

  - debt securities 0 0 0 / 

  

- eguities 0 0 0 / 
 3. at fair value through profit or loss, of which 

66,245,781 40,947,930 24,804,102 161.8 

  
- debt securities 581,499 8,304,393 3,624,585 7.0 

  
- eguities 65,664,282 32,643,537 21,179,518 201.2 

C. Receivables 1,464,924 1,284,353 912,806 114.1 
 1. Receivables due from the fund manager up to the 

guaranteed return 
0 0 0 / 

 
2. Other receivables 1,464,924 1,284,353 912,806 114.1 

D. Cash and cash equivalents 720,551 744,748 945,699 96.8 

E. Other assets 0 0 0 / 

F. Off-balance sheet assets 0 32,500 32,500 0.0 
 

1. From derivatives 0 0 0 / 
 2. Other off-balance sheet assets 0 32,500 32,500 0.0 

II. LIABILITIES 68,431,257 42,977,031 28,459,466 159.2 

A. Technical provisions 68,291,561 42,903,463 28,326,155 159.2 
 1. Mathematical provisions for net paid-in premiums 0 0 0 / 

 2. Mathematical provisions for capital gain on the guarantee 

fund, of which 
0 0 0 / 

  

- surplus from revaluation 0 
 

0 / 
 3. Insurance provisions for guarantee funds backing unit- 

linked insurance, of which: 
68,291,561 42,903,463 28,326,155 159.2 

  
- surplus from revaluation 0 

 
0 / 

B. Financial liabilities 0 0 0 / 

C. Operating liabilities 102,229 67,664 38,309 151.1 
 1. Liabilities from the purchase of securities and other financial 

instruments 
16,250 0 0 / 

 
2. Liabilities to the guarantee fund manager 70,892 49,372 33,540 143.6 

 3. Cash surrender value payments to guarantee fund members 
12,997 17,562 3,662 74.0 

 
4. Other operating liabilities 2,090 730 1,107 286.3 

D. Other liabilities 37,467 5,904 95,001 634.6 

F. Off-balance sheet liabilities 0 32,500 32,500 0.0 

 
1. From derivatives 0 0 0 / 

 2. From issued guarantees 0 0 0 / 

 3. Other off-balance sheet liabilities 0 32,500 32,500 0.0 
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Income statement 

  

2024 
2023 recalculated 1 January 2023 

recalculated Index 

1. Financial income 17,614,669 6,312,035 0 279.1 
 1. Dividend and profit sharing income 571,459 374,962 0 152.4 
 2. Interest income 83,956 132,957 0 63.1 
 3. Gains on disposal of financial assets 39,131 23,372 0 167.4 
 4. Net income from changes in the fair value of financial assets 

recognised at fair value through profit or loss 

12,177,759 5,719,657 0 212.9 

 5. Other financial income 4,742,363 61,089 0 7,763.0 

II. Income from investment property 0 0 0 / 
 1. Rental income from investment property 0 0 0 / 
 2. Gains on disposal of investment property 0 0 0 / 
 3. Net income from changes in the fair value of investment 

property recognised at fair value through profit or loss 0 0 0 / 

III. Financial expenses 2,058,332 1,266,471 0 162.5 
 1. Interest expenses 0 0 0 / 
 2. Losses on disposal of financial assets 21,493 107,564 0 20.0 
 3. Net expenses from changes in the fair value of financial assets 

recognised at fair value through profit or loss 
1,970,802 569,067 0 346.3 

 4. Other financial expenses 66,038 589,841 0 11.2 

IV. Expenses from investment property 0 0 0 / 

 

1. Expenses from management and rental of investment property 
0 0 0 / 

 2. Losses on disposal of investment property 0 0 0 / 
 3. Net expenses from changes in the fair value of investment 

property recognised at fair value through profit or loss 

0 0 0 / 

V. Investment result (I. + II. - III. - IV.) 15,556,337 5,045,564 0 308.3 
     

VI. Income from fund manager’s payments up to the guaranteed return 
0 0 0 / 

VII. Other income 0 0 0 / 

VIII. Expenses from management and operation of the guarantee fund 
617,740 381,592 0 161.9 

 1. Management commission 555,919 346,356 0 160.5 
 2. Custodian bank fee 11,674 7,273 0 160.5 
 

3. Auditing expenses 0 0 0 / 

 4. Expenses from notification of guarantee fund members 15,441 11,606 0 133.0 
 5. Brokerage expenses from the purchase and sale of securities 

14,146 4,953 0 285.6 

 6. Other expenses which are directly charged to the guarantee 

fund under management rules 
20,560 11,405 0 180.3 

IX. IX. 0 0 0 / 
     

X. Net profit or loss attributable to policyholders (V. + VI. + VII. - VIII. -

IX.) 
14,938,597 4,663,972 0 320.3 

 


